
 

Torbay Council, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR  
Email: financial.services@torbay.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

DRAFT BUDGET DIGEST 
 

2015/2016 
 
Published:  Wednesday, 04 February 2015 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
Working for a healthy, prosperous and happy Bay 



 

 

1.   Introduction 
 

(Pages 1 - 8) 

2.   Residents and Visitor Services 
 

(Pages 9 - 67) 

3.   Spatial Planning 
 

(Pages 68 - 87) 

4.   Torbay Economic Development Company 
 

(Pages 88 - 99) 

5.   Tor Bay Harbour Authority 
 

(Pages 100 - 133) 

6.   Waste and Cleaning 
 

(Pages 134 - 137) 

7.   Adult Social Care 
 

(Pages 138 - 153) 

8.   Children's Services 
 

(Pages 154 - 177) 

9.   Public Health 
 

(Pages 178 - 180) 

10.   Community Safety 
 

(Pages 181 - 217) 

11.   Commercial and Business Services 
 

(Pages 218 - 238) 

12.   Financial Services 
 

(Pages 239 - 254) 

13.   Information Services 
 

(Pages 255 - 264) 

14.   Corporate Budgets 
 

(Pages 265 - 266) 

15.   Sources of Funding 
 

(Pages 267 - 268) 



Business Unit Summary –Budget Proposal 2015/16  

as at 3 February 2015 

 

 

Business Unit Total 
Expenditure 

Total Income Net 
Expenditure 

 £000 £000 £000 

    

Residents and Visitors Services 12,284 (2,730) 9,554 

Spatial Planning 7,205 (2,166) 5,039 

Torbay Development Agency 5,127 (1,968) 3,159 

Tor Bay Harbour Authority 6,427 (9,921) (3,494) 

Waste and Cleaning 12,029 (1,395) 10,634 

    

Adult Social Care 37,563 (1,081) 36,482 

    

Children’s Services 82,148 (53,125) 29,023 

    

Public Health 8,105 (8,105) 0 

Community Safety 4,165 (1,842) 2,323 

    

Commercial & Business Services 6,182 (1,875) 4,307 

Financial Services 91,038 (81,206) 9,832 

Information Services 4,251 (1,329) 2,922 

    
Total 276,524 (166,743) 109,781 

 

 

 

 

Page 1



Draft Budget Digest 2015/16 

Glossary 

Please note that budget digest references on the service information and agreed savings 
documents refer to the individual services IDs on the budget digest pages. 

A 

ASC Adult Social Care – is the service currently provided by Torbay and Southern 
Devon NHS and Social Care Trust. The management of this service is 
governed by the Annual Strategic Agreement (ASA) approved annually by 
Council. 

ATL Above the Line refers to the direct cost of a Service, which will include for 
example employees’ basic pay, employers national insurance and pension 
contributions, supplies and services, and income from fees, charges and 
grants. 

ATL does not include internal recharging from support services, these charges 
are referred to as being BTL (below the line), for example internal recharges 
to a Service from Human Resources for running a payroll system.   

ATL and BTL charges together make up the Total Cost of the service. 

The Council’s budget is allocated to Services on an ATL basis. This digest does 
not show the internal BTL reallocation of support service costs. 

Note for ring fenced services support service charges are ATL. 

B 

BTL Below the Line transactions are where a support service (e.g Human 
Resources) recharge a direct service (e.g. Highways) the cost of providing the 
service for example providing a payroll service for the employees in 
Highways. 

BTL can also be for BTL capital recharges.  BTL capital recharges are those not 
chargeable to Council Tax such as depreciation and impairment. Note: The 
Revenue Budget is charged an ‘above the line’ MRP charge for assets funded 
from borrowing. 

ATL and BTL charges together make up the Total Cost of the service which is 
used for statutory reporting. 

The Council’s budget is allocated to Services on an ATL basis. This digest does 
not show the internal BTL reallocation of support service costs. 

  

Page 2



Borrowing 

Councils borrow to fund Capital expenditure or for temporary cash flow 
requirements. The majority of Council borrowing will be from Central 
Government by means of the Public Works Loans Board. Council’s are free to 
use other borrowing options provided they are within the Council’s treasury 
management arrangements. 

Brixham Town Council 

The Town Council as a local precepting body will issue a precept to Torbay 
Council to collect Council Tax from residents in its area.  This precept will 
form part of Torbay Council’s budget requirement. 

C 

Capital Expenditure 

Payments made for the acquisition, provision or improvement of assets, 
which will be of a long-term value to the Council, e.g., land and buildings.  
These costs are not included in the Revenue Budget but in the Capital Plan.  
Revenue contribution to fund capital projects maybe budgeted for in the 
revenue budget. 

Capital Receipts 

Money received from the sale of assets or the repayment of grants and loans 
which is available for financing future capital expenditure. These items are 
not included in the Revenue Budget but in the Capital Plan. 

CIPFA  

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy – the accounting 
institute that helps regulate and support accountants in the public sector. 

Collection Fund 

 As a billing authority the Council is required to account for transactions 
associated with the collection of NNDR and Council tax such as bills raises and 
income collected separately. 

D 

Depreciation  

Amounts set aside from the revenue account which represent the wearing 
out, consumption of loss of value of a fixed asset spread over the useful life 
of the asset.  These costs are not funded by Council Tax and are therefore 
treated as a ‘below the line’ charge. 

Page 3



Direct Employee Cost 

Direct employee cost follows the CIPFA definition which includes the 
following:- 

 Basic Pay 

 Employers National Insurance, Superannuation Contribution  

 Agency Staff 

Within this budget digest indirect employee costs e.g. training are including 
in supplies and services.  

F 

Fees, Charges & Sales  

For this budget digest ‘Fees, Charges and Sales’ primarily includes any income 
that is not a:- 

 Central government grants 

 Contribution from a Reserve 

G 

Grant Income 

For this budget digest this category primarily includes grants from central 
government. 

I 

Impairment  

Impairment is a reduction in the value of a fixed asset, below its balance 
sheet value. This cost is not funded by Council Tax and therefore treated as a 
‘below the line’ charge. 

Investment Properties 

Land and buildings held only for the income stream or for capital 
appreciation. The income stream will be included in the Council’s Revenue 
Budget but any capital appreciation on sale will be a captial receipt and be 
part of the Capital Plan 

  

Page 4



M 

MRP - Minimum Revenue Provision  

The Minimum Revenue Provision is the minimum amount which must be 
charged to a Council’s revenue account each year and set aside as provision 
for repayment of debt, as required by the Local Government Act 2003. For 
assets funded form unsupported borrowing this must be a “prudent” 
amount. 

N 

New Homes Bonus Grant 

A general grant from 2012/13 that is linked to the growth in the number of 
properties available for occupation either from a new home or an empty 
home brought back into use. 

NNDR  

National Non Domestic Rates, a national tax collected on a local level 
formally known as business rates. 

NNDR Retention Scheme  

2013/14 was the first year of the new funding system for Councils – the 
NNDR Retention system. This change moves Councils away from central 
government funding based on a service “needs” basis to one linked more to 
economic growth. The Council retains a 49% share of any increase or 
decrease in NNDR income. 

P 

PFI - Private Finance Initiative  

PFI is a method of using private investment to fund public sector schemes 
often supported by central government. The private sector typically builds an 
asset such as a school and then charges the Council over a period of typically 
25 years to use and pay for the asset. 

Precept  

A statutory request made by one statutory body on another to meet the net 
cost of its services.  

Precepting Body 

The statutory body that makes a “precept” on a Council that is responsible 
for collecting Council Tax in an area. Town and parish Councils are classified 

Page 5



as a Minor Precepting body which means they precept their tax requirement 
on the Council who then include that amount in their precept. 

Premises Costs  

This group includes expenses directly related to the running of premises and 
land e,g, rates, rent and energy costs 

Provisions  

amounts set aside for the purposes of providing for any liability or loss which 
is likely or certain to be incurred but is uncertain as to the amount or the date 
on which it will arise, e.g., bad debts.  

R 

Reserves 

Reserves are funds set aside for a particular purpose for example:- 

 To smooth a regular cost that happens in the future e.g. elections.  
Rather than the cost being a pressure in the year the election 
happens, contributions are made from the revenue budget to the 
reserve over a 4 year period. In the 5th year the funds are taken from 
the reserve and brought into the revenue account as a contribution to 
fund the cost of the election. 
 

 A general reserve where contributions are made from the revenue 
budget to the reserve to funded unforeseen occurrences. 

 

 To set aside funds to meet capital expenditure on new capital 
projects. 

 
A Reserve balance can only be used to fund ‘one-off expenditure’ in the 
Revenue Budget. Reserves can be classified as useable or unuseable – please 
see entries below.  

 Revenue Expenditure 

Expenditure on day-to-day expenses consisting mainly of employee costs, the 
running expenses of buildings and equipment and capital financing costs.  

Revenue Support Grant 

A General Government Grant funded from national taxation to support the 
Council’s net expenditure. 

 

Page 6



Ring Fenced 

 Description of a service and its source of funding where, usually, the funding 
is restricted to that service. This restriction can be from central government 
(e.g Public Health funding or Dedicated Schools Grant) or a local decision (e.g. 
Harbours or printing). 

S 

Supplies and Services   

For this budget digest this category includes all expenditure that is not:- 

 Employee Direct costs 

 Premises related costs 

 Contributions to reserves 

Expenditure in this category would include payments to external bodies 
including providers and contractors. 

T 

Total Cost  

The actual cost of services reflects all of the direct, indirect and overhead 
costs that have been incurred in providing the service, even where the 
expenditure is not under the control of the service’s chief officer.  

U 

Unsupported (or Prudential) Borrowing  

Any borrowing the Council undertakes that is above and beyond the level of 
Supported Borrowing which the Government helps to fund and which 
therefore the Council has to fund completely from its own resources. 

Usable Reserves  

A reserve held by the Council that can be used for supporting service delivery 
including capital expenditure in the future.  

Unusable Reserves  

A reserve held by the Council that can not be used for supporting services. 
These tend to be the result of accounting entries not funded by Council Tax 
such as those that reflect previous capital financing, asset revaluations and 
the pension reserve. 

Page 7



V 

VRP – Voluntary Revenue Provision –  

VRP is an additional sum that a Council can make to be set aside as provision 
for the future repayment of debt. 

Page 8



Residents & Visitors Services

2015/16 Budget Summary (*ATL)

ServiceTitleID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees

Arts Development550 79 -10 692.65

Chairman of the Council571 21 0 210

Engineering - Land Drainage352 50 0 500

Engineering Services353 507 -415 9211

Events551 139 -98 410

Highways - Cyclical Maintenance556 1,308 -60 1,2488

Highways - Network Co-ordination553 472 -200 27211.5

Highways - Rechargeable Works555 72 -211 -1390

Highways - Roads557 1,426 -171 1,2550

Highways - Structures579 64 0 640

Highways - Winter Maintenance581 141 0 1410

Library Services - Operational & Mng't558 1,053 -74 97930.78

Library Services - Resources Fund559 109 0 1090

Museum Services - inc Torre Abbey560 571 -257 3145.9

P
age 9



ServiceTitleID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees

Music Hub577 142 -142 01.5

Place - Project fund554 19 0 190

Public Toilets562 909 -20 8890

Recreation and Landscape563 2,053 -412 1,6418.5

RVS - Management & Admin Support564 358 0 35811

Seafront Illuminations568 106 0 1060

Sport565 682 -297 3854.5

Street Lighting576 1,139 0 1,1392

Theatres & Public Entertainment566 289 -232 572

Torbay Coast and Countryside Trust580 183 0 1830

Tourism Marketing569 350 -100 2500

Transport Co-Ordination570 42 -31 111.5

Total 12,284 -2,730 9,554

Note:   *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

100.83

P
age 10



 

Residents And Visitor Services         Executive Head: Sue Cheriton   
            Executive Lead: Cllr Derek Mills, Cllr Nicole Amil, Cllr Robert Excell 
Engineering Services  
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

Key Functions include: 

 Land drainage and flood prevention 

 Urban design  

 Structural design  

 Cliffs and defenses  

 Development control support 

 Building control support  

 Specialist Services  

 Civil Engineering design and consultancy 
for revenue and capital schemes.  This 
involves both internal and external 
clients 

 Management of the Council’s coastal and 
inland cliffs, sea defences and 
abandoned landfill sites 

Torbay Council has a statutory responsibility for 
preparing and putting in place strategies for managing 
flood risk from groundwater, surface water and 
ordinary watercourses.  
 
The Engineering Services department also support a 
wide range of projects across the bay – for example:  
 

 Produce Local Flood Risk Management 
Strategy (in line with national guidance) 

 Torquay Flood Study complete including 
flood alleviation scheme for town centre  

Residents, businesses and visitors to 
Torbay that use facilities that are 
provided by the Engineering Services 
department. 

353 & 352 

 
Public Toilets  
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

Management and maintenance of summer, 
seasonal and permanent public toilets. 
 

For use by members of the public.   Members of the public, including 
residents and visitors to Torbay  

562 

 
Recreation and Landscape 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

 Parks Management, development and 
grounds maintenance including verges  

 Arboriculture/woodland management  

 Bay blooms  

 Children’s play area 

 Allotments 

 Dog Bins 

 Park Warden Service  

Torbay Council has a statutory responsibility to take 
reasonable steps to ensure that premises (including 
woodland, parks, beaches and car parks) are 
reasonably safe for visitors permitted to be there. 
 

Residents, visitors and local businesses 
within Torbay  

563 

P
age 11



 

Highways 

What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

 Management and maintenance of the 
highway, street lighting and public rights 
of way  

  Control of the movement and parking of 
vehicles  

 Development and implementation of 
transport policies and schemes in support 
of the Local Transport Plan 

 Control of the engineering and transport 
implications of developer proposals  

 Street Cleansing 

 Carriageway and Footway Repairs and 
Resurfacing 

 Traffic Light Network,  

 Street Lighting/Illuminations 

 Contract management 

 Highway adoptions 

 Street naming and numbering 

 Safety inspections  

 Highway enforcement  

 Street works co-ordination & inspections  

 Winter maintenance 

 

The Council has a number of statutory responsibilities 
relating to highways management e.g.:  

 Highways Act 1980 

 Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 

 Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 

 New Roads and Street Works Act 1991 
 
Please see the Residents and visitor services service 
review document for more details.  
 

 Maintaining 550km of 
Highways 

 Gritting 220kms of roads during 
the winter weather with 
between 350-400 tonnes of grit 
being used each year  

 Filling 3,600 potholes per year 

 Maintaining 15,000 streetlights 
and manage/maintain 87 
signalled crossings and 
junctions 

 Maintenance of 12,500 lamps 
that make up Torbay’s 
illuminations 
 

All residents, businesses and visitors to 
Torbay use facilities that are provided by 
the highways department.  

556,553, 555, 557, 579,581, 
561, 568 &576 

 
  

P
age 12



 

Transport Co-ordination (Subsidised Transport)  

What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

Torbay Council currently Subsidises 4 bus 
routes/extended hours services:  
 

 Route 11 Two additional early morning 
journeys from The Strand Torquay to 
Teignmouth Triangle 

 Route 17/17A Four evening return 
journeys from Bank Lane Brixham to 
Halfway House and Copythorne Road. 

 Route 22/22E two early mornings and 
five evening return journeys between 
Brixham Bank Lane and Kingswear, jointly 
subsidised with Devon County Council. 

 Route 25 One third of the journey for St 
Michaels  and Roundham areas and Eight 
return journeys between Paignton and 
Stoke Gabriel (this route is jointly 
subsidised with Devon County Council)  

 
Torbay Council also provides a fare car scheme 
that provides subsidised taxi services for the 
elderly and disabled. 
  

As per the Transport Act 1985: 
It is the duty of the County Council (Unitary Authority) 
to secure the provision of such passenger transport 
services as the council considers appropriate to meet 
any public transport requirement within the County 
which would not in its view be met apart from action 
taken by the Council 
Once the public transport requirements have been 
identified, the County Council (Unitary Authority) is 
entitled to take into consideration the funds available 
and the source of the funds. However the Council 
must have regard to the transport needs of the elderly 
and disabled. 

 
 

Residents and visitors to Torbay that use 
the bus routes and the fare car scheme.  

570 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 13



 

Arts Development & Events Support 

What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

Arts Development 
 Provides grants to develop the visual and 

performing arts with a return on investment 
of £2 for every £1 spent on the service 
 

Event Support and Development 
 Develops and directly manages the major 

events programmes – includes Powerboat 
races, one off festivals, Children’s Festival, 
Armed Forces Day and commemorative 
events. 

 Support to community event organisers for 
example, regattas, carnival and street parties 

 Manages income generation activity, for 
example fairs, continental markets and 
commercial use of spaces across the authority 
owned land 
 

To co-ordinate, support and develop the cultural 
sector (including creative industries) in Torbay.  

Residents of Torbay, visitors to Torbay 
and local businesses. 

550, 577 & 551 

 
 Museums (Including Torre Abbey and Archives)  
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

There are 3 museums within Torbay:  

 Torquay Museum 

 Brixham Museum  

 Torre Abbey  
Torre Abbey is directly managed and funded by 
Torbay Council and provides grants to Torquay 
Museum & Brixham Museum.  
A joint arrangement is also in place with Devon 
County Council for provision of an archives service 
at the Devon records office.  

The museums are provided as part of Torbay’s cultural 
offering for residents and visitors.  

Residents and visitors to Torbay:  
 

 Number of visitors to Brixham 
Museum (2011/12) – 13,453  

 Number of pupils visiting in groups 
– Brixham Museum (2011/12) – 616 

 Number of visitors to Torquay 
Museum (2010/11) -  25,857 

 

560 

 
   

P
age 14



 

Theatres and Public Entertainment  
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

Torbay Council directly owns and manages the 
Palace Theatre in Paignton. The Princess and 
Babbacombe Theatres are owned by the Council 
but are leased out to management companies.  
 

The theatres are provided as part of Torbay’s cultural 
offering for residents and visitors. 

Residents and visitors to Torbay: 

 230 performances  were 
presented at Palace Theatre 

 142,000 tickets purchase at 
theatres supported and/or 
managed by Torbay Council 

 150 young people attended the 
Acting Factory weekly 
workshop classes 
 

566 

 

Sports Development  
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

 Deliver a programme of sports activities 
across the Bay including Sports 
Personality Awards, Devon Youth Games  

 Development of sport and sports pitches, 
bowling greens and tennis Courts 

 Management of Torbay Leisure Centre 
contract 

 Sports pitch bookings  

 Facilitate grants to sports clubs  

 Client & Community liaison relating to 
sports activities  

 Development and delivery of sports 
related health and wellbeing programmes 

Sports development is provided to deliver sports 
activities and facilities across the bay for residents, 
visitors and children.  

 300 clubs  

 250 Taster/Coaching sessions 
were provided 

 183 young people took part in 
Devon Games to Inspire from 
Torbay 

 38 Volunteers trained and 
managed the Torbay Teams at 
the Devon Games to Inspire 

 28 individuals, 8 teams and 4 
clubs were awarded with 
Torbay Sports Awards in Torbay 

 34 Torbay Nominations have 
been forwarded to the Devon 
Sports Awards 

 £30,000 additional grant 
funding was secured to deliver 
a programme of sports 
activities to 14-25yr olds 

565 

 
 
  

P
age 15



 
 

Management, Support, Contract Management & Chairman’s Budget   
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

 Divisional Management and support 
including all group management staff 
across Residents and Visitors services  

 Financial management of division and 
administration support to Residents and 
Visitors Service areas  

 TOR2 employee costs  

 Contract Management  

To provide management and administration support 
to the whole of the Residents and Visitors department  
To manage contracts on behalf of the Council 
including TOR2, English Riviera Tourism Company, 
Torbay Coast and Countryside Trust  

Internal and external customers i.e. 
Councillors, Directors, members of the 
public, Council staff inside and outside 
of Residents and Visitor Services, 
external contractors i.e. TOR2.  

571, 554, 564, 580, 569 

 

Libraries (Including Library Resources Fund)  
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

The library service currently provides the 
following:  

 4 branch libraries  

 Lending services (Books and audio-visual 
materials)  

 Reference, information and local studies 

 Young people’s services  

 ICT learning centres  

 Events and festivals including Agatha 
Christie  

 Management of the resources fund – 
which pays for the acquisition of books 
and other materials for adults and 
children  

The Council has a statutory responsibility to “provide 
an efficient and comprehensive Library Service”  (1964 
Public Libraries and Museums Act) 

 Members of the public 
including local residents & 
visitors   

 Friends of Library Groups  

 Professional bodies (Chartered 
Institute of Library and 
Information 
Professionals/Society of Chief 
Librarians) 

 

558 & 559 

 
 

P
age 16



Service Title: Engineering Services  & Land Drainage

Manager: Dave Stewart

Brief Description of Service:

Engineering design and consultancy for revenue and capital programme

Business Unit: Residents & Visitors Services

Executive Head: Sue Cheriton

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

352 Engineering - Land 
Drainage

00 50 0 0 0 50 0 0 0 0 0 50

353 Engineering Services 45311 0 54 0 0 507 -415 0 0 0 -415 92

453 50 54 0 0 557 -415 0 0 0 -415 142TOTAL 11

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 17



Service Title: Recreation, Landscapes and Public Toilets

Manager: Neil Coish

Brief Description of Service:

Parks Management, Development and Grounds Maintenance including Verges
Arboriculture/ woodland Management
Bay Blooms and Allotments
Children's Play Areas
Dog Bins
Public Toilets

Business Unit: Residents & Visitors Services

Executive Head: Sue Cheriton

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

562 Public Toilets 00 251 658 0 0 909 -20 0 0 0 -20 889

563 Recreation and 
Landscape

2718.5 962 820 0 0 2,053 -362 0 -50 0 -412 1,641

271 1,213 1,478 0 0 2,962 -382 0 -50 0 -432 2,530TOTAL 8.5

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 18



Service Title: Highways

Manager: Patrick Carney

Brief Description of Service:

Statutory duty in discharging the Council's Highway Authority functions in managing and maintaining the highway network, street lighting and public rights 
of way. 
Control of the movement and parking of vehicles.
Development and implementation of transport policies and schemes in support of the Local Transport Plan.
Control of the engineering and transport implications of developer proposals.
Improving road safety. Includes 27 school crossing patrols equivalent to 4 FTE's.

Business Unit: Residents & Visitors Services

Executive Head: Sue Cheriton

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Section 
38 

Income

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

556 Highways - Cyclical 
Maintenance

2858 78 945 0 0 1,308 0 -25 -35 0 -60 1,248

553 Highways - Network Co-
ordination

36311.5 0 109 0 0 472 -200 0 0 0 -200 272

555 Highways - 
Rechargeable Works

00 72 0 0 0 72 -116 0 0 -95 -211 -139

557 Highways - Roads 00 112 1,314 0 0 1,426 -171 0 0 0 -171 1,255

579 Highways - Structures 00 9 55 0 0 64 0 0 0 0 0 64

P
age 19



Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Section 
38 

Income

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

581 Highways - Winter 
Maintenance

00 0 141 0 0 141 0 0 0 0 0 141

568 Seafront Illuminations 00 62 44 0 0 106 0 0 0 0 0 106

576 Street Lighting 632 570 506 0 0 1,139 0 0 0 0 0 1,139

711 903 3,114 0 0 4,728 -487 -25 -35 -95 -642 4,086TOTAL 21.5

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 20



Service Title: Culture and Sport

Manager: Richard Brown

Brief Description of Service:

This service coordinates, supports and develops the cultural sector in Torbay. Work carried out by this department makes an economic impact on the 
council area including cultural tourism. The department works in an enabling and partnership role with cultural and arts groups, individuals and outside 
agencies including national bodies. The Music Hub has also moved across from Children's services. This is fully funded by the Arts Council. 
The Sport section includes the Development of Sport and physical activity, Sports Pitches, Bowling Greens & Tennis Courts. It also includes the 
Management of the Torbay Leisure Centre contract and the Velopark.
Transport Co-ordination manages subsidised public transport.

Business Unit: Residents & Visitors Services

Executive Head: Sue Cheriton

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

Torbay 
Leisure 
Centre

No of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

550 Arts Development 682.65 0 11 0 0 79 -10 0 0 0 -10 69

551 Events 560 3 80 0 0 139 -98 0 0 0 -98 41

577 Music Hub 301.5 0 112 0 0 142 -142 0 0 0 -142 0

565 Sport 1064.5 160 177 2 237 682 -297 0 0 0 -297 385

570 Transport Co-Ordination 241.5 0 18 0 0 42 -23 0 -8 0 -31 11

P
age 21



Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

Torbay 
Leisure 
Centre

No of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

284 163 398 2 237 1,084 -570 0 -8 0 -578 506TOTAL 10.2

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 22



Service Title: Museums & Theatres

Manager: Alan Davies

Brief Description of Service:

Torre Abbey is directly managed and funded by Torbay Council, the dedicated museums services revenue budgets also provide annual grant support to 
Torquay Museum, Brixham Museum and the Archives Service at the Devon Records Office currently Managed by the Devon & Somerset Heritage Trust.
Theatres include the costs associated with the direct management of the Palace Theatre in Paignton. Contractual payments associated with the 
management  agreements for Babbacombe and Princess Theatres are also included here. These theatres cater for the tourist trade and residents alike on 
a year round basis. The Palace Theatre operates and manages the Council's youth theatre known as the Acting Factory.

Business Unit: Residents & Visitors Services

Executive Head: Sue Cheriton

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

560 Museum Services - inc 
Torre Abbey

2305.9 85 256 0 0 571 -227 0 -30 0 -257 314

566 Theatres & Public 
Entertainment

1112 42 136 0 0 289 -232 0 0 0 -232 57

341 127 392 0 0 860 -459 0 -30 0 -489 371TOTAL 7.9

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 23



Service Title: RVS Management, Support and Commissioning

Manager: Sue Cheriton

Brief Description of Service:

Divisional management & support including all group management staff across Residents and Visitor Services.
Administration support to Residents and Visitor Service areas including Civic Functions.

Business Unit: Residents & Visitors Services

Executive Head: Sue Cheriton

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

571 Chairman of the Council 50 0 16 0 0 21 0 0 0 0 0 21

554 Place - Project fund 00 0 19 0 0 19 0 0 0 0 0 19

564 RVS - Management & 
Admin Support

22711 0 131 0 0 358 0 0 0 0 0 358

580 Torbay Coast and 
Countryside Trust

00 0 183 0 0 183 0 0 0 0 0 183

569 Tourism Marketing 00 0 350 0 0 350 0 0 -100 0 -100 250

P
age 24



Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

232 0 699 0 0 931 0 0 -100 0 -100 831TOTAL 11

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 25



Service Title: Library Services

Manager: Nick Niles

Brief Description of Service:

The library service provides a wide range of services and resources to support local people in their work, study and leisure pursuits, including:
4 branch libraries 
Lending Services - books and audio-visual materials
Reference, information and local studies.
Young people's services & Inclusion Services for disadvantaged people.

Business Unit: Residents & Visitors Services

Executive Head: Sue Cheriton

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

558 Library Services - 
Operational & Mng't

82330.78 48 182 0 0 1,053 -74 0 0 0 -74 979

559 Library Services - 
Resources Fund

00 0 109 0 0 109 0 0 0 0 0 109

823 48 291 0 0 1,162 -74 0 0 0 -74 1,088TOTAL 30.8

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 26



 

 

 
Residents And Visitor Services         Executive Head: Sue Cheriton   
            Executive Lead: Cllr Derek Mills, Cllr Nicole Amil, Cllr Robert Excell  

 
Agreed Savings – Outline 

details 
Savings for 

2015/16 
Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Engineering Services   
1. Engineering 

Services 
 
Increase income  

 
 

23,000  None April 
2015 

Internal proposal  
 
More requirements to undertake external and grant funded work with less 
provision of service to supporting Council Projects. 
 
Staff may be reduced if income cannot be achieved.  
 
New projects internally may be affected 

353 

 
Agreed Savings  – Outline 

details 
Savings for 

2015/16 
Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Public Toilets   
 
2. Public Toilets  

 
Commercialisation of 
Preston toilet block  

 
 

 

 10,000 None April 
2015 

Minor proposal  
 
Commercialisation of Preston toilet block - The toilet will be offered on a long 
lease under competitive tender; the requirement of the lease is that toilet 
facilities for use by the public must be provided on a like for like basis, 
although the tenant can use the building for other uses such as a restaurant or 
water sports centre. 
 
 

562 

P
age 27



 

 

 
 
Agreed Savings – Outline 

details 
Savings for 

2015/16 
Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Recreation and Landscape  
 

3. Parks and Open 
Spaces  

 
Reduction in maintenance 

 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 
 

 20,000    563 

4. Parks and Open 
Spaces  

 
Reduction in maintenance 
through ordered services 

 
 

 10,000 None April 
2015 

Minor proposal  
 
There is the potential for public dissatisfaction from reduced maintenance of 
parks. When furniture/signs or other structures such as play equipment 
require maintenance these may be removed. Only contracted maintenance 
will take place 

563 

 
  

P
age 28



 

 

 

 
Agreed Savings  – Outline 

details 
Savings for 

2015/16 
Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Highways  
5. Highways 

 
Structural Maintenance 
elements – reducing 
ordered work values / 
reduced highway repairs 
through ordered works  
 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 95,000     557 

6. Highways 
 
Structural Maintenance 
elements – reducing 
ordered work values / 
reduced highway repairs 
through ordered works 

 
 

 60,000 None April 
2015 

Minor Proposal  
 
Reductions in replacing/upgrading roads & pavements.  
 
Resources will be targeted to areas of the highest risk and the Council will 
encourage the public to report defects on-line.  
 
There is the potential for public dissatisfaction as condition of highways may 
deteriorate over time. 

 

557 

P
age 29



 

 

Agreed Savings  – Outline 
details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

7. Highways 
 
Structural Maintenance – 
reduction in staffing  

 
 

 60,000 Associated 
redundancy 

costs and 
pension 
strain if 

applicable 

April 
2015 

Major Proposal 
 
Resources will be targeted to areas of the highest risk and the Council will 
encourage the public to report defects on-line. There is the potential for 
longer response times. 

There is the potential for public dissatisfaction as condition of highways may 
deteriorate over time. 

553 

8. Highways 
Street Lighting 
 

(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 25,000 
 

   576 

9. Street Lighting 
 
Remove defective street 
lighting columns as they 
fail 

 
 

 60,000 TBA  April 
2015 

Minor Proposal  
 
As lighting columns fail these will be removed and not replaced, unless at 
main roads or junctions. This is a discretionary service. Longer term there will 
be less street lighting across Torbay (significant impact within 5 years).  Main 
road and junctions will be maintained as the highest priority but potentially 
back lanes or roads servicing small number of properties will no longer be 
illuminated. 

576 

 
  

P
age 30



 

 

 

Agreed Savings – Outline 
details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Transport Co-ordination (Subsidised Transport)  

10. Removal of 
council funding 
for the existing 
four subsidised 
bus services in 
Torbay- 
 

Route 11 Two additional 
early morning journeys 
from The Strand Torquay 
to Teignmouth Triangle. 
 
Route 17/17A Four 
evening return journeys 
from Bank Lane Brixham 
to Halfway House and 
Copythorne Road. 
 
Route 22/22E Two early 
mornings and five evening 
return journeys between 
Brixham Bank Lane and 
Kingswear, jointly 
subsidised with Devon 
County Council. 
 
Route 25 Eight return 
journeys between 
Paignton and Stoke 

 42,650  April 
2015 

Major proposal 
Risk of legal challenge in respect of the Councils duty to consider the need for 
public transport not otherwise met by the commercial operators with 
particular consideration for the elderly and disabled. 
 
As per the Transport Act 1985:- It is the duty of the County Council (Unitary 
Authority) to secure the provision of such passenger transport services as the 
council considers appropriate to meet any public transport requirement within 
the County which would not in its view be met apart from action taken by the 
Council. 
 
Once the public transport requirements have been identified, the Council is 
entitled to take into consideration the funds available and the source of the 
funds. However the Council must have regard to the transport needs of the 
elderly and disabled. 
 
The Council currently operates a fare car scheme that provides subsidised taxi 
services for the elderly and disabled. 
 
A needs assessment has been undertaken regarding this service.  
 
An Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken in relation to this 
proposal which includes consultation results.  

 
It has been agreed that £7,500 transitional funding is applied for the number 
25 route for 2015/16. This funding is not available to support any other route. 
This contract is with Devon County Council and will have to be agreed with 
them. 

570 

P
age 31



 

 

Agreed Savings – Outline 
details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Gabriel which is jointly 
subsidised with Devon 
County Council 
 

11.  Removal of 
unallocated bus 
subsidy funding 

 
 
 
 

 38,350  April 
2015 

Internal proposal 
 
No risk as funding currently unallocated 

570 

12. Payment 
towards rail 
infrastructure 
project 
terminates 

 
 

 25,000  April 
2015 

Internal proposal 
 
Payment ceases in 2016/17 as part of a three year agreement, however the 
saving can be achieved in 2015/16 through accrual of 2014/15 unallocated 
subsidies to cover these costs. 

570 

13.  Removal of 
Public Transport 
Administration 
and supporting 
costs including 
timetable 
printing 

 
 

 38,700 Associated 
redundancy 

costs and 
pension 
strain if 

applicable 

April 
2015 

Internal proposal 
 
Provision for continued contact with Public Transport Operators and 
management of the Fare Car scheme will need to be managed within the 
future service planning. 
 
Time table data now provide via web sites however resource will need to be 
planned to update information  

570 

 
  

P
age 32



 

 

  

Agreed Savings – Outline 
details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Arts Development & Events Support   
14. Arts and Events 

Development 
 
Arts – recharging staff 
resources as part of future 
grant allocation or delete 
vacant post 

 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

10,000     550 

15. Events  
 
Reduction in funding to 
external organisations  

 
 

 

 20,000 None April 
2015 

Minor proposal 
 
This funding is provided for varying events each year depending on current 
projects, these may range from Maritime events, through Cycling to Arts and 
Musical Festivals. Each event proposed is assessed for the economic and 
cultural benefits it may bring to Torbay. 

551 

P
age 33



 

 

Agreed Savings – Outline 
details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

16. Arts and Events 
Development 

 
Children’s Week Festival 

 
 
 
 

 13,900 None April 
2015 

Major proposal 
 
This festival is a regular feature that takes place in August each year and 
attracts residents and visitors. This is supported by external funding and costs 
£25k on average – 14k of which is currently received from the Council. 
 
There may be some public concern on the loss of the festival. This will impact 
on voluntary sector providers 
 
There is the potential that if alternative funding cannot be identified the event 
is unlikely to continue. 
 
An Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken in relation to this 
proposal which includes consultation results.  

551 

  
 
 

Agreed Savings – Outline 
details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Museums (Including Torre Abbey and Archives)   
17. Torre Abbey  

 
Increase income and 
reducing subsidy 

 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

20,000 30,000    560 

P
age 34



 

 

Agreed Savings – Outline 
details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

18. Museums Grants 
 
Savings generated through 
Future Museums Project 

 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 20,000    560 

19. Museums Grants 
 
Further reduction in 
Museum Grants 

 
 
 

 

 20,000 None  April 
2015 

Major proposal  
 
This would mean in 2015/16 museum would lose approx 40% of their budgets.  
 
There is the potential risk that if savings cannot be achieved from the Future 
Museum Project savings may need to be identified elsewhere within this 
service.  
 
An Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken in relation to this 
proposal which includes consultation results.  
 
It is agreed that £30,000 transitional funding is applied in 2015/16 (pro rata 
for Brixham & Torquay Museums) to enable the Future Museum Project to be 
completed which will hopefully provide a sustainable future model to assist 
the management of all the museums in Torbay. 

560 

20. Archives 
 
Reduction to trust  
 
 

 15,000 None April 
2015 

Internal Proposal  
 
Contract Re-negotiation with South West Heritage Trust who currently 
provide the archive service for £115,000 per annum  

560 

   
  

P
age 35



 

 

 
Agreed Savings – Outline 

details 
Savings for 

2015/16 
Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Theatres and Public Entertainment   
21. Palace Theatre  

 
Increase income and 
explore opportunities for 
alternative delivery with nil 
subsidy  

 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 22,000    566 

 
  

P
age 36



 

 

 
Agreed Savings – Outline 

details 
Savings for 

2015/16 
Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Sports Development   
22. Sports 

Development 
 
Future State Project (FSP) 
transfer of sports booking 
and league support to 
TOR2 or alternative 
provider 

 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 25,000    565 

23. Acorn Centre 
Grant 

 
Reduction in funding  

 
Further to the agreement 
made at Council in 
February 2014 to cease the 
grant to the Acorn centre it 
is now proposed that a 
grant of £5,000 per annum 
is made to the centre.  

 

 45,300 None April 
2015 

Internal Proposal 
 
This proposal will support the Acorn Centre in unlocking funding sources from 
other partners  

565 

P
age 37



 

 

Agreed Savings – Outline 
details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

 
24. Natural 

Environment and 
Sports Facilities 

 
Parks and open spaces – 
part of Future State Project 
(FSP)  
 
Transfer to clubs of repairs 
to parks and cyclical 
maintenance. 
 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 
 

  
40,000 

 
 

 
 

 563 

25. Natural 
Environment and 
Sports Facilities 

 
Sports Pitches  – reduce 
ordered services and stop 
improvement programmes 

 
 

 17,000 None April 
2015 

Minor Proposal  
 
There will be reduced ability to support improvement projects.  
 
Savings will impact on contractors of ordered services e.g. no repairs to 
fences, replacement of signs or boundary hedges cut. 
 
Sports Pitches may not have improvements implemented. 

563 

 

P
age 38



 

 

  
 
Agreed Savings – Outline 

details 
Savings for 

2015/16 
Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Management, Support, Contract Management & Chairman’s Budget    
26. Environment 

Commissioner 
 
Reduced project work on 
new initiatives  
 

 23,000 None  April 
2015 

Internal Proposal  
 
Reduced project work on new initiatives  
 

554 

27. Reduction in 
staffing 

 
Reductions within 
Residents and Visitor 
Services  
 
 
 
 

 141,850 Associated 
redundancy 

costs and 
pension 
strain if 

applicable 

April 
2015 

Minor Proposal  
 
less functions would be delivered across the service 
 
Less capacity to deliver new initiatives and projects. 
 

564 

28. TCCT 
 
Reduction in grant over 
two years to Torbay Coast 
and Countryside Trust 
(TCCT) 

 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 50,000    580 

P
age 39



 

 

Agreed Savings – Outline 
details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

29. ERTC 
 
Reduction in grant over 
two years to the English 
Riviera Tourism Company 
(ERTC) 

 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 85,000   
 
 

 569 

30. ERTC  
Reduce subsidy to 
the ERTC 

 165,000  April 
2015 

This saving is to reduce the grant funding to the ERTC leaving a grant of 
£250,000 in 2015/16. (This proposal takes account of a previously agreed 
reduction of £85,000 - This was agreed at the Council meeting held in 
February 2014.) 
 
There is the potential risk that this will result in destination marketing and the 
delivery of the visitor service information being reduced as a result of this 
reduction. 
 
It is agreed that £100,000 of transitional funding is applied in 2015/16 for one 
year only (this is in addition to the grant of £250,000). 

569 

31. TOR2 Reductions 
 
Client reductions (FSP) 
Savings generated from 
efficiencies in monitoring 
TOR2 contract 

 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 29,500    556 

 
  

P
age 40



 

 

 
 
Agreed Savings – Outline 

details 
Savings for 

2015/16 
Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Libraries (Including Library Resources Fund)   
32. Reduction in the 

Library relief 
staffing budget 

 
 
 
 

 7,500 Associated 
redundancy 

costs and 
pension 
strain if 

applicable 

April 
2015 

Internal Proposal  
 
Increased pressure in trying to maintain adequate staffing levels in the event 
of planned, unplanned or long term absences in frontline departments. 
There is the potential that as a result of the reduction in relief staff this may 
result in unscheduled closures.  

558 

33. Loss of post of 
Inclusion Services 
Coordinator (0.51 
fte) within Library 
services  

 
 

 11,900 Associated 
redundancy 

costs and 
pension 
strain if 

applicable 

April 
2015 

Minor Proposal  
 
Loss of role for disadvantaged groups including elderly and disabled. Cessation 
of Blind Club at Torquay library, and of Prime Time Group (for age 55+) at 
Paignton Library.  
 
Remaining member of staff in this section will transfer to Bibliographical 
Services team, together with responsibility for RNIB subscription service for 
Visually Impaired Persons and residential home service. 
 
An Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken in relation to this 
proposal which includes consultation results.  

 

558 P
age 41



 

 

Agreed Savings – Outline 
details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

34. Staffing changes 
within Library 
services. 

 
 

 93,150 Associated 
redundancy 

costs and 
pension 
strain if 

applicable 

April 
2015 

Internal Proposal  
 
This will mean fewer functions can be delivered across the service 
 
Limited capacity to support the delivery of new initiatives and projects in line 
with national drivers such as ‘national offers’. 
 
Current range of services, in line with current expectations of a modern library 
service, and overall service, will continue to be supported, albeit on a reduced 
basis.  

558 

35. Reduction in 
managerial and 
Supervisory roles 
at Paignton 
Library and 
Information 
Centre 

 
 

 5,500 Associated 
redundancy 

costs and 
pension 
strain if 

applicable 

April 
2015 

Internal Proposal  
 
Reduction in line with removal of the mobile library service, formerly 
managed by staff at Paignton Library and Information Centre (PLAIC), in 2014. 

558 

36. Alignment of 
staffing structure 
at Torquay 
Library 

 
 

 4,500  April 
2015 

Internal Proposal  
 
Vacancy management 

558 

P
age 42



 

 

Agreed Savings – Outline 
details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

37. Reduction in 
Library resources 
fund 
 

 

 67,850  April 
2015 

Major Proposal  
 
Resources fund reductions will mean that fewer books, DVDs, CDs, spoken 
word materials and online resources will be purchased. 
 

An Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken in relation to this 
proposal which includes consultation results.  

 

559 

38. General efficiency 
savings within 
Libraries  

 

 

 2,100  April 
2015 

Internal Proposal  558 

 
 

P
age 43



HIGHWAYS 

HIGHWAYS ACT 1980

Legislation reference Matter for which a charge Comments Charges Proposed Charges

Highways Act 1980 may be made 2014/15 O/S VAT 2015/16 O/S VAT

Permission to place skip on the Consideration and administration within H/A published notice

public highway of application (10 days) period (more than 10 days) £41.25 £42.50

(Section 139) Outside H/A published notice

period (10 days and less) £82.50 £85.00

Where a site visit is required 

during consideration of charge for each site visit REMOVE £85.00

application

Where an inspection of the site charge for each site visit £82.50 £85.00

reveals non-compliance

Where the operation obstructs

an on-street parking bay charge for loss of revenue £21.00 £21.50

administered by the Council

Scaffolding and gantry licence Consideration and administration within H/A published notice

(Section 169) of application (10 days) period (more than 10 days) £41.25 £42.50

Outside H/A published notice

period (10 days and less) £82.50 £85.00

Where a site visit is required 

during consideration of charge for each site visit REMOVE £85.00

application

Where an inspection of the site charge for each site visit £82.50 £85.00

reveals non-compliance

Where the operation obstructs

an on-street parking bay charge for loss of revenue £21.00 £21.50

administered by the Council

Consent to deposit building Consideration and administration within H/A published notice

materials / make temporary of application period (more than 10 days) £41.25 £42.50

excavation in the highway. Outside H/A published notice

(Section 171) period (10 days or less) £82.50 £85.00

Where a site visit is required 

during consideration of charge for each site visit £82.50 £85.00

application

Where an inspection of the site charge for each site visit £82.50 £85.00

reveals non-compliance

Where the operation obstructs

an on-street parking bay charge for loss of revenue £21.00 £21.50

administered by the Council

RESIDENTS & VISITORS SERVICES DRAFT FEES AND CHARGES FOR 15-16

P
age 44



Legislation reference Matter for which a charge Comments Charges Proposed Charges

Highways Act 1980 may be made 2014/15 O/S VAT 2015/16 O/S VAT

Consent not to erect hoarding or Consideration and administration within H/A published notice

fence during building of application period (3 days or less) £41.25 £42.50

(Section 172) Outside H/A published notice

period (3 days or less) £82.50 £85.00

Where a site visit is required 

during consideration of charge for each site visit £82.50 £85.00

application

Where an inspection of the site charge for each site visit £78.75 £85.00

reveals non-compliance

Where the operation obstructs

an on-street parking bay charge for loss of revenue

administered by the Council

Inspection of hoarding or fence Inspections made by H/A to 

set up during building monitor compliance with charge for each site visit £82.50 £85.00

(Section 172 & 173) statutory duties

Adopted Highway £41.25 £42.50P
age 45



Legislation reference Matter for which a charge Comments Charges Proposed Charges

Highways Act 1980 may be made 2014/15 O/S VAT 2015/16 O/S VAT

Control of construction of cellars Consideration and administration At Cost

under street of application

(Section 179) Where a site visit is required 

during consideration of charge for each site visit £82.50 £85.00

application

Where an inspection of the site charge for each site visit £82.50 £85.00

reveals non-compliance

(Section 180[1]) of application

Where a site visit is required 

during consideration of charge for each site visit £82.50 £85.00

application

Where an inspection of the site charge for each site visit £82.50 £85.00

reveals non-compliance

Control of light into cellars Consideration and administration At Cost

(Section 180 [2]) of application

Where a site visit is required 

during consideration of charge for each site visit £82.50 £85.00

application

Where an inspection of the site charge for each site visit £82.50 £85.00

reveals non-compliance

Vehicle crossings over footways Consideration of a request to Works executed by H/A At Cost

and verges execute such works as are contractor

(Section 184) specified in the request for Works executed by 

constructing a vehicle crossing applicants contractor £41.25 £42.50

Where a site visit is required 

during consideration of charge for each site visit £82.50 £85.00

application

Where an inspection of the site charge for each site visit £82.50 £85.00

reveals non-compliance

Clearance of accident debris Anything done by H/A in 

(Section 41 & 130) connection with clearance of At Cost

accident debris

P
age 46



Legislation reference Matter for which a charge Comments Charges Proposed Charges

Highways Act 1980 may be made 2014/15 O/S VAT 2015/16 O/S VAT

Assistance to members of the public

This actively relates to requests which do 

not form part of the  Council's service e.g. 

removal of items from gullies

During working hours 23.25 + VAT 23.95 + VAT

Pavement Café Permit For the issue of a pavement

café permit, use and policing

thereof. 

During times stipulated

on license.

There may be additional rental charges levied on areas of land 

in the ownership of Torbay Council

Band 1-up to 10sqm-£226.00 pa

Band 2- 10 to 20sqm-£336.25 pa.

Band 3 - 20 to 30sqm-£452.25 pa.

Band 4 - over 30sqm-£567.50 pa.

Band 1-up to 10sqm-£232.75 pa

Band 2- 10 to 20sqm-£346.50 pa.

Band 3 - 20 to 30sqm-£465.75 pa.

Band 4 - over 30sqm-£584.50 pa.

P
age 47



ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION

Legislation reference Matter for which a charge Comments Charges Proposed Charges

Road Traffic Regulation Act may be made 2014/15 O/S VAT 2015/16

1984

Road closure & traffic restrictions Anything done by traffic authority under section 14 (1)

(Section 14[1] & [2]) in connection with the making (over 5 days) £1,223.00 £1,259.70

of an order Signing Schedule £120.00 £123.60

Total £1,343.00 £1,383.30

under section 14 (2)

(under 5 days) £240.00 £247.00

Optional signing schedule for

alternative route for Section £120.00 £123.50

14 (2) (under 14 days)

Additional exceptional See New Roads & Street

administrative work by traffic Works Act, Co-Ordination 

authority Code of Practice S7.3.22 At cost At cost

Advertising At cost At cost

Suspension of parking Anything done by the local traffic

(Section 49 [4]) authority in connection with or in

consequence of a request to At cost At cost

suspend the use of a parking 

place or part of it

Route signs Consideration of request to 

(Section 65 [1]) permit a traffic sign to indicate At cost At cost

the route to specified land or

premises

The placing by the traffic 

authority of a sign in accordance

with a request of the kind At cost At cost

referred to in the previous para.

Provision of Disabled Parking Bay Anything done by the local traffic

authority in connection with or in £335.25 £345.30

consequence of a request to 

provide a disabled parking bay

Provision of access lines Anything done by the local traffic

authority in connection with or in £96.75 £99.65

consequence of a request to 

place access lines

P
age 48



Legislation reference Matter for which a charge Comments Charges Proposed Charges

Road Traffic Regulation Act may be made 2014/15 O/S VAT 2015/16

1984

Street Naming & Numbering 

Amending House/Number change Cost per address £39.75 £40.95

New Development - Naming Street Cost per street £173.50 £178.70

New Development - Per plot  Cost per plot £37.00 £38.10

P
age 49



CHARGES OCCASIONED BY THE ENFORCEMENT OF OTHER LEGISLATION

Legislation reference Matter for which a charge Comments Charges Proposed Charges

Traffic Signs & General may be made 2014/15 O/S VAT 2015/16

Directions Regs 1994

Portable traffic signals Design work by H/A At cost At cost

(Reg 32 para 47 & TD 21/85)

Damage to council property Anything done by the authority 

to repair damage caused by At cost At cost

others

Technical Information Any documentation supplied by

the authority to others.

Basic Search

Large Search

Extra Large Search

£140.50 + VAT

£242.00 + VAT

£451.75 + VAT

£144.70 + VAT

£250.00 + VAT

£464.00 + VAT

P
age 50



STREET WORKS

Regulation Made Matter for which a charge Comments Charges Proposed Charges

Under may be made 2014/15 O/S VAT 2015/16

NRSWA 1991 O/S VAT 

Random sample Inspection fee per unit of Amended by Street Works

(Section 75) inspection (inspection fees) (Amend.) £47.50 £47.50

Regs 1998

Investigatory work from routine 

inspection

Investigatory works from third Inspection fee per unit of Amended by HAUC 

party report (Section 72 [1] ) inspection agreement 1998 £68.00 £68.00

Defect inspections Defect inspection, Joint visit,

(Section 72 [2] ) remedial works in progress, £50.00 £50.00

remedial works complete - per

unit of inspection

Defect Notice Copy of defect notice Per copy £49.50 £51.00

Inspection checklist Copy of inspection checklist Per copy £49.50 £51.00

Street Works Licence licence for new apparatus

(Section 50) 1. Capitalised fee £177.00 £182.00

2. Administration fee Fee amended by above £203.00 £210.00

3. Inspection fee (3 phases x regulations £150.00 £150.00

    £50.00 per inspection unit

Total £534.50 £542.00

Authorisation for works on 

existing apparatus

1. Administration fee Fee amended by above £116.00 £119.50

2. Inspection fee (3 phases x regulations £150.00 £150.00

    £50.00 per inspection unit)

Total £270.25 £269.50

P
age 51



MISCELLANEOUS LICENCES

Misc. Licences Matter for which a charge Comments Charges Proposed Charges

may be made 2014/15 O/S VAT 2015/16 O/S VAT 

Overhead structures (including Consideration and administration within H/A published notice

tower cranes, banners etc.) of application period (more than 3 days) £41.25 £42.50

Outside H/A published notice

period (3 days or less) £82.50 £85.00

Where a site visit is required 

during consideration of charge for each site visit £82.50 £85.00

application

Where an inspection of the site charge for each site visit £82.50 £85.00

reveals non-compliance

P
age 52



RECREATION & PARKS 

Outdoor Sport Coverage Comments Charges Proposed Charges 

2014/15 INC VAT 2015/16 INC VAT

SOCCER, RUGBY, HOCKEY

Seniors per match (including showers/changing)  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Juniors per match (15 years and under)  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

 No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Seniors per match (excluding showers/changing)  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Juniors per match (15 years and under)  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

FOOTBALL LEAGUE CLUBS ONLY

Season Fee – League and Cup fixtures (including showers/changing)

Saturday Clubs – Seniors  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

(18 games – additional games pro rata)  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

15 games  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

12 games  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

 No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Sunday Clubs – Senior  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

(12 games – additional games pro rata)  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

ALL JUNIOR TEAMS

Under 8’s - 12 games  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Additional games pro rata  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Under 9’s & 10’s - 12 games  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Additional games pro rata  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Under 11’s – 12 games  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Additional games pro rata  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Under 12’s – 12 games  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

P
age 53



Additional games pro rata  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

 No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Additional games pro rata  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Under 18’s – 12 games  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Additional games pro rata  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

HIRE OF PITCH 

Seniors  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Juniors  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Mini  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Hire of Changing Rm per Day  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Under 13’s & 14’s games – 12 games

per day (Tournaments etc ) per pitch

P
age 54



TRAINING SESSIONS

(Not Pitch) per session  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Showers/changing facilities per session  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

SCHOOLS  

Schools Sports Day No marking or changing rooms  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Schools Sports Day With Changing rooms  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

CRICKET SENIORS

All day Saturday or Sunday matches  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Afternoon or evening matches excluding Saturday and Sunday  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

CRICKET JUNIORS

All day Saturday and Sunday matches

Under 18’s  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Under 14’s  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Afternoon or evening matches Excluding Saturday and Sunday

Under 18’s  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Under 14’s  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

ATHLETICS TRAINING SESSION

 No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

 

Use of field 

Torre Valley North, including marked track

P
age 55



OUTDOOR SPORT

TENNIS

(per court, per hour)

Playdec surface/classic  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Grass (Oldway only)courts 7 -12  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Grass (Oldway only)court 13  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Equipment hire  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Court & equipment hire:-  Hard Court  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

                           Grass Courts 7 - 12  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

                                 Grass Court 13  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Booking fee Including in court fee  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Lost Ball  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Approved local clubs 

Per court, per hour  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Floodlit, per court, per hour

Abbey 

Oldway

Junior rate per child during set times
* Junior clubs receive a 50% discount

NETBALL SENIORS

Negotiated price with one group  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

NETBALL JUNIORS

Under 18’s  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Under 14’s  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

P
age 56



BOWLS

Abbey Park

Per person, per hour (including use of

woods)  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Upton Park and Cary Park  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Rink and equipment (max 5 people)  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Family Ticket (2 adults and up to 3 children)  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Season Ticket (Traditional bowling season)  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Upton Park  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

Touring Teams per rink per match from:-  No increases to effect income to the council  No increases to effect income to the council 

HELICOPTER LANDINGS Coverage Comments Charges Proposed Charges 

2014/15 + VAT 2015/16 + VAT

Price per landing up to 2hrs Week Days - 09.00am - 17.00pm 35.00£                                                          35.00£                                                             

Additional hourly rate 12.00£                                                          12.00£                                                             

Price per landing up to 2hrs Out of Hours  inc 5pm  til Dusk 50.00£                                                          50.00£                                                             

Additional hourly rate 18.00£                                                          18.00£                                                             

Price per landing up to 2 hrs Saturday 50.00£                                                          50.00£                                                             

Additional hourly rate 18.00£                                                          18.00£                                                             

Price per landing up to 2hrs Sunday 65.00£                                                          65.00£                                                             

Additional hourly rate 25.00£                                                          25.00£                                                             

P
age 57



ALLOTMENTS Coverage Comments Charges Proposed Charges 

2014/15 O/S VAT 2015/16 O/S VAT 

Annual Charge

Per 25 Square Metre with water 4.20£                                                                    4.20£                                                                       

Per 25 Square Metre without water 2.70£                                                                    2.70£                                                                       

Tool Lockers – Sherwell Valley 2.50£                                                                    2.50£                                                                       

PARKWOOD LEISURE Coverage Comments Charges Proposed Charges 
TORBAY LEISURE CENTRE 2014/15 INC VAT 2015/16 INC VAT

SWIMMING

Adult No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Junior No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

60+/Disabled No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Early Morning Members only No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Family ticket 2 adults & up to 3 children No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Season Tickets:-    3 Months No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

                              6 Months No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

                              12 Months No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

AQUATONE No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

SPORTS ACTIVITIES

Peak No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Off Peak No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Off Peak No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Peak No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Off Peak No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Table Tennis        1 hour No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

5-a-side               1 hour No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Health & Fitness Suite No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

RECREATION ACTIVITIES

Adult Recreation No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Crèche No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

50+ Recreation No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Soccer School No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Sequence/Tea Dance No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Squash                 ¾ hour       

Junior Squash                    

Badminton           1 hour       

P
age 58



EQUIPMENT HIRE

Racket No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Football No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Towel No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Shower Only No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

AREA HIRE

Sports Hall                     Whole per hour No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Swimming Pool Whole per hour No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Swimming Pool Third per hour No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Minor Hall Whole per hour No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Beesley Room Whole per hour No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

AEROBICS

Aerobics per hour No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Step Aerobics per hour No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

ALL-WEATHER PITCH

Off Peak No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Peak No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Floodlit No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Whole Area  - ½ hour     Off Peak No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Half Area -  1 hour          Off Peak No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Peak No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Floodlit No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

NON-MEMBER ENTRANCE FEES

Adult No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Junior No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

60+/Disabled No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Sauna Per Person No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

MEMBERSHIP

Adult No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Junior No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Family No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

60+/Disabled No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Car Park Pass Only available with membership No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Holiday – 1 week family (includes parking) No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

Whole Area 1 hour P
age 59



TORQUAY GIRLS GRAMMAR SCHOOL Coverage Comments Charges Proposed Charges

SCHOOL 2014/15 INC VAT 2015/16 INC VAT

A.T.P – COMMUNITY USE

Whole Area Per hour No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

7-a-side Per Match No increases to effect income to the council No increases to effect income to the council

PALACE THEATRE Coverage Comments Charges Proposed Charges 

2014/15 exempt VAT 2015/16  exempt VAT 

Commercial Hire Day Rate 720.00£                                                  750.00£                                                    

Per Hour  (minimum 2) 75.00£                                                    80.00£                                                      

Additional Technical Per hour   15.00£                                                    16.00£                                                      

Performance Charge 138.50£                                                  145.00£                                                    

Deposit 20% 20%

Box Office Charge 10%

10% or £155 whichever is the greater plus 

VAT

Credit Commission 3% 3%

Merchandising 25% 25%

Insurance Cover 10% 10%

Poster Sites 2.50£                                                      3.00£                                                        

Use and moving of Tuned Piano

Grand (PLUS VAT) Plus £10 per additional pe5rformance 57.00£                                                    60.00£                                                      

Upright (PLUS VAT) Plus £10 per additional pe5rformance 45.00£                                                    50.00£                                                      

Additional Tuning (PLUS VAT) Per additional tuning 35.00£                                                    35.00£                                                      

NON Commercial Hire Day Rate 510.00£                                                  530.00£                                                    

Per Hour (minimum 3) 10:00  - 18:00 - Sunday's will incur an additional 25% on cost 36.50£                                                    38.00£                                                      

Per Hour (minimum 3) 18:00 -  23:00 - Sunday's will incur an additional 25% on cost 58.00£                                                    60.00£                                                      

Additional Technical Per Hour (minimum 2) 15.00£                                                    16.00£                                                      

Performance Charge 138.50£                                                  145.00£                                                    

Deposit 5% 10%

Box Office Charge 10% or £148 whichever is the greater plus VAT10% or £155 whichever is the greater plus VAT

Credit Commission 3% 3%

Merchandising 5% 10%

Insurance Cover 10% 10%

Poster Sites 3.50£                                                      3.00£                                                        

P
age 60



TORRE ABBEY MANSION Charges Proposed Charges

2014/15 2015/16

Adults £7.50 £7.50

Seniors £6.25 £6.25

Children - (3 - 15 yrs) £3.00 £3.00

Family £18.00 £18.00

Garden £4.00 £4.00

Annual Ticket £15.00 £15.00

Annual Ticket Seniors £12.50 £12.50

Annual Ticket Family £25.50 £25.50

Pre-booked Prices

Education Group (Schools) £3.00 £3.00

Adult Group 6.00 6.00

P
age 61



LIBRARIES

CHARGEABLE ACTIVITIES Coverage Comments Charges Proposed Charges 

2014/15 2015/2016

Overdue Books & Audio Books Adults To a maximum charge of £3.60 16p per item per day 16p per item per day

Overdue Books Over 65's To a maximum charge of £1.92 9p per item per day 9p per item per day

Overdue Audio Books Over 65's To a maximum charge of £3.60 9p per item per day 9p per item per day

Overdue Books 16/17 years To a maximum charge of £1.20 6p per item per day 6p per item per day

Overdue Audio Books 16/17 years To a maximum charge of £3.60 6p per item per day 6p per item per day

Charge for final reminder letter £1.00 £1.00

Hire of music CD's per week 50p 50p

Hire of language courses per 3 weeks £1.00 £1.00

Hire of special language courses 6 weeks in advance £5.00 £5.00

12 weeks in advance £10.00 £10.00

Overdue charges To a maximum of £3.60 16p per day 16p per day

Hire of DVD Yellow Band £2.60 per week £2.60 per week

Overdue charge To a maximum of £6.00 50p per day 50p per day

Blue Band £2.00 per week £2.00 per week

Overdue charge To a maximum of £4.80 40p per day 40p per day

White Band Free for one week Free for one week

Overdue charge To a maximum of £1.80 16p per day 16p per day

Music Sets & Playsets Joint arrangement with Devon Postage fees to be levied Postage fees to be levied

& Plymouth libraries 

Use of Library Computers Members - First Hr Free Free

Members - Extra time £1.00 per half hr £1.00 per half hr

Non-members £2.00 per half hr £2.00 per half hr

use of Fax machine Transmission within UK First Page £1.00 £1.00

Subsequent pages 75p each 75p each 

Transmission outside UK First Page £1.50 £1.50

Subsequent pages £1.00 each £1.00 each

Printed Receipts 50p per page 50p per page 

Photocopies & Printouts  Black & White A4 10p per copy 10p per copy 

Black & White A3 20p per copy 20p per copy 

Colour (where available) A4 50p per copy 50p per copy

Colour (where available) A3 75p per copy 75p per copy 

P
age 62



Reproduction Rights & Royalties Laser Copies A4 £1.50 £1.50

A3 £3.00 £3.00

Laminated Copies A4 £3.00 £3.00

A3 £4.50 £4.50

Photocopies 1 - 4 copies of A4 £2.00 £2.00

(In connection with Local 1 - 4 copies of A3 £3.00 £3.00

Studies/ref research) 

Digital Scans Staff Scanning & emailing of image £5.00 £5.00

staff scanning image & download to £6.00 £6.00

CD/DVD

Digital Copies for slide shows £5.00 per image £5.00 per image 

Royalty Fee's & Charges Illustration in book £14.00 + VAT £14.00 + VAT 

Small reproductions  e.g. Postcards, greeting cards, table £40.00 + VAT £40.00 + VAT

mats, book jackets. 

Large reproductions e.g. Posters, Prints, advertisements £75.00 + VAT £75.00 + VAT

Photographic blow-ups For interior decoration £50.00 + VAT £50.00 + VAT

Television, Video, Film strips, £50.00 + VAT £50.00 + VAT

Slides

Digitised images for use CD-ROMS, £50.00 + VAT £50.00 + VAT

networks & the internet from 

The above fees are for the UK rights for a single use of one black and white image or for a regional broadcast.  For colour reproductions the above fee is doubled. 

World rights, national broadcasts: above fee to be doubled again.  Repeat showings, new additions, above to be halved.  Requests for reproduction rights should be made in writing to the Head of Libraries, Torquay Library, Lymington Road, Torquay, 

TQ1 3DT (who will have discretion in exercising these charges).

P
age 63



HIRE OF MEETING Coverage Comments Charges Proposed Charges 

ROOMS 2014/15 2015/16

Paignton Library & Information Triple Meeting room (10, 11, 12) Profit making £20.40 £20.80

Centre: Non-profit making £9.18 £9.36

Double Meeting room (10, 11) or Profit making £18.36 £18.72

(11, 12) Non-Profit making £8.16 £8.32

Single meeting room (10) or (11) Profit making £12.24 £12.48

or (12) or (13) Non-profit making £5.61 £5.72

Learning Centre Profit making £15.30 £15.60

Non-profit making £9.18 £9.36

Media room Profit making £5.50 NA

Non-profit making £3.00 NA

Torquay Library Room Hire Profit £14.50 £14.50

Non-profit making £7.50 £7.50

Brixham Library Room Hire Profit £9.50 £9.50

Non-profit making £5.50 £5.50

Room hire & Laptops Profit £11.50 £11.50

Non-profit making £7.00 £7.00

Surcharges for hire outside Weekdays £20 per hr or part thereof These charges will be set by TEDC

library opening hours: Weekends £25 per hr or part thereof These charges will be set by TEDC

Replacement Library Card Adult £1.50 £1.50

Under 18/Chronically sick or disabled/ 50p 50p

looked after young people 

P
age 64



CHARGEABLE ACTIVITIES Coverage Comments Charges Proposed Charges 

2014/15 2015/2016

Reservation Charges: Items in stock or on order in Torbay Adult Specific 60p 60p

Child Specific Free Free

items ordered from other Adult Specific £4.00 £4.00

authorities Child Specific n/a n/a 

Renewal £2.00 £2.00

Book Sales: Adult Fiction - Paperback 70p 70p

Adult Fiction - hardback £1.00 £1.00

Mills & Boon, Westerns & Hale

Romances 30p 30p 

Adult Non-fiction hardback £1.20 £1.20

Adult Non-fiction paperback 70p 70p

Childrens 50p 50p

Music Cassettes 30p 30p 

Video's - yellow/blue £2.00 £2.00

Video's - green/white 50p 50p

DVD £2.00 £2.00

CD - Single Set £1.00 £1.00

CD - Multi Set £1.50 £1.50

Childrens audio set 50p 50p

Childrens Single tape/CD 20p 20p

X Box game £8.00 £8.00

P
age 65



Proposed Price Increases for Community Transport Fare Car - 2014/15

Day of the Week Zone Route Current Fares Proposed Increases
Monday 1 Brixham Residents to Sainsburys £4.10 £4.20

1 Brixham/Galmpton Residents to The Willows £5.70 £5.80
2 Paignton South Residents to Sainsburys £3.60 £3.70
2 Paignton South Residents to The Willows £4.90 £5.00

Tuesday 4 Torquay Residents to Torquay Town Centre £3.60 £3.70
4 Torquay Residents to The Willows £3.80 £3.90

Wednesday 4 Torquay Residents to The Willows £3.80 £3.90
Thursday 1 Brixham/Galmpton Residents to Morrisons £4.10 £4.20

1 Brixham/Galmpton Residents to Paignton Town Centre £4.10 £4.20

2 Paignton South Residents to Morrisons £3.70 £3.80
2 Paignton South Residents to Paignton Town Centre £3.70 £3.80

Friday 2 & 3 Paignton Residents to Morrisons £3.70 £3.80
2 & 3 Paignton Residents to Paignton Town Centre £3.70 £3.80

3 Paignton North Residents to The Willows £4.10 £4.20
1 Brixham Residents to Brixham Town Centre - Maximum £5.80

The return journey charges have increased by approximately 2%.  These revised charges are to be

introduced on 1st April 2015 in accordance with the above table.  There are no single journey charges.

P
age 66



TORBAY VELO PARK

 Hire Charges 01-Dec-14
ALL PRICES INCLUDE VAT

Community Users Adult Family (2 adults, 3 juniors) Juniors (U18 in FTE) Seniors (over 60)

Annual Membership + Annual Parking Pass 75.00£                                                    105.00£                                                                                    45.00£                                                           
Annual Membership 60.00£                                                    90.00£                                                                                      30.00£                                                         30.00£                                                           
Monthly 20.00£                                                    35.00£                                                                                      10.00£                                                         10.00£                                                           
Weekly 8.00£                                                       15.00£                                                                                      5.00£                                                           5.00£                                                              
Session (1 hr) 2.00£                                                       6.00£                                                                                        1.50£                                                           1.50£                                                              
Coaching Session/Hour (per person, 1 coach to 12 cyclists) 5.00£                                                       3.00£                                                           3.00£                                                              
Bike hire with Helmet 4.00£                                                       4.00£                                                                                        4.00£                                                           4.00£                                                              
Helmet hire 2.00£                                                       2.00£                                                                                        2.00£                                                           2.00£                                                              

Track Length

Affiliated Clubs and Schools excluding Bike Hire 1.5 Km 1.0Km .5Km
per session (1hr) 36.00£                                                    24.00£                                                         12.00£                                                           
per 4 hr session 120.00£                                                  78.00£                                                         36.00£                                                           
Daily Hire 8 hrs 216.00£                                                  120.00£                                                       72.00£                                                           
per session(+coaching) (1hr) 60.00£                                                    48.00£                                                         42.00£                                                           
per 4 hours session(+coaching) 216.00£                                                  180.00£                                                       156.00£                                                         

Non-Affiliated Clubs
per session (1hr) 48.00£                                                    30.00£                                                         18.00£                                                           
per 4 hr session 156.00£                                                  96.00£                                                         60.00£                                                           
Daily Hire 8 hrs 288.00£                                                  180.00£                                                       108.00£                                                         

Private/Commercial
Hire other events per half day 4hrs 300.00£                                                  180.00£                                                       120.00£                                                         
Hire other events per day 8 hrs 480.00£                                                  300.00£                                                       180.00£                                                         

P
age 67



Spatial Planning

2015/16 Budget Summary (*ATL)

ServiceTitleID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees

Building Control650 347 -324 239.6

Concessionary Fares651 4,416 0 4,4160

Development & Conservation Planning Services653 754 -799 -4522.2

Environmental Policy652 1,688 -1,043 64515.7

Total 7,205 -2,166 5,039

Note:   *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

47.5

P
age 68



 

    

Spatial Planning           Director:  Charles Uzzell 
             Executive Lead: Cllr David Thomas 
 
Building Control 

What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

Through a variety of legislation the Building Control 
service administers and enforces a framework of national 
technical standards covering the design, construction, 
extension, adaptation and use of all types of buildings 
frequented by people.  These standards also include 
provisions for: structural stability, fire protection, means 
of escape in case of fire, drainage, sound insulation, and 
ventilation.  
 

Building Control is a statutory 
service, which regulates the 
built environment.  This 
includes the health, safety, 
welfare and convenience of 
persons in and around 
buildings, the provision of 
access and facilities for 
persons with disabilities and 
the conservation of fuel and 
energy. 
 

In the last calendar year the service collated and 
checked 8,986 applications for compliance with 
Building Regulations. 
 
During 2013/14, 625 fee-paying & 8,361 non-fee 
paying applications were registered and processed. 
6,700 site visits were carried out by officers to advise, 
pre-empt contraventions and satisfactorily complete 
compliant building projects. 
 

650 

 

Spatial Planning and Implementation 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

The receipt, validation, plotting and enforcement of all 
planning applications, administration of appeals. 
 
Production of strategic plans and policies to provide a 
framework for development proposals and investment 
e.g. Local Plan, Development Plans. 
 
Other work includes: Neighbourhood Planning; Local 
Development Orders; Community Infrastructure Levy / 
S106; Sustainability Appraisal and Environmental 
Assessment; Design Review; Masterplanning; Marine and 
nature conservation. 
 
Also incorporating Customer Service & Planning Support 
team. 

Many strategic frameworks 
for planning are statutory e.g. 
Local Plan, National Planning 
Policy Framework 
 
Planning applications are 
regulated by government 
targets 

700 enquiries on the need for planning permission per 
year, 800 pre-application enquiries per year (around 
60 for major development), 1,400 applications per 
year (around 35 for major development i.e. one off 
major developments, not the usual definition of 
major) 
 
Torbay has a duty to ensure a rolling 5 year supply of 
land for new homes. Under the existing Local Plan, 
Torbay has to provide just under 300 new homes per 
annum. 
 
Key indicators (for the Government’s special measures 
provisions) 100% of Major Planning Applications in this 
quarter were determined within 13 weeks. 

653 

P
age 69



 

    

Environmental Policy 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

Environmental Policy covers the statutory and advisory 
role of Strategic and Local Planning, Transportation and 
Environmental Policy/Sustainability. This includes 
preparation of input into the South West Regional Spatial 
Strategy & Regional Transport Strategy, the Council's LDF, 
Local Transport Plan, Transport delivery reports, South 
Devon Link Road, Waste Strategy, Climate Change, 
Sustainable Energy and other strategic plans and policies 
plus associated policy implementation and research, 
monitoring and project management. 

This is a non-statutory service 
which helps the Council meet 
several statutory obligations 
including: 
Production of the Local 
Transport Plan, Municipal 
Waste Management Strategy. 
Reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions, climate change, 
recycling targets 
Obligations in respect of listed 
buildings and National 
Planning Policy framework for 
historic environments 

The four key drivers for the service are: 

 the need to ensure Torbay has the essential 
infrastructure it requires to function 

 the need to ensure compliance with statutory 
responsibilities  

 the need to reduce costs, secure funding and 
support economic growth 

 the need to provide professional advice and 
guidance 
 

 

652 

 

P
age 70



Service Title: Spatial Planning

Manager: Charles Uzzell

Brief Description of Service:

Regulating the construction of the built environment whilst promoting sustainable development and a reduction in carbon emissions, Providing a not for profit Building 
Control service in competition with private sector approved inspectors, Ensuring the health and safety of persons in and around buildings that become dangerous or are 
being demolished.Planning applications, appeals, enforcement, tree control, conservation, grants, design, archaeology. Environmental Policy covers the statutory and 
advisory role of Strategic and Local Planning, Transportation and Environmental Policy/Sustainability. This includes preparation of input into the South West Regional Spatial 
Strategy & Regional Transport Strategy, the Council's LDF, Local Transport Plan, Transport delivery reports, South Devon Link Road, Waste Strategy, Climate Change, 
Sustainable Energy and other strategic plans and policies plus associated policy implementation and research, monitoring and project management.

Includes costs of approval of the Local Plan funded from reserves and the 15/16 costs and LSTF grant income for "Smart Travel Torbay".

Business Unit: Spatial Planning

Director: Charles Uzzell

Supplies 
& 

Services

LSTF Local 
Plan

No of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

650 Building Control 3029.6 0 45 0 0 347 -324 0 0 0 -324 23

653 Development & 
Conservation Planning 

65622.2 1 97 0 0 754 -754 0 -45 0 -799 -45

652 Environmental Policy 59315.7 3 90 695 307 1,688 -18 -695 -330 0 -1,043 645

1,551 4 232 695 307 2,789 -1,096 -695 -375 0 -2,166 623TOTAL 47.5

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 71



Service Title: Concessionary Fares

Manager: Sally Farley

Brief Description of Service:

Payments to operators for the concessionary bus travel scheme.  

The scheme is operated on a national programme.

Business Unit: Spatial Planning

Director: Charles Uzzell

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

651 Concessionary Fares 00 0 4,416 0 0 4,416 0 0 0 0 0 4,416

0 0 4,416 0 0 4,416 0 0 0 0 0 4,416TOTAL 0

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 72



 

    

Spatial Planning           Director:  Charles Uzzell 
             Executive Lead: Cllr David Thomas 
 

Agreed Savings – Outline 
details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implementation 
Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Building Control  
1. Building Control 

Efficiencies 
 

(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 

15,000     

650 

2. Further Building 
Control Efficiency 
Savings 

 30,000 1/4/15  Internal  
Risk to balancing the Full Cost Recovery Account 
 

650 

 
Agreed Savings  – Outline 

details 
Savings for 

2015/16 
Implementation 

Cost 
Delivery 

Date 
Possible Risks / impact of proposals 

 
Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Spatial Planning and Implementation  
3. Planning Fee 

Increased Income  
 

(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 
 

9,000     

653 

P
age 73



 

    

Agreed Savings  – Outline 
details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implementation 
Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

4. Further Planning Fee 
Increased Income 

 

31,000   1/4/15 Internal  
This is in addition to the £9,000 previously identified 
(totalling £40,000). Based on increased demand not fee 
increases. Risk that demand does not increase. 
 

653 

5. Public Health funding 
for Senior Planning 
Officer 

 

25,000   1/4/15 Internal  
No risks, new funding stream for planning work 
 

652 

6. Cancel Limehouse 
software  

 10,000  1/4/15 Internal  
Under- utilised online consultation tool.  Will not be 
needed post Local Plan. 
 

652 

7. Advertise on the Local 
Plan & Website 

 

20,000   1/4/15 Internal  
Risk that the Council appears to endorse advertisements.  
Also risk that income target won’t be achieved 
 

652 

8. Rationalise 
Printers/Copiers 

 

 5,000  1/4/15 Internal  
Reduce number of machines at contract end.  May be 
possible to realise this saving in 14/15 
 

653 

P
age 74



 

    

Agreed Savings  – Outline 
details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implementation 
Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

9. Cut Fair Trade Budget 
 

 1,000  1/4/15 Minor Impact 
This is the sole funding source for the Fair Trade group. 
The Fair Trade Group have managed to attract 
sponsorship in the past but the council grant of £2000 is 
their main income and funds core activities such as 
printing, publicity and events. There is therefore a high 
risk that this group will no longer be able to operate if the 
funding is withdrawn. We may still support the group with 
officer time for meetings. 
 
It is agreed that £1,000 is added back into the base 
budget – therefore the saving is £1,000 (originally 
proposed £2,000)  

652 

10. Increased Income 
from top slicing 
Section 106. 

 

15,000   1/4/15 Internal  
Reliant on increased receipts of Section 106 monies 
 

653 

11. Reduce Local Plan 
Reserve 

 

 45,000  1/4/15 Internal  
One off saving to meet the 15/16 target, will need to find 
equivalent saving 16/17 and beyond.   
 

652 

12. Salary Savings 
 

 75,000 Associated 
redundancy 

costs and 
pension strain if 

applicable 

1/4/15 Internal  
Reduction in staffing – possible impact on service 
delivery. 653/652 

 
 

P
age 75



 

    

Agreed Savings  – Outline 
details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implementation 
Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Environmental Policy  
13. Reduce budget for 

South West Energy 
and Environment 
Group – funding and 
obtain advice as 
needed from 
alternative sources 

 

 3,500  1/4/15 Internal  
Provides competitive consultancy time at a fixed rate.  
Risk that buying in as required may prove more 
expensive.  Also less easy access to research etc to 
support energy / climate change work. 
 

652 

14. Environmental Policy 
Efficiency Savings 

 

 14,500  1/4/15 Internal  
Potential to provide services to other Councils and buy in 
other services 
 

652 

 

P
age 76



Planning Portal - Application Fees - England July 2014 – V4.0 
 

A Guide to the Fees for Planning Applications in England 
 

These fees apply from 31 July 2014 onwards. 
 

This document is based upon ‘The Town and Country Planning (Fees for Applications, 
Deemed Applications, Requests and Site Visits) (England) Regulations 2012’ 

 
The fee should be paid at the time the application is submitted. If you are unsure 
of the fee applicable, please contact your Local Planning Authority. 

 
All Outline Applications 
£385 per 0.1 hectare for sites up to 
and including 2.5 hectares 

Not more than 
2.5 hectares 

£385 per 0.1 hectare 

£9,527 + £115 for each 0.1 in excess 
of 2.5 hectares to a maximum of 
£125,000 

More than 2.5 
hectares 

£9,527 + £115 per 
0.1 hectare 

 
Householder Applications 
Alterations/extensions to a single 
dwelling, including works within 
boundary 

Single dwelling £172 

 
Full Applications (and First Submissions of Reserved Matters) 
Alterations/extensions to two or 
more dwellings, including works 
within boundaries 

Two or more 
dwellings (or two 
or more flats) 

£339 

New dwellings (up to and including 
50) 

New dwellings 
(not more than 
50) 

£385 per dwelling 

New dwellings (for more than 50) 
£19,049 + £115 per additional 
dwelling in excess of 50 up to a 
maximum fee of £250,000 

New dwellings 
(more than 50) 

£19,049 + £115 per 
additional dwelling 

 
Continued on next page… 

Page 77

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2920/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2920/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2920/contents/made
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/localauthoritysearch


Planning Portal - Application Fees - England July 2014 – V4.0 
 

 

Full Applications (and First Submissions of Reserved Matters) continued… 
Erection of buildings (not dwellings, agricultural, glasshouses, plant nor 
machinery): 
Gross floor space to be created by the 
development 

No increase in 
gross floor space 
or no more than 
40 sq m 

£195 

Gross floor space to be created by the 
development 

More than 40 sq 
m but no more 
than 75 sq m 

£385 

Gross floor space to be created by the 
development 

More than 75 sq 
m but no more 
than 3,750 sq m 

£385 for each 75sq m 
or part thereof 

Gross floor space to be created by the 
development 

More than 3,750 
sq m 

£19,049 + £115 for 
each additional 75 sq 
m in excess of 3750 
sq m to a maximum 
of £250,000 

The erection of buildings (on land used for agriculture for agricultural 
purposes) 
Gross floor space to be created by the 
development 

Not more than 
465 sq m 

£80 

Gross floor space to be created by the 
development 

More than 465 sq 
m but not more 
than 540 sq m 

£385 

Gross floor space to be created by the 
development 

More than 540 sq 
m but not more 
than 4,215 sq m 

£385 for first 540 sq 
m + £385 for each 75 
sq m (or part 
thereof) in excess of 
540 sq m 

Gross floor space to be created by the 
development 

More than 4,215 
sq m 

£19,049 + £115 for 
each 75 sq m (or part 
thereof) in excess of 
4,215 sq m up to a 
maximum of 
£250,000 

 
Continued on next page… 

Page 78



Planning Portal - Application Fees - England July 2014 – V4.0 
 

 

Full Applications (and First Submissions of Reserved Matters) continued… 
Erection of glasshouses (on land used for the purposes of agriculture) 
Gross floor space to be created by the 
development 

Not more than 
465 sq m 

£80 

Gross floor space to be created by the 
development 

More than 465 sq 
m 

£2,150 

Erection/alterations/replacement of plant and machinery 
Site area Not more than 5 

hectares 
£385 for each 0.1 
hectare (or part 
thereof) 

Site area More than 5 
hectares 

£19,049 + additional 
£115 for each 0.1 
hectare (or part 
thereof) in excess of 
5 hectares to a 
maximum of 
£250,000 

 
Applications other than Building Works 
Car parks, service roads or other 
accesses 

For existing uses £195 

Waste (Use of land for disposal of refuse or waste materials or deposit of 
material remaining after extraction or storage of minerals) 
Site area Not more than 

15 hectares 
£195 for each 0.1 
hectare (or part 
thereof) 

Site area More than 15 
hectares 

£29,112 + £115 for 
each 0.1 hectare (or 
part thereof) in 
excess of 15 hectares 
up to a  maximum of 
£65,000 

Operations connected with exploratory drilling for oil or natural gas 
Site area Not more than 

7.5 hectares 
£423 for each 0.1 
hectare (or part 
thereof) 

Site area More than 7.5 
hectares 

£31,725  + additional 
£126 for each 0.1 
hectare (or part 
thereof) in excess of 
7.5 hectares up to a 
maximum of 
£250,000 

 
Continued on next page… 

Page 79



Planning Portal - Application Fees - England July 2014 – V4.0 
 

 

Operations (other than exploratory drilling) for the winning and working 
of oil or natural gas 
Site area Not more than 

15 hectares 
£214 for each 0.1 
hectare (or part 
thereof) 

Site area More than 15 
hectares 

£32,100 + additional 
£126 for each 0.1 in 
excess of 15 hectare 
up to a maximum of 
£65,000 

Other operations (winning and working of minerals) excluding oil and 
natural gas 
Site area Not more than 

15 hectares 
£195 for each 0.1 
hectare (or part 
thereof) 

Site area More than 15 
hectares 

£29,112 + additional 
£115 for each 0.1 in 
excess of 15 hectare 
up to a maximum of 
£65,000 

Other operations (not coming within any of the above categories) 
Site area Any site area £195 for each 0.1 

hectare (or part 
thereof) up to a 
maximum of £1,690 

 
Lawful Development Certificate 
LDC – Existing Use - in breach of a 
planning condition 

 Same as Full 

LDC – Existing Use LDC - lawful not to 
comply with a particular condition 

 £195 

LDC – Proposed Use  Half the normal 
planning fee. 

 
Continued on next page… 

Page 80



Planning Portal - Application Fees - England July 2014 – V4.0 
 

 

Prior Approval 
Agricultural and Forestry buildings & 
operations or demolition of buildings 

 £80 

Telecommunications Code Systems 
Operators 

 £385 

Proposed Change of Use to State 
Funded School or Registered Nursery 

 £80 

Proposed Change of Use of 
Agricultural Building to a 
State-Funded School or Registered 
Nursery 

 £80 

Proposed Change of Use of 
Agricultural Building to a flexible use 
within Shops, Financial and 
Professional services, Restaurants 
and Cafes, Business, Storage or 
Distribution, Hotels, or Assembly or 
Leisure 

 £80 

Proposed Change of Use of a building from 
Office (Use Class B1) Use to a use falling 
within Use Class C3 (Dwellinghouse) 

 £80 

Proposed Change of Use of 
Agricultural Building to a 
Dwellinghouse (Use Class C3), where 
there are no Associated Building 
Operations 

 £80 

Proposed Change of Use of 
Agricultural Building to a 
Dwellinghouse (Use Class C3), and 
Associated Building Operations 

 £172 

Proposed Change of Use of a building 
from a Retail (Use Class A1 or A2) 
Use or a Mixed Retail and Residential 
Use to a use falling within Use Class 
C3 (Dwellinghouse), where there are 
no Associated Building Operations 

 £80 

Proposed Change of Use of a building 
from a Retail (Use Class A1 or A2) 
Use or a Mixed Retail and Residential 
Use to a use falling within Use Class 
C3 (Dwellinghouse), and Associated 
Building Operations 

 £172 

Page 81



Planning Portal - Application Fees - England July 2014 – V4.0 
 

 

Reserved Matters 
Application for approval of reserved 
matters following outline approval 

 Full fee due or if full 
fee already paid then 
£385 due 

 
Approval/Variation/discharge of condition 
Application for removal or variation of 
a condition following grant of planning 
permission 

 £195 

Request for confirmation that one or 
more planning conditions have been 
complied with 

 £28 per request for 
Householder 
otherwise £97 per 
request 

Continued on next page… 
Change of Use of a building to use as one or more separate dwellinghouses, or 
other cases 
Number of dwellings Not more than 50 

dwellings 
£385 for each 

Number of dwellings More than 50 
dwellings 

£19,049 + £115 for 
each in excess of 50 
up to a maximum of 
£250,000 

Other Changes of Use of a building 
or land 

 £385 

 
Advertising 
Relating to the business on the premises £110 

Advance signs which are not situated on or visible from 
the site, directing the public to a business 

£110 

Other advertisements £385 

 
Application for a New Planning Permission to replace an Extant Planning 
Permission 
Applications in respect of major developments £575 

Applications in respect of householder developments £57 

Applications in respect of other developments £195 

Page 82



Planning Portal - Application Fees - England July 2014 – V4.0 
 

 

Application for a Non-material Amendment Following a Grant of 
Planning Permission 
Applications in respect of householder developments £28 
Applications in respect of other developments £195 

 
Continued on next page… 

Page 83



Planning Portal - Application Fees - England July 2014 – V4.0 
 

CONCESSIONS 
EXEMPTIONS FROM PAYMENT 
For alterations, extensions, etc. to a dwelling house for the benefit of a 
registered disabled person 
An application solely for the carrying out of the operations for the purpose of 
providing a means of access for disabled persons to or within a building or 
premises to which members of the public are admitted 
Listed Building Consent 
Planning permission for relevant demolition in a Conservation Area 
Works to Trees covered by a Tree Preservation Order or in a Conservation Area 
Hedgerow Removal 
If the proposal is the first revision of an application for development of the same 
character or description on the same site by the same applicant within 12 
months of making the earlier application if withdrawn or the date of decision if 
granted or refused (including signs only if withdrawn or refused) and NOT a 
duplicate application made by the same applicant within 28 days 
If the proposal relates to works that require planning permission only by virtue 
of an Article 4 Direction of the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995. I.e. where the application is required only because 
of a direction or planning condition removing permitted development rights. 
If the application is for a lawful development certificate, for existing use, where 
an application for planning permission for the same development would be 
exempt from the need to pay a planning fee under any other planning fee 
regulation 
If the application is for consent to display an advertisement following either a 
withdrawal of an earlier application (before notice of decision was issued) or 
where the application is made following refusal of consent for display of an 
advertisement, and where the application is made by or on behalf of the same 
person 
If the application is for consent to display an advertisement which results from a 
direction under Regulation 7 of the 2007 Regulations, dis-applying deemed 
consent under Regulation 6 to the advertisement in question 
If the application is for alternate proposals for the same site by the same 
applicant, in order to benefit from the permitted development right in Schedule 2 
Part 3 Class E of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995 
If the application relates to a condition or conditions on an application for Listed 
Building Consent or planning permission for relevant demolition in a 
Conservation Area 
If the application is for a Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Works to a listed 
building 
Prior Approval for a Proposed Larger Home Extension 

 
Continued on next page… 

Page 84



Planning Portal - Application Fees - England July 2014 – V4.0 
 

CONCESSIONS continued… 
REDUCTIONS TO PAYMENTS 
If the application is being made on behalf of a non-profit making sports club for 
works for playing fields not involving buildings then the fee is £385 
If the application is being made on behalf of a parish or community council then 
the fee is 50% 
If the application is an alternative proposal being submitted on the same site by 
the same applicant on the same day, where this application is of lesser cost then 
the fee is 50% 
In respect of reserved matters you must pay a sum equal to or greater than 
what would be payable at current rates for approval of all the reserved matters. 
If this amount has already been paid then the fee is £385 
If the application is for a Lawful Development Certificate for a Proposed use or 
development, then the fee is 50% 
If two or more applications are submitted for different proposals on the same 
day and relating to the same site then you must pay the fee for the highest fee 
plus half sum of the others 
Where an application relates to development which is within more than one fee 
category, the correct fee is simply the highest of the fees payable (if not 
including residential) 
Where an application consists of the erection of dwellings and the erection of 
other types of buildings (categories 1-4) the fees are added together and 
maximum can be exceeded 
Where an application crosses one or more local or district planning authorities 
then the fee is 150% and goes to the authority that contains the larger part of 
the application site or a sum of the fees if it is less than 150% 

 
ENDS 

Page 85



 
 
 

TABLE A 
STANDARD CHARGES FOR NEW DWELLINGS AND THOSE CREATED BY CONVERSION 

(HOUSES, FLATS AND MAISONETTES NOT EXCEEDING 
300M² IN AREA AND 3 STOREYS IN HEIGHT) 

 

No of dwellings Application Charge 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 

860.00 
1120.00 
1280.00 
1440.00 
1590.00 
1740.00 

 
For developments in excess of 6 units, please contact the Building Control Division for details 

 

TABLE B 
STANDARD CHARGES FOR SMALL DOMESTIC BUILDINGS, EXTENSIONS, ROOMS IN THE ROOF, 

 WINDOW REPLACEMENT AND ELECTRICAL INSTALLATIONS 
 (Areas are total floor areas of all storeys measured internally) 

 

Type Application Charge 

Extension not exceeding 10m² 450.00 

Exceeding 10m² but not over 40m² 690.00 

Exceeding 40m² but not over 100m² 950.00 

Any non-exempt Garage/Carport  370.00 

Loft Conversion  660.00 

Renovation of a thermal element to a single dwelling 120.00 

Renovation of a thermal element to a any other building 240.00 

Part P electrical installations to a domestic dwelling. 150.00 

Replacement of windows or the installation of solid fuel or oil 
fired burners 

100.00 

 
Where the total or the aggregation of the floor area of one or more extensions exceeds 100m², the fee is based on Table C (cost of works). 

Please contact the Building Control Department for details. 
 

TABLE C 
CHARGES FOR ALL OTHER BUILDING WORK 

 

Estimated Cost of Work Application Charge 

0-2000 
2001-5000 
5001-10000 
10001-25000 
25001-50000 

50001-100,000 
 

170.00 
330.00 
380.00 
540.00 
690.00 
960.00 

 
For developments in excess of £100,000, please contact the Building Control Division for details 

 
 

 
How to pay; 
 

 Payments can be made by Credit and Debit card and applications submitted by calling 01803 208095.  
 

 Any Cheques should be made payable to Torbay Council. 
 

 
 

All of the fees listed above are inclusive of VAT at 20% and a VAT receipt will be issued with our acknowledgement 
following registration of your application.  
 
  

Page 86



 

 
 

TORBAY BUILDING CONTROL SERVICE 
SUMMARY OF THE SCALE OF STANDARD APPLICATION CHARGES 

As published in the scheme of charges fixed in accordance with  
The Building (Local Authority Charges) Regulation 2010 

Effective from 1st November 2014 
 
Full Plans Charges 
There is a single application charge which is the plan and inspection charges combined and is payable when plans of 
the building work are deposited with the Council.  For larger projects any relevant inspection charge is payable on 
demand after the Council carry out the first inspection in respect of which the charge is payable. 
 
Building Notice Charges 
Charges for Building Notices are set at the same rate as the Full Plans charge and is payable when the Notice is 
deposited with the Local Authority.   
 
Fees for Determination by Secretary of State 
1. Questions about conformity with Building Regulations (Section 16 (10) (a) Building Act 1984) Half plan charge – 

min. £100; max. £1,000 
2. Questions about rejection of certified plans: (Section 16 (9) Building Act1984) - £100 
 
Note: The above fees are payable direct to the Secretary of State. 
 
Value Added Tax 
All Building Control charges, except the Regularisation Charge are subject to VAT.  The charges quoted are inclusive 
of VAT and a VAT receipt will be provided. 
 
Reversion Charges 
The charge for work reverting from Approved Inspector to local authority control is the aggregate of the plan charge 
and inspection charge appropriate to the work commenced. 
 
Regularisation Charge 
An amount is payable equal to 140% of the Building Notice Charge (exclusive of VAT).  The relevant amounts are 
detailed on the reverse side of the application form for a certificate to regularise unauthorised work. 
 
Exemptions from Charges (Notice or plans must be submitted) 
(a) Insertion of insulation material into an existing cavity wall where the work is carried out by an Approved Installer. 
(b) Work solely for the purpose of providing means of access for disabled persons to or within a building or of 
providing facilities to secure their greater health, safety, welfare or convenience, where the building is a dwelling 
occupied, or to be occupied by a disabled person, or a building where the public are admitted. 
(c) The erection of a garage, carport or both in connection with the erection of a dwelling where plan and inspection 
charges have been paid in respect of the dwelling. 
(d) The installation of works and fittings including drainage in connection with the erection of a dwelling where 
charges have been paid in respect of that dwelling. 
 
Note  
(a) Disabled person is defined by Section 29 of the National Assistance Act 1948. 
(b) Applications and payments will be returned if estimated total cost appears unreasonable.  
(c) Applications will be returned if the appropriate fee is not paid. 
 
These notes have been produced for guidance only.  For authoritative interpretation please refer to the Scheme of 
Charges, available for inspection at:  
 
Building Control Department, Electric House Castle Circus, Torquay, Devon, TQ1 3DR 
Building Control Tel No: 01803 208095  Fax No: 01803 208854  Main Switch Board Tel No: 01803 201201  
                                                                                                        

                                          

Page 87



Torbay Development Agency

2015/16 Budget Summary (*ATL)

ServiceTitleID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees

Centralised Repair & Maintenance350 438 0 4380

Leased Properties355 344 -769 -4250

Office Accommodation356 1,888 -292 1,5960

Regeneration Initiatives357 800 -800 00

Torbay Development Agency351 1,550 0 1,5500

Vantage Point - Innovation Centre354 107 -107 00

Total 5,127 -1,968 3,159

Note:   *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

0

P
age 88



 

  

Torbay Economic Development Company Ltd    
Director:  Steve Parrock 
Executive Lead: Mayor Gordon Oliver 

 
 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

Torbay Economic Development Company 
Limited (TEDC) is a Public Private Partnership 
which promotes the physical and economic 
development of Torbay for the benefit of the 
whole community. 
 
The TEDC delivers a range of professional 
services including: 

 Economic Development  

 Project Management 

 Asset and Estates Management 

 Facilities Management 
 
The Company offers a number of fee earning 
professional services to a variety of clients (in 
addition to Torbay Council) including property 
services, asset management and economic 
development.  A large proportion of its 
professional services fee income is now derived 
from non Torbay Council sources. 

 

By delivering sympathetic regeneration and 
creating jobs, the company helps the Council 
to create opportunities and improve the 
quality of life for children and adults, thereby 
helping to improve educational attainment 
and health, reduce crime and create a safer 
Bay.  
 
The TEDC is committed to achieving value for 
money through the efficient delivery of 
projects within budget and on time, within 
stringent quality controls, paying particular 
attention to local employment, 
environmental and conservation factors.  
 
Improving the environment through 
appropriate levels of infrastructure 
development and heritage-led regeneration 
not only opens Torbay for business but 
improves the tourism offer and the 
aesthetics of the built environment.  
 

Internal:  TEDC is a separate body commissioned by 
Torbay Council to promote the physical and economic 
development of Torbay for the benefit of the whole 
community.  
 
External: Local businesses, local schools, South Devon 
College, Brixham Town Council, Heart of the SW 
Partnership, Semperian PPP, Riviera International 
Conference Centre, Peninsula Enterprise and other 
business support providers, Somerset County Council, 
Teignbridge, South Hams and West Devon District 
Councils. 
 

351 & 354 

 

 

 

 

P
age 89



 

  

Torbay Economic Development Company Ltd – Client Side Services  

What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference 

Centralised R&M 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Leased Properties 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Office Accommodation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Centralised repair & Maintenance - Annual 
provision to support, on a prioritised basis, 
the repair and maintenance of the Council's 
assets.  The priorities for this funding is 
outlined in the annual Asset Management 
Plan including the Council's Repair and 
Maintenance Plan. 
 
Leased Properties - Reflects properties held 
for rental income (investment properties) 
and other properties managed by the EDC 
but not linked to a service activity of the 
Council. Includes Torquay Golf Club, 
Waterside Caravan park, Victoria Square, 
Unit 3 Riviera Way.  Includes any residual 
costs of assets that are held pending 
disposal. 
 
Office Accommodation - This service reflects 
the expenditure on the provision of office 
accommodation for the Council, including all 
direct running costs and the hiring of Public 
Rooms.  Office accommodation includes 
Torquay Town Hall, Tor Hill House, 
Commerce House (1st Floor, part year) and 
Paignton Library Hub.  This heading also 
includes the expenditure and income 
associated with carbon reduction schemes 
part funded from Salix Finance. 
These budgets are managed on the Council's 
behalf by the Torbay Development Agency. 
 
 
 

These services are provided to support Torbay Council.  
 

350 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

355 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

356 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 90



 

  

Regeneration Initiatives 
 
 

Reflects any expenditure on specific 
regeneration initiatives such as the growth 
fund and an estimate of the use of Council 
reserves earmarked for the Torbay 
Development Agency. 
 

357 

 

P
age 91



Service Title: Torbay Development Agency & Innovation Centres

Manager: Charles Uzzell

Brief Description of Service:

The TDA was created by Torbay Council in 2011 as a Public Private Partnership to promote the physical and economic development of Torbay for the benefit of the whole 
community.  The Company offers a number of fee earning professional services to a variety of clients (in addition to Torbay Council) including property services, asset 
management and economic development.
This  budget  includes the payment by the Council to Torbay Development Agency Limited.  The payment includes a £200,000 (plus inflation) contribution to progress 
regeneration projects and an annual grant of £250,000 (plus inflation) from the (former) Regional Development Agency also for regeneration.
TDA directly manages the Council's innovation centres. Due to the terms of lease, the income and expenditure in respect of the innovation centres at Vantage Point at 
South Devon College belongs to the Council.  The TDA are responsible for any shortfall or surplus on these centres.

Business Unit: Torbay Development Agency

Executive Head: Steve Parrock

Supplies 
& 

Services

Core Fee RDA 
Grant

No of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

351 Torbay Development 
Agency

00 0 0 1,269 281 1,550 0 0 0 0 0 1,550

354 Vantage Point - 
Innovation Centre

00 24 83 0 0 107 -107 0 0 0 -107 0

0 24 83 1,269 281 1,657 -107 0 0 0 -107 1,550TOTAL 0

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 92



Service Title: Asset Management

Manager: Charles Uzzell.

Brief Description of Service:

Centralised Repair & Maintenance - Annual provision to support, on a prioritised basis, the repair and maintenance of the Council's assets.  The priorities for this funding is 
outlined in the annual Asset Management Plan including the Council's Repair and Maintenance Plan.
Leased Properties - Reflects properties held for rental income (investment properties) and other properties managed by the TDA but not linked to a service activity of the 
Council. Includes Torquay Golf Club, Waterside Caravan park, Victoria Square, Unit 3 Riviera Way.  Includes any residual costs of assets that are held pending disposal.
Office Accommodation - This service reflects the expenditure on the provision of office accommodation for the Council, including all direct running costs and the hiring of 
Public Rooms.  Office accommodation includes Torquay Town Hall, Tor Hill House, Commerce House (1st Floor, part year) and Paignton Library Hub.  This heading also 
includes the expenditure and income associated with carbon reduction schemes part funded from Salix Finance.
These budgets are managed on the Council's behalf by the Torbay Development Agency.

Business Unit: Torbay Development Agency

Executive Head: Steve Parrock

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

350 Centralised Repair & 
Maintenance

00 438 0 0 0 438 0 0 0 0 0 438

355 Leased Properties 00 162 182 0 0 344 -769 0 0 0 -769 -425

356 Office Accommodation 370 1,062 724 65 0 1,888 -292 0 0 0 -292 1,596

37 1,662 906 65 0 2,670 -1,061 0 0 0 -1,061 1,609TOTAL 0

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 93



Service Title: Regeneration Initiatives

Manager: Charles Uzzell

Brief Description of Service:

Expenditure on specific regeneration initiatives such as paymnets in relation to the growth fund and an estimate of the use of Council reserves earmarked 
for the Torbay Development Agency.

Business Unit: Torbay Development Agency

Executive Head: Steve Parrock

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

357 Regeneration Initiatives 00 0 800 0 0 800 0 0 -800 0 -800 0

0 0 800 0 0 800 0 0 -800 0 -800 0TOTAL 0

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 94



 

 

Torbay Economic Development Company Ltd    
Director:  Steve Parrock 
Executive Lead: Mayor Gordon Oliver 

 
Agreed Savings – 

Outline details 
Savings for 2015/16 Implement-

ation Cost 
Delivery 

Date 
Possible Risks / impact of proposals 

 
Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Torbay Economic Development Company Ltd  
1. TEDC - Pay the 

Council for office 
accommodation  

 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

50,000     351 

2. TEDC –  Pay the 
Council for some or 
all of the support 
services provided 
 

(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 

129,300  
 

    351 

P
age 95



 

 

Agreed Savings – 
Outline details 

Savings for 2015/16 Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

3. TEDC – A further 
increase in third 
party income target. 

 
 

32,500   April 
2015 

Internal 
The TEDC has, in its agreed budget, set a target of gaining an 
additional £313,000 over the two year budget settlement period. 
£179,300 is the income target for 15/16 (proposals 1&2 above).  
This additional figure (£32,000) raises that income target further. 
The target assumes 

 continued performance at, or ahead of plan, on workspace 
occupancy,  

 continued delivery of business support contracts,  

 raising income through sponsorship and exhibitor income 
to cover events and 

 Additional income through the property services group. 

351 

4. TEDC - Remove the 
allocation of match 
funding previously 
provided for the 
European 
Competitiveness 
programme covering 
Torbay. 

 
 

 82,000  April 
2015 

Minor Impact 
In 2008 the Council allocated an additional £200,000 to the TEDC 
budget to act as match funding against the EU Competitiveness 
programme. This was reduced to £182,000 in a previous budget 
reduction. Now that the Competitiveness programme has ended 
this proposal will remove the match funding.  
The impact of this will be to limit the opportunity to commission 
activity or match fund projects that may come forward within 
Torbay under the new European programme which launches in 
early 2015. The risk is that economic development activity is 
delayed or not delivered hindering achievement of the economic 
strategy. 
Mitigation of this risk will be identifying other funds within the 
TEDC which can be used to match EU sources, by prioritising 
projects which will generate capital or revenue receipts for the 
Council and also bringing requests to council for match on a case by 
case basis. 
 

351 

P
age 96



 

 

Agreed Savings – 
Outline details 

Savings for 2015/16 Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

5. TEDC – Reduction in 
the Core Contract 
Fee paid to the TEDC 

 

 10,000  April 
2015 

Minor Impact 
This will be a straight reduction in the core contract fee paid to the 
TEDC. This will be met through administrative efficiencies including 
reviews of office supplies and consumables, utility and service 
contracts.  
 

351 

6. Client Side - Repairs 
& Maintenance  

 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 

 175,000    350 

7. Client side - 
Reduction in the 
repairs & 
maintenance budget 

 

 38,000  April 
2015 

Internal  
Will likely see backlog maintenance increase in real terms and is 
likely to be unsustainable in the longer term without a further 
reduction in the number of Council assets. 

350 

8. Client Side – 
Administrative 
Estate budget saving 

 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 

 75,000    356 

P
age 97



 

 

Agreed Savings – 
Outline details 

Savings for 2015/16 Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

9. Client Side – 
Additional property 
savings and 
increased income 

  
 
 

 96,500  April 
2015 

Internal  
This saving will be achieved through a combination of approaches 
including;  

 additional rental income from the Council’s estate through 
improving the occupancy rate for tenants and concessions,  

 reducing the cost of asset disposals with disposal costs 
covered from sale receipts,  

 reduced property costs for the municipal estate as a result 
of the Office Rationalisation Project being delivered. 

 

356 

 
 
 

 

 

P
age 98



Assembly Hall
FULL RATE 2% Increase DISCOUNT 2% Increase

BASIC HIRE, PER HOUR (Minimum 

session hire 5 hours)
25.50                26.01                20.40                20.81                

Late surcharge, per hour (after 11pm)
51.72                52.76                51.72                52.76                

Sunday surcharge, per hour
11.83                12.07                11.83                12.07                

Kitchen
14.08                14.36                14.08                14.36                

P
age 99



Tor Bay Harbour Authority

2015/16 Budget Summary (*ATL)

ServiceTitleID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees

Beach Services801 783 -788 -512

Car Parking - Enforcement802 827 -1,006 -17933

Car Parking - Off Street Parking804 1,529 -3,772 -2,2430

Car Parking - On Street Parking803 198 -1,265 -1,0670

Tor Bay Harbour Authority800 3,090 -3,090 013

Total 6,427 -9,921 -3,494

Note:   *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

58

P
age 100



 

 

Tor Bay Harbour Authority (including Resort and Parking Services)   Director:    Charles Uzzell 
Executive Head:   Kevin Mowat 
Chair of Harbours Committee:  Cllr Nicole Amil 
Executive Lead:   Cllr Nicole Amil 

           Cllr Derek Mills  
           Cllr Robert Excell 

Tor Bay Harbour 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

Maintenance of the harbour – both 
natural and built environment. 
Management of the harbour estate, 
including mooring facilities and 
other marine services. 
Oversee the safety of navigation and 
overall harbour safety, through the 
enforcement of applicable byelaws 
and appropriate legislation. 

There are a range of statutory requirements around 
the provision of Tor Bay Harbour.  Full details are 
included within the Summary Service Review available 
at www.torbay.gov.uk/budget 
 

The full range of demand drivers are included 
within the Summary Service Review available at 
www.torbay.gov.uk/budget 
 

800 

 

Resort Services 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

Resort Management including the 
provision of the Beach Management 
Service, Water Quality control and 
monitoring, provision of Beach Hut 
Service, Management of Traders and 
Concessions, Beach Supervision and 
Safety, Event support. 
 

The revised Bathing Water Directive places a statutory 
responsibility on designated Bathing Water Controllers 
to provide up to date accurate public information 
There is a statutory duty to comply with Occupiers 
Liability Act 1984, Health and Safety at work Act 1974, 
First Aid at Work Regulations and Environmental 
Protection Act 1990 
 
Torbay as a holiday destination requires that the 
standards of the beaches and bathing waters, 
identified as a primary driver for the majority of 
visitors, are maintained to the highest of standards.  

Businesses and organisations within the coastal 
zone; Tourists; English Riviera Tourism Company 
Ltd; Royal National Lifeboat Institution (RNLI); 
Maritime & Coastguard Agency (MCA); 
organisations involved in waterborne sports and 
activities (e.g. sailing clubs, training 
organisations, Language Schools, Scouts, Sea 
Cadets, rowing clubs, youth groups etc.); 
Charitable and religious organisations, including 
various individuals and groups providing 
entertainment, Keep Britain Tidy. 
 

801 

 

P
age 101

http://www.torbay.gov.uk/budget
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/budget


 

 

Parking Services - including enforcement  
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

 Management of 6 multi-storey 
and 39 surface car parks with 
around 10,000 parking spaces 

 Management of on street 
parking bays  

 Enforcement of parking 
regulations on and off street, 
including the provision of the 
appeals process (approx 30,000 
parking penalties processed 
annually) and development of 
enforcement patrols 

 Provision and maintenance of 
parking equipment for the 
effective collection of parking 
fees 

 Management and administration 
of   parking permits, residents 
parking schemes and controlled 
parking zones  

 Drafting & advertising traffic 
orders  

 Supporting the development of 
the Local Transport Plan  

 Issuing traffic orders including 
CPZ  Zones, restriction to parking 
and other highways related 
closures, and the removal of 
abandoned vehicles 

Torbay Council’s Parking enforcement team is 
responsible for the enforcement of all parking 
regulations both in Council operated car parks and on 
street across Torbay and Torbay enforce Traffic 
Regulation Orders under the Traffic Management Act 
2004 – these are Statutory Functions.   
 
Torbay council car parks are used by Torbay 
residents, visitors and local businesses.  

 Provision of 38 car parks are managed across 
Torbay containing 7,580 car parking spaces 
and 830 spaces on the highway serviced by 
parking meters 

 Management and securing of car parks and 
lifts in multi storey car parks 

 Cash collection is under taken daily from 79 
parking machines and on-street meters 

 630,000 pay and display tickets issued for 
Torbay on-street parking meters 

 1.8m pay and display tickets issued for 
Torbay’s car parks 

 

802, 803 & 804 

 

 

P
age 102



Service Title: Tor Bay Harbour Authority

Manager: Kevin Mowat, Derek Singleton

Brief Description of Service:

This service fulfils the Council's obligations as a statutory and competent harbour authority.  It aims to maintain the harbour fabric within the available 
resources in order to protect and enhance, where appropriate, the natural and built environment of the Bay.

It provides mooring facilities and other marine services to the local community and manages the harbour estate efficiently and acts as a responsible 
landlord.

Business Unit: Tor Bay Harbour Authority

Executive Head: Kevin Mowat

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

801 Beach Services 26612 140 372 5 0 783 -788 0 0 0 -788 -5

800 Tor Bay Harbour 
Authority

62213 549 1,919 0 0 3,090 -2,935 0 -155 0 -3,090 0

888 689 2,291 5 0 3,873 -3,723 0 -155 0 -3,878 -5TOTAL 25

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 103



Service Title: Car Parking

Manager: Susie Hayman

Brief Description of Service:

Provision of 38 car parks are managed across Torbay containing 7,580 car parkng spaces and 830 spaces on the highway serviced by parking meters
Management and securing of car parks and lifts in multi storey car parks
Cash collection is undertaken daily from 79 parking machines and on-street meters
630,000 pay and display tickets issued for Torbay on-street parking meters each year. 
1.8m pay and display tickets issued for Torbay's car parks each year.

Business Unit: Tor Bay Harbour Authority

Executive Head: Kevin Mowat

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

802 Car Parking - 
Enforcement

57133 0 245 11 0 827 -1,006 0 0 0 -1,006 -179

804 Car Parking - Off Street 
Parking

940 879 556 0 0 1,529 -3,772 0 0 0 -3,772 -2,243

803 Car Parking - On Street 
Parking

130 33 152 0 0 198 -1,265 0 0 0 -1,265 -1,067

678 912 953 11 0 2,554 -6,043 0 0 0 -6,043 -3,489TOTAL 33

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 104



 

  

Tor Bay Harbour Authority (including Resort and Parking Services)   Director:    Charles Uzzell 
Executive Head:   Kevin Mowat 
Chair of Harbours Committee:  Cllr Nicole Amil 
Executive Lead:   Cllr Nicole Amil 

           Cllr Derek Mills  
           Cllr Robert Excell 

Tor Bay Harbour 
 
In consultation with the Harbour Committee there is a clear expectation that a £160,000 contribution to the Council budget could be delivered in 2015/16.  This was 
considered ay the Harbour Committee budget setting meeting on the 15

th
 December 2014.  Digest reference 400 (contribution to Council in Finance) 

 

Resort Services 

Agreed Savings  – 
Outline details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Resort Services  
1. Beach Hut income 

(assumes a 5% 
increase) 

 

20,000  None 2015/16 Minor Impact  
There is a risk that higher prices will lead to reduced occupancy 
levels. This is mitigated by a strong demand demonstrated by 
healthy waiting lists. However, these waiting lists are based on the 
existing prices. 
 

801 

2. Beach Patrol 
Service 

 

 14,000 None 2015/16 Minor Impact 
There is a reputational risk to cutting this service as the public 
perception is that this service is a rescue boat. The beach patrol 
boat is not a rescue boat and this proposal would mean that the 
boat will be stationed at Torquay harbour on an ‘on-call’ basis. It 
will be reactive rather than proactive. 
 

801 

P
age 105



 

  

Agreed Savings  – 
Outline details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

3. Joining Fee 
income for 
customers on the 
Beach Hut waiting 
list.  

 
One off charge to 
existing database. 

 

4,500   2015/16 Minor Impact 
A charge of £25 to be applied to all those already on the waiting list. 
It could lead to reduced numbers on the lists. 

801 

4. Joining Fee for 
Beach Hut waiting 
list. New 
customers. 

 

3,000   2015/16 Minor Impact 
A charge of £25 to be applied to all new persons joining the waiting 
list. It could adversely affect numbers joining the lists. 
 

801 

 

  

P
age 106



 

  

Parking Services (including enforcement) 

Agreed Savings – 
Outline details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 
£ 

    

Parking Services - including enforcement   

5. Car 
Parking/Enforcem
ent  

 
 

 40,000 None April 
2015 

Internal proposal  
 
Following analysis of the cost of each Civil Enforcement Officer 
(CEO) compared to the payments generated by each officer from 
penalty notices issued it’s clear that we will need to have 
agreement on at least maintaining existing CEO levels to achieve 
this budget figure.  
 
Deployment of the CEO’s will be optimised to achieve compliance 
with the budget as a priority rather than using these staff to 
support other council activities such as stewarding events. 
 

802 

6. Savings generated 
from improved 
appeal processes 

 
Development of IT 
Systems 
 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 40,000    802 

7.  On Street Parking  
 
Income generation 
 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

50,000      803 

P
age 107



 

  

Agreed Savings – 
Outline details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 
£ 

    

8. On Street Parking 
 
Reduced Maintenance 
 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 10,000    803 

9. Car Park 
Infrastructure 

 
Reduce maintenance 
 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 4,000    804 

 
 

P
age 108



 

TOR BAY HARBOUR AUTHORITY 

 
 
 

SCHEDULE OF CHARGES, DUES & FEES 

2015 – 2016 
VAT Registration No. GB 142 2082 11 

For the period commencing 1st April 2015 
until 31st March 2016 

 

REFERENCES 
 

Harbour Docks and Piers Clauses Act 1847 
Harbours Act 1964 
Pilotage Act 1987 

Tor Bay Harbour Act 1970 
Tor Bay Harbour (Torquay Marina &c.) Act 1983 

 

PUBLICATIONS 
 

Tor Bay Harbour Act 1970 
Price - £5.00   By Post - £5.50 

Tor Bay Harbour Byelaws 1994 
Price - £3.00   By Post - £3.50 

 

CONTENTS 
PART 1 Introduction   …………………………….……………………………………………………………………    Page  1 - 4 

PART 2 Harbour Dues   …..…………………………………………………………………..………………………    Page  5 - 7 
PART 3 Visitor Charges   …………….…………………………………………………………………….…………    Page  8 – 9  

PART 4 Tor Bay Harbour Authority Moorings Berths & Facilities ………………………………………    Page 10 – 13 
PART 5 Tor Bay Harbour Authority Services and Other Charges   …………………………………….    Page 13 - 16 

PART 6 Pilotage ………………………………………………………………..………………..………………………    Page 16 - 17 

 

         

   
Torquay Tel: 01803 292429               Brixham Tel: 01803 853321   Paignton Tel: 01803 557812 

Email:     harbourauthority@torbay.gov.uk     Website:  www.tor-bay-harbour.co.uk 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1

Page 109

mailto:harbourauthority@torbay.gov.uk


 

 - 2 - 

Part 1 – Introduction 
 

1.1     General 

 

1.1.1 All charges, dues and fees are subject to the appropriate rate of Value Added Tax (20%) which is 

included in the price, except as indicated. 

 

1.1.2 Annual charges relate to the period 1st April to 31st March following and any part thereof.  Certain 

charges may be levied at either 75% or 50% of the annual rate if no latent demand exists for the facility 

and three or six months of the annual charging period has elapsed. 

 

1.1.3 Seasonal charges, only where applicable, relate to the periods: 

   1st April to 30th September  - Summer 

   1st October to 31st March  - Winter 

 

1.1.4 All accounts are to be paid promptly and within the time specified.  Payment of the charges listed may 

be required in advance of the service being taken up.  Credit and debit card facilities are available for 

payments made at the Harbour Offices or via telephone.  

 

1.1.5 Penalty for evading payment of charges – Section 30 Tor Bay Harbour Act, 1970 

“The owner of any vessel or goods or any other person who eludes or evades or attempts to elude or 

evade payment of, or refuses to pay, a charge payable by such owner or person to the harbour authority 

at the time when the same becomes due and payable shall be liable to pay to the harbour authority, in 

addition to the charge, a sum equal to the amount thereof, which sum shall be a debt due to the harbour 

authority and shall be recoverable by them in any court of competent jurisdiction.” 

 

1.1.6 Failure to notify the harbour office of arrival, or departing the harbour without paying harbour charges, 

will be taken as an attempt to evade the payment of harbour charges. 

 

1.1.7 Visiting vessels of special interest and/or vessels owned by Registered Charities to be eligible for a 

50% concession on applicable Harbour Charges at the discretion of the Harbour Master. 

 

1.1.8 Any person claiming the return of the whole or part of any charges paid to the Authority shall make 

such claim and produce all documents and give all information required by the Authority in proof of 

such claim within twenty four months from the time of payment and, in default thereof, the claim shall 

cease to be enforceable.  (Section 31 Torbay Harbour Act 1970).  Refunds would normally only apply 

in exceptional circumstances and will incur an administration charge (see 5.7) 

 

1.1.9 All lengths referred to are overall lengths which in the context of these charges includes bowsprit, 

pushpit, stern davit, and/or bumpkin etc. etc. as determined by the Harbour Master if required. 

 

1.1.10 Any person who without reasonable cause fails to provide information which is reasonably required for 

the purpose of the harbour undertaking shall be liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding 

level three on the standard scale.  (Section 18 Tor Bay Harbour (Torquay Marina &c.) Act 1983).   

 

1.1.11 Application for and acceptance of a mooring, quay berth, boat park space, pontoon berth or other 

facility, implies acceptance of the rate of charge currently in force and of the conditions of issue 

including that the Authority and its staff are indemnified against any claims arising from or in 

connection with such berth or facility, save only as the Authority may be liable under the Unfair 

Contracts Terms Act 1977. 

 

1.1.12 Vessels directed into the harbour by the Secretary of State’s Representative (SOSREP) or by any other 

person legally entitled to direct vessels into a harbour are required to pay one month’s harbour dues in 

advance as a condition of entry. If using a mooring facility, they will also be required to pay one 

month’s mooring fees in advance as a condition of entry. These charges are in addition to any charges 

Page 18Page 110



 - 3 - 

incurred for pilotage, tugs, berthing the vessel or for the provision of any other service supplied by the 

Authority. 

 
1.1.13 The lawful orders or directions of the Council’s Harbour Master and other authorised officers must 

always be obeyed promptly. 

 

1.1.14 No facility granted may be shared, assigned or sub-let without the prior consent of the Harbour Master 

in writing and further charges may apply (Tor Bay Harbour Byelaw no 38 & 41). 

 

1.1.15 The Council have the right to exercise a general lien upon any vessel, and/or her gear and equipment, 

whilst in or upon the harbour premises, or afloat, until such time as the monies due to the Council from 

the applicant in respect of such vessel whether on account of storage or mooring charges or otherwise, 

shall be paid. 

 

1.1.16 No person shall place a vessel on a mooring prescribed in the mooring scheme prepared by the Council 

for a vessel of a different size than that applied for, without the applicant obtaining the approval of the 

Harbour Master in writing (Tor Bay Harbour Byelaw no 40). 

 

1.1.17 In the event of the applicant selling or otherwise disposing of the vessel authorised to use the mooring, 

the Harbour Master shall be notified in writing (Tor Bay Harbour Byelaw no 33). 

 

1.1.18 These charges will be applied in a fair and equitable manner, to reflect, as reasonably as possible, the 

service provided.  However, for the avoidance of doubt, the Harbour Master may interpret this Schedule 

in such a manner as to maximise income to the Council as the Harbour Authority. 

 

1.1.19 The Harbour Master may vary these charges and/or levy additional charges in respect of anything done 

or provided by (or on behalf of) the Harbour Authority in accordance with the Harbours Act 1964 

and/or Section 24 of the Tor Bay Harbour Act 1970 (or any amendments or re-enactments of those 

Acts) and all powers delegated to the Harbour Master by Torbay Council. 

 

1.1.20 The owner of any vessel using Tor Bay Harbour shall indemnify the Council, their servants and agents 

against all actions, claims, costs and demands in respect of any injury or death of any person and any 

damage to any property which may arise out of the owner’s occupation and use of the harbour facilities 

including slipways, steps, jetties, pontoons and staging and for this purpose shall maintain a Public 

Liability policy against such risks. Failure to maintain the appropriate insurance cover will result in the 

withdrawal of mooring, launching or other facilities.   

 

1.2     Definitions 

 
1.2.1 Limits of the Harbour 

 The limits of the Harbour shall comprise the areas as set out in Parts I and II of Schedule 1 of the Tor 

Bay Harbour Act, 1970, and are as follows;  

 

 PART I  

 The area below the level of high water enclosed by an imaginary line drawn from the point at which the 

northern boundary of the borough meets the coast to a point one half of a nautical mile true east, thence 

to a point one half of one nautical mile true east of Hope’s Nose, thence to a point one nautical mile true 

east of Berry Head and thence direct to Sharkham Point, but excluding the area referred to in Part II of 

this schedule.   

  

 PART II 

 The area below the level of high water enclosed by;  

(a) an imaginary line drawn from Shoalstone Point in the parish of Brixham extending in a west-north-

westerly direction for a distance of 6,500 feet or thereabouts until it intersects the imaginary line 

next described; 

(b) an imaginary line drawn from the centre of Old Quarry at O.S. Ref. SX91445723 in a north-easterly 

direction for a distance of 3,000 feet or thereabouts until it intersects the imaginary line first 

described; and 

Page 19Page 111



 - 4 - 

(c) the land line of the coast from the centre of Old Quarry aforesaid to the said Shoalstone Point. 

 

The description Enclosed Harbour means:  

Torquay - The area of water enclosed by an imaginary line drawn from the western end of Haldon Pier 

to the south-eastern end of Princess Pier. 

 

Paignton - The area of water enclosed by an imaginary line from the eastern end of North Quay to the 

northern end of East Quay 

Brixham - The area of water enclosed by the Breakwater; an imaginary line from the northern end of 

the Breakwater to Battery Point and the shore. 

  

1.2.2 Recreational Vessels 

 Any vessel, less than 50m LOA, used solely for the purpose of recreation. All vessels owned and 

operated by a registered charity for the purpose of training people at sea for recreational purposes.  Any 

vessel that meets the definition of a Passenger Vessel in 1.2.3 below shall not be considered a 

Recreational Vessel. 

 

1.2.3 Passenger Vessels 

 An MCA Class V, VI or VIA vessel, or an MCA coded vessel, or, where applicable a vessel licensed by 

Torbay Council to carry fare-paying passengers.  Any vessel that meets this definition shall not be 

considered a recreational vessel.  

 

1.2.4 Motor Fishing Vessels 

 A registered Motor Fishing Vessel based in and working from a Tor Bay Harbour, the owner/master of 

which is engaged in commercial fishing, whose sole or main income is derived from selling fish on the 

Brixham Fish Market or landing fish for sale at Brixham, Torquay or Paignton Harbours and paying 

Fish Tolls to the Torbay Council. (Income from Fish Landings must total at least £10,000 in the 

previous year to meet the sole or main income test)  

 

1.2.5 Commercial Vessels  

 Recreational vessels of 50m LOA and over and all other vessels, including naval vessels, workboats 

and pilot boats used for any purposes other than recreation with the exception of, licensed passenger 

vessels, fishing vessels, or training vessels as defined in 1.2.2, 1.2.3 and 1.2.4 above. 

 

1.2.6 Vessel 

Means every description of vessel however propelled or moved. Under Tor Bay Harbour byelaws a 

’power boat’ is defined as a small vessel propelled by machinery and which is ordinarily capable of a 

speed exceeding 17 knots.  

 

1.2.7 Passenger 

 Any person carried that is not essential to the running of the vessel or any person who has paid to be 

transported, accommodated or trained on the vessel on which they are embarked. 

 

1.2.8 Work Within The Harbour 

 The loading, discharging, transport, carriage, storing or accommodation of goods, cargo, dry, liquid or 

gaseous commodities, livestock or passengers. The carrying out of any project for any purpose 

including but not limited to photographic, film or other artistic work on or by any vessel. Capital 

dredging; diving support; pile driving or pile removal; laying or recovering an underwater cable or 

pipeline; laying, maintenance, survey or recovery of mooring anchors, ground tackle, risers or buoys; 

surveying, scientific research, water sampling or core sampling; and drilling into the river bed for any 

purpose. Any other project resulting in the construction or removal of any structure or the alteration of 

the harbour bed or infrastructure. Operations carried out by HM Customs, immigration officers, police 

and fisheries patrols but excluding fire fighting and search and rescue operations. 

 

1.2.9 Further Definitions 

 Definitions contained within the Harbours Act 1964, the Tor Bay Harbour Act 1970, the Tor Bay 

Harbour (Torquay Marina &c.) Act 1983 and Tor Bay Harbour Byelaws are applicable where 

appropriate.  

 
  Page 20Page 112



 - 5 - 

PART 2 – Harbour Dues 
 

2.1    General 

 

2.1.1 Harbour Dues are normally payable on all vessels entering, within or leaving the harbour. Harbour 

Dues relate to a particular vessel and are not transferable.  No refunds or partial refunds are normally 

given.  

 

2.1.2 Bona-fide tenders of up to 4.3m LOA, or of up to 6.0m LOA, for parent vessels of 10.0m LOA and 

over are covered by the payment of harbour dues on the parent vessel.  Such tenders must be clearly 

and uniquely identifiable.  If the parent vessel has paid the relevant annual harbour charges the 

associated tender must show the plaque issued at the time of payment and must be clearly marked 

‘Tender to (the main vessel’s name)’.  With the exception of commercial vessels of 50m LOA and over 

only one tender per vessel is covered in this way.  Tenders can only be used for transport to and from 

the parent vessel and/or mooring.  Craft which are not tenders to a larger vessel on a Council mooring 

will attract Harbour dues in addition to the tender rack charge.  All tenders should be stored within 

appropriate tender racks unless other arrangements have been specifically agreed in written form with 

the Harbour Master, this would include alongside charges as appropriate. 

 

2.1.3 Small vessels less than 3m LOA of which the only means of propulsion is either oars or paddles and 

which are not normally berthed within the harbour, single canoes of less than 4m LOA and sailboards 

and rowing skiffs are exempt from the payment harbour dues. 

 

2.1.4 Safety and or rescue vessels may be exempted from Harbour Dues as agreed with the Harbour Master.  

Except that all RNLI vessels will be exempt from the payment of Harbour Dues and mooring fees. 

 

2.1.5 HM Ships, Customs and Excise vessels and craft in the service of Trinity House may be exempt from 

the payment of Harbour charges except as may be otherwise agreed with the Harbour Authority 

(Section 35 Torbay Harbour Act 1970). 

 

2.1.6 Harbour Charges may be offered at concessionary rates for vessels taking part in organised events 

within Harbour limits if permission is sought and granted in advance of the event and the names and 

lengths of the vessels involved are made available to the Harbour Master. 

  

2.2 Commercial Vessels 

 

2.2.1 This section applies only to commercial vessels (as defined in 1.2.5) not normally moored within the 

harbour that are, have been or will be carrying out work within the harbour at any time except laid up 

vessels that will be charged as per 2.2.5. Prices are exclusive of VAT. 

 

2.2.2 Charges in this section include mooring/quayside charges where applicable. (vessels over 50 metres 

only, otherwise see section 3.1) 

 

2.2.3  Vessels visiting an enclosed harbour for up to 7 days 

£3.08/m/LOA/day 
 

2.2.4 Vessels remaining in an enclosed harbour more than 7 days 

For every week or part thereof during which a vessel (not being a vessel to which paragraph 2.2.5 or 

2.2.7 of this Part of the Schedule applies) remains in the Harbour after the expiration of seven days 

from the date of entry when arranged and agreed in advance. 

 £ 13.96/m/LOA/week 
 

 

 

Page 21Page 113



 - 6 - 

2.2.5 Vessels laid up - Un-laden (and gas-free if applicable) and not working within the Harbour 

For every month or part thereof during which a vessel is laid up (in lieu of the rates mentioned in 

paragraphs 2.2.3 & 2.2.4 above when arranged and agreed in advance). 

To be determined by the 

Harbour Master 

 

2.2.6 Vessels entering the enclosed harbours of Tor Bay to take on or discharge fuel oil or supplies 

For vessels which are not normally moored in the harbour (maximum stay 24 hours) 

 

         £1.29/M/LOA/Day 

2.2.7 Floating docks  
For every year or part thereof during which a floating dock remains in the Harbour (in addition to 

harbour dues applicable to each vessel docked)        

To be determined by the  

 Harbour Master 

 

2.2.8 Vessels at anchor in Tor Bay other than those seeking shelter   

£120.00 per day 

 

2.2.9 Vessels at anchor in Tor Bay for underwater survey, hull cleaning, repairs or associated activity 

 

       £240.00 for first 48 hours or  

   part (in addition to the above  

   charge)   

2.2.10 Vessels undertaking fish and cargo transhipments 

For the transhipment of fish, cargo, personnel or other goods whether at anchor or underway within Tor 

Bay Harbour limits.        

          To be determined by the 

          Harbour Master 

 

2.3     Non Commercial Vessels 

 
2.3.1 This section applies to Torquay, Paignton and Brixham harbours. Charges are levied per metre per 

annum or part thereof expiring 31
st
 March following.  Prices are inclusive of VAT, except where 

specified.  For daily rates see part 3. 

 

2.3.2 Payment of Annual Harbour Dues must be signified by the display of the Harbour Authority ‘Plaque’ 

which will be issued when payment is made.  Failure to display a ‘Plaque’ may result in daily charges 

being applied as detailed in part 3. Tenders must be registered with the Harbour Authority to obtain 

their tender ‘plaque’.  The display of any ‘Plaque’ issued in respect of another vessel will be taken as an 

attempt to evade the payment of harbour dues. Such attempts may be subject to payment of twice the 

amount of set harbour dues (section 30 Tor Bay Harbour Act 1970) (see section 1.1.5). 

 

2.3.3 Motor Fishing Vessel charges only apply to vessels bona fide engaged in fishing.  Registered fishing 

vessels employed as pleasure craft and carrying passenger for reward are to pay the appropriate 

passenger vessel charge for the period so employed.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 22Page 114



 - 7 - 

 

Torquay Harbour 

Recreational Vessels, Commercial Vessels under 50m LOA not 

undertaking work within the harbour and Commercial Vessels normally 

moored within the harbour regardless of whether they are carrying out 

work or not (other than passenger vessels). 

£55.40/m/LOA/year or part 

Paignton & Brixham Harbour 

Recreational Vessels, Commercial Vessels under 50m LOA not 

undertaking work within the harbour and Commercial Vessels normally 

moored within the harbour regardless of whether they are carrying out 

work or not (other than passenger vessels). 

£41.41/LOA/year or part 

Passenger Vessels under 16.5m LOA or carrying 12 passengers or less £55.40/m/LOA/year or part 

Passenger Vessels over 16.5m LOA and carrying more than 12 passengers £80.66/m/LOA/year or part 

Motor Fishing Vessels based in and working from Tor Bay Harbour 

(Exclusive of VAT) 

£8.60/m/LOA/year or part 

 

2.4     Goods, Cargo and Passenger Dues 

  

2.4.1 Goods dues are levied on all vessels (VAT exempt for vessels of over 15 GRT) per occasion as follows. 

 

2.4.2 The payment of fish tolls includes alongside berthing charge at Brixham and electricity/water 

consumption where a recharge facility does not exist.  

 

 

Goods (Exclusive of VAT)  

Fish (other than cured fish ) but including shellfish, crabs etc., 

Brought into the Harbour or to any place within the limits of the Harbour 

by sea and sold, on the gross proceeds of fish (includes alongside berthing 

charge at Brixham and electricity/water consumption where a recharge 

facility does not exist)  

£0.025 per £ 

Fish overlanded and sold on Brixham Fish Market, 

On the gross proceeds of the sale 

£0.015 per £ 

 

Cargo Dues (Exclusive of VAT)  

General Cargo/Other Commodities To be determined by the Harbour 

Master 

General Ships Stores/Spares etc £1.73 per tonne 

Waste Bins (1,100 litres) £2.31 per unit 

 

Passenger Dues   

Cruise ship passenger landing fees, per passenger £3.50 per passenger 

For Passenger Vessel charges  See section 4.4 

 

  

Page 23Page 115



 - 8 - 

PART 3 – Visitor Charges 
 

3.1     Launching and Recovery Fees and Visitor Charges 

 

3.1.1 This section applies to Recreational Vessels, Passenger Vessels, Fishing Vessels and Commercial 

Vessels under 50m LOA not undertaking work within the harbour.  These are applicable at each of the 

enclosed Harbours.  No visitor charge is applicable to Recreational Vessels staying alongside for less 

than two hours (Not applicable to the Town Dock in Torquay during busy periods).  

 

3.1.2 All charges quoted within this section are inclusive of VAT except where stated. These charges are 

combined charges that include harbour dues and mooring fees where applicable. 

 

3.1.3 Visitor Pontoons are available, normally for Recreational Vessels during the summer months in 

Brixham and Torquay harbours. 

 

3.1.4 Visitors staying more than 3 nights get one night free (This offer is at the discretion of the Harbour 

Master for undeclared visits). Vessels may be required to double-up with other craft, and in such cases 

fendering will be the responsibility of the Masters of the craft involved. There is no reduction for 

doubling up. 

 

3.1.5 Motor Fishing Vessel charges only apply to vessels bona fide engaged in fishing.  Registered fishing 

vessels employed as pleasure craft and carrying passenger for reward to pay the appropriate passenger 

vessel charge for the period so employed. 

 

3.1.6 To avoid the abuse of visitor moorings by local vessels, all craft using visitor mooring facilities will be 

charged as set out below and are normally restricted to a maximum stay of three weeks (21 days) with 

no return within one week 7 days. 

 

3.1.7 Use of harbour facilities can and will be denied if boats are not adequately insured (see 1.1.20).    

 

Daily Visitor Charges (per night or over 2 hours)  

Up to 4 metres (13ft) £9.50 per day  

Over 4 metres up to 5.5 metres (14ft-18ft) £10.50 per day  

Over 5.5 metres up to 7 metres (19ft-23ft)  £11.50 per day  

Over 7 metres (23ft)  £1.89 m/per day  

Motor Fishing Vessels not working regularly from Tor Bay Harbour up to 4 

days (Exclusive of VAT) 

£1.45 m/per day  

Passenger vessels  £2.08 m/per day  

Tri-Marans £2.83 m/per day  

Catamarans £2.36 m/ per day 

 

Weekly Visitor Charges   

Up to 4 metres (13ft)  £41.00 per week  

Over 4 metres up to 5.5 metres (14ft-18ft (per day)  £47.00 per week  

Over 5.5 metres up to 7 metres (19ft-23ft) (per day)  £52.00 per week  

Motor Fishing Vessels not working regularly from Tor Bay Harbour over 4 

days (Exclusive of VAT) 

£6.04 per m/per week or part  

 

Slipway Charges   

Up to 4 metres (13ft)  £9.50 per day  

Over 4 metres up to 5.5 metres (14ft-18ft (per day)  £10.50 per day  

Over 5.5 metres up to 7 metres (19ft-23ft) (per day)  £11.50 per day  

Over 7 metres (23ft) up to 15 metres (50ft) £1.89 m/per day  

Canoes/Kayaks/Paddle-Boards £5.00 per day 

Page 24Page 116



 - 9 - 

 

3.1.8 Annual launch and recovery passes are issued at the discretion of the Harbour Master and are subject to 

availability. 

 

3.1.9 Annual launch and recovery passes do not include trailer parking charges.   

 

3.1.10 Passenger vessels other than MCA Coded and MCA class V, VI, VIA Passenger Vessels and EU 

Classes to be charged as commercial vessels see section 2.2. 

 

Annual Charges   

Launching and recovery pass for private use of Tor Bay Harbour slipways. £36.94 per m 

Launching and recovery pass for commercial use of Tor Bay Harbour 

slipways. 

£50.54per m 

MCA Coded and MCA class V, VI, VIA Passenger Vessels and EU classes 

visiting Tor Bay Harbour (combined charge) 

£276.49 

 

3.2 TRAILER PARKING 

 

3.2.1 Trailer parking is subject to availability. 

 

3.2.2 Annual trailer parking is only available when purchasing an annual launching and recovery pass. 

 

3.2.3 Customers seeking continuous trailer storage should refer to Boat & Trailer parking in section 4.5; such 

facilities are subject to availability. The annual trailer parking identified in this section does not entitle 

constant use of the trailer parking area. 

 

Daily trailer parking  £5.00 per day 

Weekly trailer parking £20.00 per week 

Annual trailer parking (only available with private annual launch & 

recovery pass) 

£59.39 per year or part 

 

3.3 PERSONAL WATERCRAFT (JET SKIS) 

 

3.3.1 All personal watercraft (jet skis) must be registered with the Harbour Authority and proof of insurance 

will be required. 

 

3.3.2 The granting of launching/recovery facilities is at the discretion of the Harbour Master and subject to 

availability. 

 

3.3.3 These launching/recovery charges do not include trailer parking. 

 

3.3.4 “Qualified” means a person holding a recognised RYA Personal Watercraft Certificate – proof will be 

required on each occasion. 

  

Personal Watercraft (Jet Skis) Launching & Recovering  Qualified Unqualified 

Daily charge   £12.50 per craft/day  £17.50 per craft/day 

Weekly charge 
£57.00 per craft /week  £78.00 per craft 

/week  

Annual charge  
£171.36 per craft 

/annum  

£237.66 per craft 

/annum  

Registration fee £15.00  £15.00 

 

Town Dock Jet Ski Pods (subject to availability)  

Daily charge £15.00 

Weekly charge £50.00 
Page 25Page 117



 - 10 - 

 

PART 4 – Tor Bay Harbour Authority 
Moorings, Berths & Facilities 

 

 4.1    General 

 

4.1.1 A waiting list exists for some Tor Bay Harbour moorings & facilities. The registration fee to join each 

waiting list is £25.00 the fee is not refundable or transferable. A non-refundable fee of £50 is required 

to join any of the commercial waiting lists. 

 

4.1.2 Permanent moorings and berthing facilities are allocated on an annual basis, 1
st
 April to the 31

st
 of 

March following.   

 

4.1.3 When vessels are moored, outboard engines in the raised position must have the propeller and skeg 

covered with a plastic bucket or other approved protective cover in order to prevent damage to other 

boats. 

 

4.1.4 Owners must ensure that the vessel is provided with a sufficient number of fenders adequate for the size 

of vessel, so as to prevent damage to other vessels, quays or other property (Tor Bay Harbour Byelaw 

46). 

 

4.2  Visiting Commercial Vessels 

 

4.2.1 For vessels under 50m LOA not undertaking work within the harbour see section 3.1 (combined charge 

applicable.) 

 

4.2.2  For all other commercial vessels see section 2.2 (combined charge applicable.) 

 

4.3    Visiting Non Commercial Vessels  

 

4.3.1 See section 3.1 (combined charge applicable) 

 

4.4    Use of Tor Bay Harbour Authority Landing/Embarkation Facilities 

 

4.4.1 These charges are inclusive of VAT and apply in relation to passengers embarking/landing at Brixham, 

Paignton and Torquay quays, piers, pontoons or any other fit for purpose harbour facility. Except those 

passengers embarked as trainees aboard vessels owned and operated by a registered charity for the 

purpose of training people at sea for recreational purposes.     

 

4.4.2 For Cruise Ship Passenger Charges see section 2.4  

 

Visiting Passenger Vessels   

MCA coded vessels and MCA Class V, VI, VIA vessels and EU classes £2.56 per passenger per visit  

MCA coded vessels and MCA Class V, VI, VIA vessels and EU classes – 

over 15grt (VAT Exempt) 

£2.14 per passenger per visit 

Other Passenger Vessels To be determined by the Harbour 

Master 

 

 

 

 

Page 26Page 118



 - 11 - 

 

Passenger Vessels - Annual Compound Charges  

MCA coded vessels up to 24m LOA £51.00 per annum  

MCA class V, VI, VIA vessels, EU classes and coded vessels of 24m and over £3.06 per passenger   

 

4.5   Quayside Charges 

4.5.1 This section applies to Non Commercial vessels and resident Commercial vessels and all charges are 

inclusive of VAT. 

 

4.5.2 Grids are only available at Brixham Harbour. 

 

4.5.3 No charge for Tor Bay based MFV’s when fitting out or under repair for a period not exceeding 14 days 

per annum or at the Harbour Authority’s discretion. 

 

4.5.4 Annual charges for MFV’s lying alongside the quay in Brixham are covered by the payment of fish 

tolls as described under goods and passenger dues in section 2.4. 

 

4.5.5 Torquay Inner Harbour pontoon charges are inclusive of harbour dues. 

 

4.5.6 Torquay Outer Harbour Town Dock pontoon charges are inclusive of harbour dues.  

 

4.5.7 Town Dock non commercial facilities are charged as per the allocated berth size and not the LOA. 

 

Quayside Berth Daily Charges  

Vessels carrying out repairs inclusive of harbour dues (where a bookable facility 

exists) 

£2.76 per m LOA/per day 

 

Vessels carrying out repairs exclusive of harbour dues (where a bookable facility 

exists) 

£2.66 per m LOA/per day 

 

Resident vessels with moorings and paying harbour dues lying alongside the 

quays or each other (for pontoon use see visitors section 3.1). 

£1.66 per m LOA/per day 

 

Use of Grids inclusive of harbour dues £4.01 per m LOA/per day 

Use of Grids exclusive of harbour dues £3.94 per m LOA/per day 

Use of slipway/beach to dry out/repairs £3.24 per m LOA/per day 

Annual Charges for Vessels Lying Alongside the Quay,  

Pontoon or Each Other.  

 

Torquay Harbour (for MFV’s please see charge below) £65.70 per m LOA 

Paignton Harbour (for MFV’s please see charge below) £50.90 per m LOA 

Brixham Harbour (for MFV’s please see charge below) £50.90 per m LOA 

Use of Brixham Town Pontoon by Tenders (At the Harbour Masters discretion) £50.90 per m LOA 

Registered MFV’s (see definition 1.2.4) Torquay  only £58.00 per m LOA  

Torquay Inner Harbour South Pier Pontoon £169.50 per m berth 

Torquay Inner Dock £169.50 per m berth 

 

Torquay Outer Harbour Town Dock  

Private Vessels - per year £225.22 per m berth 

Jet Ski Pods – per year £730.00 per pod 

Passenger Vessels  £225.22 per m LOA 

 

4.5.8 Annual charges for boat and trailer parking on quays are inclusive of harbour dues.  Local yacht clubs 

and bona fide local youth organisations are recognised as youth training organisations and invited, on 

an annual basis, to submit details of eligible young persons under the age of 18 years to be considered 

for a concession of 50%. Boat park charges will be based on the greater length of either the boat or 

trailer - if stored on a road trailer and not a launching trolley. 

 

4.5.9 Charges for horizontal racks are inclusive of harbour dues. 

 

Page 27Page 119



 - 12 - 

 

4.5.10 Craft, which are not tenders to a larger vessel on a Council Mooring, will attract harbour dues in 

addition to the rack charge (see section 2.1.2). 

 

4.5.11 Beacon Quay reserved car parking spaces are located under the public car park on Beacon Quay.  

Allocation of these spaces is on the understanding that they can be given up for up to 14 days per year 

to assist in accommodating maritime events.  

 

Boat & Trailer Parking, Storage on Quays   

Boat parking (under 6m LOA) – single hull (includes racks at Torquay) £65.04 per m LOA/per annum 

Boat parking (under 6m LOA) – multi hull (occupying more than one 

space) 

£83.93 per m LOA/per annum 

Boat parking (under 6m LOA) – Haldon Pier only (Summer season only)  £32.52 per m LOA/per season 

Boat trailers only (subject to availability) As per single hull boat parking 

Boat storage on the Quay (on or off a trailer) (subject to availability) £2.74 per m LOA/per day 

Boat parking (6m LOA and over) (subject to availability) £98.10 per m LOA/per annum 

Commercial boat parking on Haldon Pier (subject to availability) £128.73 per m LOA/per annum 

Dinghy/tender rack  £35.00 per rack per year 

Use of courtesy tenders, subject to availability £35.00 per year 

Paignton horizontal racks, subject to availability (max, length 3.7m) £161.00 per rack/per year 

Kayak/Canoe rack (only available at certain harbours) £105.00 per year or part 

Paignton Harbour West Quay Parking  £140.00 (April to Sept) 

Paignton Harbour South Quay & West Quay Parking £280.00 per year or part 

Car parking permit for Beacon Quay (quayside level only) £475.00 per year or part  

Car parking permit for Brixham (New Fish Quay & MFV Basin only) £250.00 per year or part 

 

4.6 Annual Mooring Charges 

 

4.6.1 Trot, Swinging and Outhaul Moorings – all prices inclusive of VAT 

 

4.6.2 It is Torbay Council’s policy to support the fishing industry and this is reflected in certain mooring 

charges at Brixham Harbour 

 

 

Mooring Charges  

Brixham Inner Harbour trot mooring (no risers provided) £48.42 per m loa /per annum 

Brixham Registered MFV’s trot mooring (no risers provided) £48.42 per m loa /per annum 

Brixham Outer Harbour swinging mooring £86.18 per m loa /per annum 

Brixham Registered MFV’s Outer Harbour swinging mooring £86.18 per m loa /per annum 

Brixham outhaul mooring (not exceeding 4.88m) (no tackle provided) £19.96 per m loa /per annum 

Paignton trot mooring (no risers provided) £48.42 per m loa /per annum 

Paignton outhaul mooring (not exceeding 4.88m) (no risers provided) £39.12 per m loa /per annum 

Mooring Licence Fee (Paignton Harbour only) £5.00 per annum 

Torquay outhaul mooring (not exceeding 4.88m) £39.12 per m loa /per annum 

 

4.7 Winter Storage 

 

4.7.1 Winter storage is only available at Brixham & Paignton Harbours and is charged on length overall as 

detailed in 1.1.9 

 

4.7.2 Licensed passenger craft stored at Brixham harbour will be entitled to a 50% concession if stored at 

their home port. 

 

4.7.3 Vessels having annual facilities at Paignton Harbour will be entitled to a 50% concession. 

 

Page 28Page 120



 - 13 - 

4.7.4 Accommodation is let for the period 1
st
 October to 31

st
 March only, subject to availability.  This charge 

applies for the whole or any part of the above period and no reduction will be allowed for any lesser 

period.  Any craft that remains in storage after 31
st
 March may attract a further charge of £2.74 per  

  metre per day.  

 

Winter Storage Charge  

Uncovered storage at Brixham or Paignton Harbours £49.06 per m LOA 

Lifting Charge (Brixham Harbour only) £19.99 per m LOA/per lift 

 

 

PART 5 – Tor Bay Harbour Authority 
Services and Other Charges      

 

5.1 Utilities 

 

5.1.1 Electricity cards for electricity only, are available in the following denominations for the respective   

price (prices listed are inclusive of 5% REDUCED RATE VAT) 

 

5.1.2 These utility charges are applicable only where a recharging facility exists, e.g. card/token meters or 

sub meters.  Also these charges are linked to the relevant energy prices at any given time (See 2.4.2 for 

MFV charges when paying fish tolls) 

 

Electricity Charges  

Level 1 card (available only at Torquay & Paignton) £1.00 each 

Level 1 (10 KW card) (available only at Brixham) £2.00 each 

Level 5 (50 KW card) (available only at Brixham) £10.00 each 

Level 10 (100 KW card) (available only at Brixham) £20.00 each 

Smart Card (available at Torquay Inner Dock only) 
To be determined by the Harbour 

Master 

Brixham Harbour KW charge for MFVs 
To be determined by the Harbour 

Master  

 

5.1.4 For water taken by small leisure vessels in quantities of less than one tonne there is no charge other than 

where a recharge facility exists. 

 

5.1.5 For water supplied from the Council’s standpipes other than in 5.1.4 above the following charges apply. 

 

Water Charges (Zero rated VAT)  

Up to 50 tonnes £3.06 per tonne 

50 tonnes and over £2.45 per tonne 

Fishing Vessels at Brixham Harbour 
To be determined by the Harbour 

Master 

 

5.2  Crane, Labour and Equipment Hire Charges 

 

5.2.1 The Brixham Harbour crane has a safe working load of 4 tonnes maximum. 

 

5.2.2 Use of mobile commercial cranes and/or other lifting appliances (including Hiabs) on Harbour 

Property/Estate is at the discretion of the Harbour Master and prior notification must be provided for 

each operation.  Prior notification in respect of cranage on Beacon Quay must be provided 48 hours in 

advance. 
Page 29Page 121



 - 14 - 

 

Crane Charges  

Crane per lift (other than boat lifts) e.g. masts engines etc. £78.20 per hour or part 

Boat lift (minimum charge £78.20) £10.09 per m 

Lift out and re-launch same day before 1600 hours (Monday - Friday) Charge as 1½ lifts 

Hang in slings over 4 hours £21.80 

Block-up charge £3.91 per m LOA 

Block up charge, twin keel £1.64 per m LOA 

Storage on quay, per day or part per metre LOA (See 4.5) £2.74 per day or part/m LOA 

Site rental for mobile crane at Torquay Harbour  
To be determined by the Harbour 

Master 

Use of mobile commercial crane and/or Hiab on Harbour Property/Estate 

up to 4 hours. (Inclusive of Launch Fee) 
£40.00 per crane 

Use of mobile commercial crane and/or Hiab on Harbour Property/Estate 

over 4 hours. (Inclusive of Launch Fee) 
£80.00 per crane/per day 

 

5.2.3 Enhanced rates will be charged, out of ordinary working hours, where overtime is required to be 

worked.  If staff have to be called out, a minimum of 2 hours overtime will be charged (per person).   

 

5.2.4 Tor Bay Harbour Authority personnel and equipment (subject to availability) are charged out at the 

following rates all including VAT. Hire of these facilities are at the Harbour Masters discretion. 

 

5.2.5 Towing and water taxi services are provided at the discretion of the Harbour Master. 

 

5.2.6 Use of forklifts on harbour property/estate is at the discretion of the Harbour Master. 

 

5.2.7 Fork lift truck services to Ship’s Agents, includes labour up to 30 minutes and minimal storage up to 1 

week.  Storage charges (subject to capacity) after 1 week are at £1.91 per pallet per day.  (Exclusive of 

VAT).   

 

5.2.8 The boat pressure washing service includes the provision of an operative. 

 

Labour and Equipment Hire Charges  

Labour charge (during normal working hours) per staff member £25.00 per hour or part  

Hire of workboat including skipper and crew £140.00 per hour or part 

Hire of workboat including skipper and crew  £685.00 per day,  

0900-1700 hours 

Water taxi service to or from vessel in enclosed Harbour, including crew  £12.75 per single trip or per 

round trip if no waiting 

Towing within enclosed harbour £25.00 per ½ hour or part 

Towing outside enclosed harbour to nearest enclosed harbour within Tor 

Bay 

£30.00 per  ½ hour or part  

Pumping out of vessels within the enclosed harbours £45.00 per hour or part 

Hire of fork lift truck without driver (Requires qualified driver) £80.00 per half day  

Hire of fork lift truck with driver £50.00 per hour or part 

Fork lift truck services to Ship’s Agents (Exclusive of VAT) £18.00 per pallet  

Boat pressure washing service  (minimum charge £45.00) £10.10 per metre LOA  

 

5.3 Storage Space  

 
5.3.1 The storage of fishing equipment is only chargeable after 48 hours at the discretion of the Harbour 

Master. 

 

5.3.2 A charge will be made for moving equipment into storage and the applicable rate will be labour charge 

identified in 5.2 above. 

 
Page 30Page 122



 - 15 - 

 

Unleased quay areas for fish boxes, fishing gear, cargo containers etc. £1.00 per m
2
/per day  

Storage of beams. on unleased quay areas  £4.00 per set/per week  

Storage of waste bins (1,100 litres) £2.50 per bin per day 

Storage of  loaded pallets on unleased quay areas £3.00 per pallet/per week  

Lock-up storage (ship stores only) 

(Equipment removal and transportation costs at applicable hourly rate) 

To be determined by the Harbour 

Master 

Storage lockers at Paignton Harbour (subject to availability) £178.50 per annum 

 

5.4   Licences (Exclusive of VAT) 

 

5.4.1 Fish salesmen’s and buyer’s licences are valid from 1
st
 April each year. 

 

5.4.2 The period of validity for a Boatman’s licence must run concurrent with their DfT licence - MCA and 

Code of Practice Boatmen only. 

 

5.4.3 Torbay Council, as the Harbour Authority, may grant upon such terms and conditions as they may think 

fit licences for pleasure craft to be let for hire or to be used for carrying passengers for hire within the 

Harbour, and to the boatmen or persons assisting in the charge or navigation of such craft. (See section 

22 (1) Tor Bay Harbour Act 1970).  

 

Fish salesmen’s licence (includes use of Fish Market brand) £302.00 per annum 

Fish buyer’s licence (includes use of Fish Market brand) £302.00 per annum  

Self-drive pleasure boats £5.00 per boat/per annum 

Artists’ Licence (street trading option) As per Council’s Street Trading 

Consent Fee. 

Fishing permit To be determined by the Harbour 

Master 

 

5.5 Bunkering Charges (Exclusive of VAT) 

 

5.5.1 Bunkering charges do not apply where fuel is taken from the refuelling stations at the Bunkering Jetty 

at Brixham, Brixham Marina or South Pier at Torquay  

 

For fuel oil delivered to vessels from tankers on shore or afloat up to 4,000 

litres (minimum charge £25.00) 

£0.02p per  litres per vessel 

For fuel oil delivered to ships from tankers on shore or  afloat over 4,000 

litres (minimum charge £25.00) 

£1.45p per 500 Litres 

For fuel oil delivered to ships from tankers afloat in Tor Bay To be determined by the Harbour 

Master 

 

5.6 Waste Charges 

 

5.6.1 Waste/rubbish that litters the Harbour Estate as a result of refit or repair work maybe removed by the 

Harbour Authority.  This activity will incur the costs detailed below. 

 

Transportation to the Council refuse tip,  

Including attendants and use of Council transport etc. 

£97.00 per truck load or part load 

 

Council tipping charge. As per weighbridge load 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 31Page 123



 - 16 - 

 

5.6.2  A significant contribution towards the reasonable cost of Port Waste reception facilities for vessels 

covered by the Port Waste Reception Facilities Regulations 2003 will be made by way of a 

consolidated harbour dues charge where applicable.  However, with the exception of small volumes of 

waste oil, the charge for receipt of dirty ballast water, tank washings (slops), oily mixtures containing 

chemicals, scale and sludge from tank cleaning operations, oily bilge water, sludge from purification of 

fuel oil, noxious liquid substances, sewage and excessive volumes of garbage will be levied at cost plus 

10%. 

 

Passenger Craft Waste Reception Facilities To be determined by the Harbour 

Master 

 
 

5.7 Miscellaneous Charges 

 

5.7.1 The parking of exhibition vehicles on Harbour Estate is at the discretion of the Harbour Master. 
 

5.7.2 Pleasure Boat Advertising Boards are licensed sites and are subject to a tendering process . 
 

5.7.3 Vessels of exceptional construction or methods of propulsion, or not otherwise covered which include; 

sea planes, hovercraft, hydroplanes, hydrofoils and similar craft, rafts used for recreational purposes, 

etc.  
 

5.7.4 The Harbour Authority may from time to time levy a charge on persons promenading on Quays and 

Piers of the Harbour Estate 

 

5.7.5 Annual Contractors passes are valid from 1
st
 April each year and are subject to Terms and Conditions of 

Use.  To be determined by the Harbour Master using Powers Delegated by Torbay Council.   

 

Administration Charge (This charge is at the discretion of the Harbour 

Master) 

£50.00 Minimum 

Officer Charge 

(this charge applies when time has been spent by officers in preparing 

reports or supervising work that is not the responsibility of the Harbour 

Authority) 

To be determined by the Harbour 

Master 

Parking of Exhibition Vehicle on Harbour Estate £68.00  per day or part 

Replacement Swipe Card or Fob for controlled access/electricity meters £10.00 per unit  

Additional pontoon cleat (subject to Harbour Master’s agreement) £45.00 per unit fitted 

Vessels of exceptional construction or methods of propulsion, or not 

otherwise covered.   

Such charges as may from time 

to time be fixed. 

Contractors Pass (for Tradesmen working on the harbour estate)  

Exclusive of VAT 

£250.00 per year or part 

Daily Contractors Pass    Exclusive of VAT £8.50 per day or part  

Advertising Charges To be determined by the Harbour 

Master 

Salt Water Extraction Charge (Use of quays to pump water for commercial 

purposes) (At the Harbour Masters discretion) 

£25.00 per day or part 

£500.00 per year or part 

Facilities for visiting Fishing Vessels at Brixham Harbour  

Use of showers £2.50 per shower 

Use of washing/drying machine £2.50 per wash/dry 

Tide Tables (Subject to availability) To be determined by the Harbour 

Master 

Credit Card payment fee £2.50 per transaction 

Payment Plan Charge (Direct Debit payments over 9 monthly instalments) 

(annual facility charges only)  

2.5% 

 

 

 
Page 32Page 124



 - 17 - 

 

 

 

 

PART 6 – Pilotage 
 

6.1 Services of a Pilot and/or Pilot Boat (Exclusive of VAT) 

 

6.1.1 Extract from Tor Bay Harbour Pilotage Directions 

 

Pilotage shall be compulsory within the compulsory pilotage area for all vessels except :- 

 

i. any ship of Her Majesty’s Royal Navy or Royal Fleet Auxiliary;  

ii. foreign warships navigating in the harbour for the purpose of taking up or leaving an 

anchorage; 

iii. any vessel of less than 36m LOA entering or leaving an enclosed harbour and not carrying a 

cargo of dangerous goods or marine pollutants; 

iv. any vessel of less than 80m LOA providing they do not enter or leave an enclosed harbour 

v. any vessel engaged in towing where the length of such vessel aggregated with the length of the 

tow is less than 80m or less than 36m for those entering or leaving an enclosed harbour; 

vi. any fishing vessel less than 47.5m LOA; 

vii. any vessel proceeding to or departing from a designated anchorage provided such vessel has 

been forced by stress of weather to seek shelter. 

 

See www.tor-bay-harbour.co.uk for the latest version of the Tor Bay Harbour Pilotage Directions 

 

From sea to Brixham or Torquay Harbours £63.00 per metre draught 

From Brixham or Torquay Harbours to sea  £58.00 per metre draught 

Shift berth within Torquay or Brixham Harbours £35.00 per metre draught 

From sea to Tor Bay Harbour anchorage £26.00 per metre draught 

From Tor Bay Harbour anchorage to sea £19.00 per metre draught 

Sea to Tor Bay Harbour & Tor Bay Harbour to sea – surcharge for vessels 

over 150m LOA 

£1.10 per metre for each metre 

over 150m 

Minimum charge (with or without a Pilot on board) £95.00 

Detention, after 1 hour £57.00 per hour or part 

Pilot Boat Charges (Shipping or Landing a Local Pilot) Levied by Torbay & Brixham 

Shipping Agents Ltd. 

 

Note – Add 50% surcharge to Pilotage Charges incurred on Bank Holidays 

 

6.2 Charges for Pilotage Exemption Certificates 

 

6.2.1 Pilotage Exemption Certificate, per issue   £105.00 

Page 33Page 125

http://www.tor-bay-harbour.co.uk/


 

Charges for Resort Services 2015 -16 
  

     
BEACHES & AMENITIES 

Charges 
2014/15 inc VAT 

Charges 
2015/16 inc VAT 

Charges 
2016/17 

Charges 
2017/18 

CHALETS £ £ £ £ 

Meadfoot - existing 
Annual 1st floor 

1,500.00 1,695.00 1,925.00 2,185.00 

Meadfoot - new 
Annual 1st floor 

2,000.00 2,060.00 2,120.00 2,185.00 

Meadfoot - new 
Annual 1st floor : Sun /T 

2,500.00 2,575.00 2,650.00 2,730.00 

Meadfoot - existing 
Annual Ground 

950.00 1,086.00 1,240.00 1,420.00 

Meadfoot - new 
Annual Ground 

1,300.00 1,340.00 1,380.00 1,420.00 

Broadsands 
Annual charge 

1,545.00 1,625.00 
  

Oddicombe 
Annual Charge  
(was April – September 
inclusive) 

670.00 1,100.00 
  

Oddicombe 
Summer Per Week  

April and May (deleted  2014) 0.00 
   

April-June and September 57.00 60.00 
  

July and August 65.00 70.00 
  

Oddicombe 
Summer Per Day  

April and May (deleted  2014) 0.00 
   

April-June and September 15.00 17.00 
  

July and August 20.00 22.00 
  

Oddicombe 
Winter Season     
October – March (now annual 
only) 

230.00 0.00 
  

Meadfoot 
Ground Floor only  

Summer Per Week:-     
April and May (deleted 2014) 0.00 

   
April-June and September 85.00 90.00 

  
July and August 100.00 105.00 

  

Summer Per Day:-     
April and May (deleted 2014) 0.00 

   
April-June and September 21.00 25.00 

  
July and August 26.00 30.00 

  
 

Page 126



 

 

 

 

BEACHES & AMENITIES 
Charges 

2014/15 inc VAT 
Charges 

2015/16 inc VAT 

  COUNCIL BEACH HUTS £ £ 

  
SUMMER SEASON 

  (April – September inclusive) 474.00 500.00 

  Summer Per Week:- 
  

  April and May (delete for 2014) 0.00 
 

  April-June and September 57.00 60.00 

  July and August 65.00 70.00 

  Summer Per Day:- 
  

  April and May (delete for 2014) 0.00 
 

  April-June and September 15.00 17.00 

  July and August 20.00 22.00 

  Winter Season:-  
  

  (October – March inclusive) 155.00 165.00 

  Selected safe sites only 
  

  Non-refundable deposit per week 10.00 10.00 

  SITE ONLY - SUMMER SEASON 

  Corbyn Head 324.00 340.00 

  Preston, Broadsands, Goodrington & Preston Marine Parade 227.00 240.00 

  Corbyn self maintained 57.00 65.00 

  All other site Locations 227.00 240.00 

  BEACH HUTS - WINTER STORAGE 

  Stored off site (including VAT) 155.00 165.00 

  Admin Transfer charge  28.00 30.00 

  Beach Hut transfer charge  54.00 60.00 

  Beach Hut scrappage charge  60.00 65.00 

  Beach Hut Waiting List Charge 25.00 25.00 

  DECKCHAIRS £ £ 

  Per chair per week 5.00 5.00 

  Per session 1.00 1.00 

  Per day 1.50 1.50 

  Directors chair 3.00 3.00 

  EVENT DECKCHAIR HIRE   
  Chairs per day  2.00 2.00 

  Delivery/Collection - prices on application but minimum charge 36.00 40.00 

   

Page 127



 

 

BEACHES & AMENITIES 
Charges 

2014/15 inc VAT 
Charges 

2015/16 inc VAT 

  SUNTRAPS / WINDBREAK  £ £ 

  Per session  3.00 3.00 

      
  SUNLOUNGER   
  Returnable Deposit 0.00 0.00 

  Per day 3.00 3.00 

  Per session 2.00 2.00 

  Per week  10.00 10.00 

  Cushion 1.00 1.00 

  Parasol  3.00 3.00 

    

Page 128



Off Street Car Park Permits Coverage Comments Charges Proposed Charges 

2014/15 INC VAT 2015/16 INC VAT 

Annual Permit Covers all Torbay Council Car Parks 510.00£                                                             510.00£                                                               

Annual Commuter 

Available for use in all specified car parks 

ONLY  (HARBOUR, SHEDDEN HILL, TORRE 

VALLEY, UNION SQUARE, COLIN ROAD, 

ROUNDHAM, VICTORIA, BREAKWATER, 

SHOALSTONE) 480.00£                                                             480.00£                                                               

Annual Site Specific 

Can be used in one specified Long Stay 

car park only (NOT AVAILABLE FOR 

TOWN HALL, BEACON QUAY OR 

STATION LANE ) 450.00£                                                             450.00£                                                               

Monthly Permit 

Covers all Torbay Council Pay and Display 

Car Parks Addition from Parking Review 42.50£                                                               42.50£                                                                 

Monthly Commuter

Available for use in Shedden Hill, Torre 

Valley, Union Square, Colin Road, 

Roundham, Victoria, Breakwater, 

Shoalstone Addition from Parking Review 40.00£                                                               40.00£                                                                 

Monthly Site Specific

Can be used in ONE specified Long Stay 

car park only (note available for Town 

Hall, Beacon Quay, Harbour Addition from Parking Review 37.50£                                                               37.50£                                                                 

Weekly permit 

Covers use in all Torbay Council Car 

Parks 33.00£                                                               33.00£                                                                 

Commercial Weekly Permit 

Covers use in Clennon Valley, Lymington 

Road, Oxen Cove and Victoria Car Parks 38.00£                                                               38.00£                                                                 

3 Day Permit

Covers use in all Torbay Council pay and 

display car parks Addition from Parking Review 20.00£                                                               20.00£                                                                 

Residents Parking Permits Coverage Comments Charges Proposed Charges 

2014/15 INC VAT 2015/16 INC VAT 

Controlled Parking Zone - Residents Permit 

Permit entitles the resident to park in 

any residents bay in that CPZ  £                                                              30.00  £                                                                 30.00 

Visitors Parking permits (book of 10 permits) 

permit entitles the visitor to park in 

residents bay in the CPZ issued for. Visitors permits valid for 12 months from date of issue  £                                                              10.00  £                                                                 10.00 

PARKING DRAFT FEES AND CHARGES FOR 15-16

P
age 129



 Daily Parking Charges Coverage Comments Charges Proposed Charges

(Off Street - Car Parks ) 2014/15 inc VAT 2015/16 inc VAT

1st May to 30th November inclusive

Beach Car Parks Up to 1 hour 1.50£                                                                 1.50£                                                                    

Up to 1.5 hours 2.00£                                                                 2.00£                                                                    

Up to 2 hours 2.50£                                                                 2.50£                                                                    

Up to 3 hours 4.00£                                                                 4.00£                                                                    

Up to 4 hours 4.50£                                                                 4.50£                                                                    

Up to 5 hours 5.50£                                                                 5.50£                                                                    

Up to 24 hours 8.00£                                                                 8.00£                                                                    

Night time charge (available 6pm to 8am)  £                                                                2.20  £                                                                   2.20 

Leisure Car Parks Up to 1 hour 1.30£                                                                 1.30£                                                                    

Up to 1.5 hours 1.80£                                                                 1.80£                                                                    

Up to 2 hours 2.30£                                                                 2.30£                                                                    

Up to 3 hours 3.30£                                                                 3.30£                                                                    

Up to 4 hours 4.00£                                                                 4.00£                                                                    

Up to 5 hours 5.00£                                                                 5.00£                                                                    

Up to 24 hours 8.00£                                                                 8.00£                                                                    

Night time charge (available 6pm to 8am) 2.20£                                                                 2.20£                                                                    

Town Centre Car Parks Up to 30 minutes 0.70£                                                                 0.70£                                                                    

Up to 1 hour 1.30£                                                                 1.30£                                                                    

Up to 1.5 hours 1.80£                                                                 1.80£                                                                    

Up to 2 hours 2.30£                                                                 2.30£                                                                    

Up to 3 hours 3.30£                                                                 3.30£                                                                    

Up to 4 hours 4.00£                                                                 4.00£                                                                    

Up to 5 hours 5.00£                                                                 5.00£                                                                    

Up to 24 hours 8.00£                                                                 8.00£                                                                    

Night time charge (available 6pm to 8am) 2.20£                                                                 2.20£                                                                    

Car park classifications and tariffs changed in the Parking 

Review

Car park classifications and tariffs changed in the Parking 

Review

Car park classifications and tariffs changed in the Parking 

Review

P
age 130



Daily Parking Charges (On Street) Coverage Comments  Charges Proposed Charges

From 2nd May to 31st October 2014/15 INC VAT 2015/16 INC VAT

Prime Sites Up to 30 minutes 1.00£                                                                 1.00£                                                                    

Up to 1 hour 1.50£                                                                 1.50£                                                                    

Up to 1.5 hours 2.20£                                                                 2.20£                                                                    

Up to 2 hours 3.00£                                                                 3.00£                                                                    

Up to 3 hours 4.00£                                                                 4.00£                                                                    

Up to 4 hours 5.00£                                                                 5.00£                                                                    

Up to 24 hours 10.00£                                                               10.00£                                                                 

Night time charge (available 6pm to 8am)  £                                                                2.50  £                                                                   2.50 

Town Centre Sites Up to 30 minutes 0.70£                                                                 0.70£                                                                    

Up to 1 hour 1.30£                                                                 1.30£                                                                    

Up to 1.5 hours 2.00£                                                                 2.00£                                                                    

Up to 2 hours 2.50£                                                                 2.50£                                                                    

Up to 3 hours 3.50£                                                                 3.50£                                                                    

Up to 4 hours 4.50£                                                                 4.50£                                                                    

Up to 24 hours 10.00£                                                               10.00£                                                                 

Commuter Sites Up to 4 hours 1.00£                                                                 1.00£                                                                    

Up to 8 hours 2.00£                                                                 2.00£                                                                    

Magdalene Road All day 1.00£                                                                 1.00£                                                                    

Lymington Road, Up to 4 hrs 1.00£                                                                 1.00£                                                                    

Up to 8 hrs 2.00£                                                                 2.00£                                                                    

Winter Parking Charges (Off Street) Coverage Comments Charges Proposed Charges 

1st December to 1st May 1st November - 24th March

2014/15 INC VAT 2015/16 INC VAT

Beach Car Parks Up to 30 minutes  £                                                                0.50  £                                                                   0.50 

Up to 4 hours  £                                                                2.00  £                                                                   2.00 

Up to 24 hours  £                                                                3.00  £                                                                   3.00 

Leisure Car Parks Up to 30 minutes  £                                                                0.50  £                                                                   0.50 

Up to 4 hours  £                                                                2.00  £                                                                   2.00 

Up to 24 hours  £                                                                3.00  £                                                                   3.00 

Town Centre Car Parks Up to 30 minutes  £                                                                0.50  £                                                                   0.50 

Up to 4 hours  £                                                                2.00  £                                                                   2.00 

Up to 24 hours  £                                                                3.00  £                                                                   3.00 

Classification of parking places and tariffs changed in the 

Parking Review

Classification of parking places and tariffs changed in the 

Parking Review

   *   50p tariff for up to 30 minutes only available in the following car parks

Brixham:  Brixham Central.

Paignton:  Broadsands, Great Western, Roundham, Victoria, Youngs Park.

Torquay:  Abbey Park, Brunswick Square, Chilcote Close, Hampton Avenue, Harbour, Lower Union Lane Shoppers, Meadfoot Road, Princes Street, St 

Marychurch, Town Hall,  Union Square.

ceased due to parking review

In 2014/15 - the 4 hour charge is only available between 

10.00 - 23.59 daily - this will not apply to 2015/16

In 2014/15 - the 4 hour charge is only available between 

10.00 - 23.59 daily - this will not apply to 2015/16

In 2014/15 - the 4 hour charge is only available between 

10.00 - 23.59 daily - this will not apply to 2015/16

P
age 131



Daily Parking Charges (On Street) Coverage Comments  Charges Proposed Charges

 1st November - 1st May 1st November - 24th March

2014/15 INC VAT 2015/16 INC VAT

Prime Sites Up to 30 minutes 0.20£                                                                 0.20£                                                                    

Up to 1 hour 0.50£                                                                 0.50£                                                                    

Up to 1.5 hours 1.00£                                                                 1.00£                                                                    

Up to 2 hours 1.50£                                                                 1.50£                                                                    

Up to 3 hours 2.00£                                                                 2.00£                                                                    

Up to 4 hours 2.50£                                                                 2.50£                                                                    

Up to 24 hours 10.00£                                                               10.00£                                                                 

Night time charge (available 6pm to 8am)  £                                                                1.50  £                                                                   1.50 

Town Centre Sites Up to 30 minutes 0.50£                                                                 0.50£                                                                    

Up to 1 hour 1.00£                                                                 1.00£                                                                    

Up to 1.5 hours 1.50£                                                                 1.50£                                                                    

Up to 2 hours 2.00£                                                                 2.00£                                                                    

Up to 3 hours 3.00£                                                                 3.00£                                                                    

Up to 4 hours 4.00£                                                                 4.00£                                                                    

Up to 24 hours 10.00£                                                               10.00£                                                                 

Commuter Sites Up to 4 hours 1.00£                                                                 1.00£                                                                    

Up to 8 hours 2.00£                                                                 2.00£                                                                    

Magdalene Road All day 1.00£                                                                 1.00£                                                                    

Commercial Vehicle Charges Coverage Comments Charges Proposed Charges 

2014/15 INC VAT 2015/16 INC VAT

Up to 60 mins 2.00£                                                                 2.00£                                                                    

Up to 4 hrs 6.00£                                                                 6.00£                                                                    

over 4 hrs and up to 24 hrs 10.00£                                                               10.00£                                                                 

Weekly 38.00£                                                               38.00£                                                                 

Parking Ticket Notices Coverage Comments Charges Proposed Charges 

(PCN) 2014/15 (O/S VAT) 2015/16 (O/S VAT) 

Depending on the Contravention If Paid within 14 days of the date of the PCN  PCN rates are governed by legislation - £25  PCN rates are governed by legislation - £25 

Depending on the Contravention If Paid within 14 days of the date of the PCN  PCN rates are governed by legislation - £35  PCN rates are governed by legislation - £35 

Classification of parking places and tariffs changed in the 

Parking Review

Classification of parking places and tariffs changed in the 

Parking Review

P
age 132



Exemptions & Waivers Coverage Comments Charges Proposed Charges

 2014/15 INC VAT 2015/16 INC VAT

Parking Dispensation Notice

Allows vehicle to be parked on any on 

street parking restriction if use of vehicle 

is essential to allow works to be carried 

out nearby  £5.00 admin + £5.00 per week day  £5.00 admin + £5.00 per week day 

Parking Suspension

Offered to contractors/utilities where 

clear access is required on highway  Minimum charge £235  Minimum charge £235 

Healthcare & Emergency Badge

Provides exemption from certain on 

street parking restrictions Only available to healthcare workers  £                                                              15.00  £                                                                 15.00 

P
age 133



Waste and Cleaning

2015/16 Budget Summary (*ATL)

ServiceTitleID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees

Cleansing572 1,806 0 1,8060

Waste Collection573 3,925 -44 3,8810

Waste Disposal574 6,298 -1,351 4,9470

Total 12,029 -1,395 10,634

Note:   *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

0

P
age 134



 

 

Waste and Cleaning           Director:  Charles Uzzell 
             Executive Head: Sue Cheriton 
             Executive Lead: Cllr David Thomas  
 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

This service is mainly provided through 
the Council’s contract with TOR2 and 
includes: 
 

 Street Sweeping and Litter Bin 
Services 

 Fly Tipping and Discarded 
Needle Collection 

 Domestic Household Refuse 
Collection Service 

 Waste minimisation & 
education 

 Recycling and food waste 
collection 

 Commercial waste collection 

 Household Waste Recycling 
Centre and Transfer Station 

 
It also includes the transfer of waste 
from Yalberton Depot, waste disposal 
and recycling credits. 

Several of the services provided by 
TOR2, particularly in connection with 
waste collection are required to meet 
the Councils statutory and regulatory 
responsibilities. 
 

These services are provided by TOR2 on 
behalf of Torbay Council.  
 
 

572 to 574 

 

P
age 135



Service Title: Waste and Cleaning

Manager: Sally Farley

Brief Description of Service:

Cleansing & Waste Collection is mainly provided through the Council’s contract with TOR2 and includes:
Street Sweeping and Litter Bin Service, Fly Tipping and Discarded Needle Collection, Domestic Household Refuse Collection Service, Waste minimisation 
& education, Recycling and food waste collection, Household Waste Recycling Centre and Transfer Station.

Waste Disposal service includes the transfer of waste from Yalberton Depot to the Energy from Waste Plant in Plymouth. The costs of the gate fee for 
waste tonnage at the Plant are partly offset by PFI Credits.

Business Unit: Waste and Cleaning

Executive Head: Charles Uzzell

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

PFI 
Credits

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

572 Cleansing 00 0 1,806 0 0 1,806 0 0 0 0 0 1,806

573 Waste Collection 110 0 3,914 0 0 3,925 -44 0 0 0 -44 3,881

574 Waste Disposal 30 9 6,149 137 0 6,298 -6 -1,208 0 -137 -1,351 4,947

14 9 11,869 137 0 12,029 -50 -1,208 0 -137 -1,395 10,634TOTAL 0

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 136



 

 

Waste and Cleaning           Director:  Charles Uzzell 
             Executive Head: Sue Cheriton 
             Executive Lead: Cllr David Thomas  
 

 
Agreed Savings  – Outline 

details 
Savings for 

2015/16 
Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference 

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Waste and Cleaning  
1. Review of waste  
 

 250,000  2015/16 Minor Impact 
To review waste services to establish where savings can be 
made including restricting charity waste at the transfer 
station. 

572/573/574 

2. Known changes in the 
TOR2 Contract 
expenditure 

 
(Proposal agreed by Council 
in Feb 2014) 
 

 800,000    574 

 

 

P
age 137



Adult Social Care

2015/16 Budget Summary (*ATL)

ServiceTitleID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees

Adult Social Care101 244 0 2445

ASC - Commissoning & Delivery107 2,166 0 2,1660

ASC - Learning Disability104 9,527 0 9,5270

ASC - Mental Health105 2,760 0 2,7600

ASC - Other Social Care106 6,182 0 6,1820

ASC - Physical & Sensory103 12,795 0 12,7950

Care Act Implementation108 1,106 0 1,1060

Joint Equipment Store100 996 -498 4980

Other Adult Services102 1,787 -583 1,2047.6

Total 37,563 -1,081 36,482

Note:   *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

12.6

P
age 138



 

 

Adult Social Care           Director:  Caroline Taylor 
             Executive Lead: Cllr Christine Scouler 

 
Adults and Older People – Residential and Nursing Home Provision 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

Provides accommodation, care and 
support to clients unable to live at 
home.  They may also have 
chronic/complex needs which 
prevent them from being cared for 
safely at home or within another 
setting. 
 

To proactively support the individual in 
maintaining and/or developing their 
activities of daily living skills. 
To ensure the client, working closely 
with carers and the zone team 
maintains links with family and 
community.  
To promote the health and welfare of 
the individual resident receiving the 
service. 
 

 

The service is provided to people who can no longer be supported to live at 
home and/or have chronic and complex needs which prevent them from 
being care for safely at home or in another setting (858 in total – includes 
full cost clients and short stay placements).   

Placement 
Numbers 

Older 
People 

Mental 
Health    

(under 65) 

Learning 
Disability 

TOTAL 

Residential 
Care 

591 60 114 765 

Nursing 
Care 

91 2 0 93 

Total 682 62 114 858 
 

103-107 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 139



 

 

Adults and Older People – Domiciliary and Day Care Services 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

Domiciliary care provides tailored 
support within a client’s home to 
meet their individual needs. The 
person is visited at various times of 
the day or, in some cases, care is 
provided over a full 24-hour period. 
Day care provides a range of 
meaningful social activities aimed at 
sustaining a person’s capacity to live 
independently. 
 

The reasons for the service are 
reflected in the expected outcomes, 
including:  
• Extended Client choice in the way 

their care needs are met  
• Clients live more independent and 

healthy lives  
• A wide range of responsive and 

accessible personal and non-
personal care services are 
provided, with an emphasis on 
prevention and enabling 
independence  

• High quality support for people 
with long-term needs is provided  

 

 TOTAL 
Older 

People 

Mental 
Health 

(under 65) 
LD Total 

Domiciliary 
Care 

824 689 40 95 824 

Day Care 231 122 2 107 231 

Direct 
Payment 

380 241 16 123 380 

Total 1,435 1,052 58 325 1,435 

103-107 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 140



 

 

Learning Disabilities 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

Organisations within Torbay will 
work together to ensure that people 
with a learning disability will be able 
to enjoy the same basic rights as 
anyone else. People will be housed 
and supported to find work that is 
suited to them. They will also be 
able to enjoy time with friends and 
family and take part in the culture 
and community of Torbay. 
 

To support clients to live in their own 
homes rather than living in residential 
care.  
To support clients into employment. 
To support clients with learning 
disabilities to play an active role within 
the community. 

 

 
 

Demand TOTAL  

Domiciliary & Day Care & Direct Payments 325 

Care Homes   114 

In-House services  90 

Total  529 

Ordinary Residence 2012/13 2013/14 

People moving into Torbay  28 6 

Pending n/a 4 

Projected to year end n/a 2 

People moving out to other 
areas   

-2 -5 

Balance +26 +7 

103-107 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

P
age 141



 

 

Mental Health Services 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

To support people during 
acute/severe and enduring mental 
health problems using appropriate 
residential, nursing, domiciliary and 
day care services as well as provide 
specialist advice to other frontline 
teams. 
 
Mental health services for people 
under the age of 65 are co-ordinated 
by Devon Partnership Trust; services 
for people aged over 65, and 
suffering with dementia, are co-
ordinated by the Trust. 
 
 

Dementia is one of the biggest 
challenges facing health and social 
care at present and has been 
highlighted as one of the most 
important areas for focus.  In Torbay 
our age profile means that this is even 
more an issue than most areas.  
 

 

 No. Care Home 
Clients  

Community Mental Health Team – under 65  62 

Older People Mental Health Team 214 

Total 276 

103-107 
 

 
Support to carers 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

Information, advice and emotional 
support to carers which also 
prevents the breakdown of their 
physical or mental health.  Flexible 
breaks and other support is available 
which is not dependent on accessing 
statutory services.  The service 
enables an appropriate response to 
most needs and an effective referral 
mechanism for more complex cases. 
 

The Torbay model of carers support 
combines low cost, direct access for 
carers to information, advice and 
support; encouragement of self 
care/self assessment; improvement in 
self help networks in the community, 
together with targeted support. This 
universal offer enables an appropriate 
response to most needs and effective 
referral for the more complex cases.  
Early identification and targeting 
‘hidden carers’ reduces crisis 
responses and supports a shared and 
integrated approach across the health 
and social care system 

• Torbay Carers Register supported 3570 carers in 2013-14 (524 new carers 
joined the Register)  

• 4466 carers were supported through their GP surgery in year to 01/04/14 
(up from 4303 at 01/04/13) 

• Average of 240 new enquiries per month were made to Signposts 
Information Service 

• At 01/04/14 182 Young Adult Carers had received support from the service 
and 293 carers under 25 were known to adult teams 

• 2013-14 target for carers assessments exceeded – target 31%, achieved 
35.3% 

 

103-107 
 

P
age 142



 

 

Partnership Commissioned Services 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

A range of community  services are 
commissioned particularly  for  
housing related support for Torbay’s 
vulnerable people with a local 
connection, who need support to 
remain living independently. 
Services intervene early to prevent 
the greater financial and social cost 
of acute responses to incidents such 
as, threatened homelessness, poor 
mental health and domestic abuse.  
 

There is no statutory requirement 
these services but the programme 
plays a key role in delivering the 
Council’s statutory duties in relation to 
homelessness and children, families 
and young people, crime and disorder 
and public health. 
 

Client groups include older people, homeless families, people with learning 
disability and physical/sensory disability, young people and ex-offenders.  

102 
 

 
 
Community Equipment Service 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

The Community Equipment Service 
is jointly commissioned by Torbay 
Council and Southern Devon CCG. 
The service provides complex aids 
for daily living (including, specialist 
beds, mattresses, hoists and syringe 
pumps) and minor adaptations (such 
as grab rails and ramps). It also 
provides the administration for the 
Simple Aids for Daily Living 
(including, walking frames, shower 
stools and bath boards) aids service 
which is provided by a range of local 
retailers.  
 

The equipment and adaptations 
provided enable children and adults to 
remain independent avoiding delayed 
hospital discharge, admission into 
residential and nursing care and 
support end of life care at home. 
 

Demand is driven by the need to safely discharge people from hospital and 
intermediate care with the equipment adaptations they will need to remain 
independent as well as ensuring people can remain independent at homer 
following illness or disability. This is new service so there is no historical data 
available. 
 
In April there were 297 clients who received community equipment. In May 
this increased to 611 clients 
 

100 

 

P
age 143



Service Title: Adult Social Care

Manager: Caroline Taylor

Brief Description of Service:

Torbay Council currently commissions Torbay and Southern Devon Health and Care NHS Trust (formerly Torbay Care Trust) to co-ordinate the delivery of Adult Social Care 
in Torbay.  The provision of these services is governed by an Annual Strategic Agreement (ASA).  The Council is the lead body in the operation of an equipment store for 
the purchase and distribution of items to support social care. The split over services within Adult Social Care (ASC) is an indicative split based on 14/15 estimates.
In addition Section 256 monies have not been included because the method of allocation from the Better Care Fund has not yet been agreed (£3m 14/15).
Other Adult Services supports the promotion of the independence of vulnerable people based on the commissioning of housing related support from a range of providers.
Heading includes Care Act Implementation costs funded from a specific grant (in finance).

Business Unit: Adult Social Care

Director: Caroline Taylor

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

101 Adult Social Care 2235 0 21 0 0 244 0 0 0 0 0 244

107 ASC - Commissoning & 
Delivery

00 0 2,166 0 0 2,166 0 0 0 0 0 2,166

104 ASC - Learning 
Disability

00 0 9,527 0 0 9,527 0 0 0 0 0 9,527

105 ASC - Mental Health 00 0 2,760 0 0 2,760 0 0 0 0 0 2,760

106 ASC - Other Social Care 00 0 6,182 0 0 6,182 0 0 0 0 0 6,182

P
age 144



Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

103 ASC - Physical & 
Sensory

00 0 12,795 0 0 12,795 0 0 0 0 0 12,795

108 Care Act 
Implementation

00 0 1,106 0 0 1,106 0 0 0 0 0 1,106

100 Joint Equipment Store 00 0 996 0 0 996 -498 0 0 0 -498 498

102 Other Adult Services 1407.6 0 1,647 0 0 1,787 -288 0 -295 0 -583 1,204

363 0 37,200 0 0 37,563 -786 0 -295 0 -1,081 36,482TOTAL 12.6

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 145



 

 

Adult Social Care           Director:  Caroline Taylor 
             Executive Lead: Cllr Christine Scouler 
 

Agreed Savings  – 
Outline details 

Savings for 2015/16 Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

   All Adult Social Care via 
Partnership with Trust 

within pages  
103, 104, 105, 106 & 107 

Adult Social Care (via Partnership Agreement with Torbay and Southern Devon Health and Care NHS Trust)  

1. Renegotiation of 
Contracts:  

 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 

 220,000 
 
 

Nil April 
2015 

The objective of this scheme is to secure best value from a 
range of existing contracts, without affecting service volumes 
or outcomes, through negotiation of terms and conditions 
with suppliers. Negotiations with providers affected are on-
going and are proving successful as per original proposal.  

 

2. Review of all 
existing community 
care support plans 
 

(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 

 498,000 Nil 
 

On-going 
process 

This is within existing policy and will ensure equity and parity 
between service users.  The scheme has delivered savings in 
2014/15, this will continue in 2015/16 partly as a result of the 
full year effect of the work undertaken in 2014/15 and partly 
through further review activity with individual service users.   
There is reasonable confidence that this will deliver savings at 
the required level. 

 

3. Care Home 
Placement Numbers 
& Rates 
 

(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 

 360,000 Nil On-going There has been a year on year reduction in the number of 
placements which are necessary to meet assessed needs over 
the last four years.  This trend has developed as alternative 
forms of care have come on stream.  There is confidence this 
trend will continue and the targets will be achieved.  However 
achievement of the target is reliant on this trend continuing 
and will be determined by the needs of individual service 
users and therefore be subject to demographic pressure.   

 

P
age 146



 

 

Agreed Savings  – 
Outline details 

Savings for 2015/16 Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

   All Adult Social Care via 
Partnership with Trust 

within pages  
103, 104, 105, 106 & 107 

4. Equitable 
Application of Non-
residential Charging 
policy 
 

(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 

50,000   
 
 

Nil April 
2015   

This is within existing policy and will ensure equity and parity 
between service users.  The scheme started in 2014/15, all 
relevant service users will have been reviewed by the end of 
the current financial year, £50,000 will have been delivered in 
year, this will have a full year effect of £75,000 but as £50,000 
of this has been taken as a saving in the current year the 
impact in 2015/16 will be a saving of £25,000 which will leave 
a shortfall of £25,000 which will be met through management 
of in year pressures.  

 

5. Community Alarms 
 

(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 

 48,000 Nil April 
2015 

This is within existing policy and will ensure equity and parity 
between service users and has now been subsumed within 
the review of community care support plans (see 2 above.  
This is because where alarms continue to be necessary to 
meet assessed care needs they are funded within the clients 
personal budget.  

 

6. Learning Disability 
Development Fund 
 

(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 

 17,000 Nil April 
2015 

Decision to reduce funding was made by the Council February 
2014, consultation completed as part of that decision making 
processes and this scheme is a continuation of that process.   

 

P
age 147



 

 

Agreed Savings  – 
Outline details 

Savings for 2015/16 Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

   All Adult Social Care via 
Partnership with Trust 

within pages  
103, 104, 105, 106 & 107 

7. Voluntary Sector 
Block Contracts 

 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 

 38,000 
 
 

Nil April 
2015 

Decision to reduce funding was made by the Council February 
2014, consultation completed as part of that decision making 
processes and this scheme is a continuation of that process.   

 

8. Service Redesign - 
Learning Disability 

 
Review of remaining day 
care and respite service 
including transport 
arrangements. 

 525,000 Nil On-
going 

Commissioning Strategy and delivery plans are being 
overseen by the Health and Well Being Board and Health 
Scrutiny Committee. There is a high level of confidence that 
the target will be delivered; the detail is being worked up 
through engagement processes which include people with 
learning disabilities and representative groups.  However 
delivering this target will require a range of challenging 
redesign work to be completed on a co-production basis with 
stakeholders and services users.   

 

9. Service Redesign - 
Respite Care  

 
Review existing 
arrangements for respite 
care and introduce a 
single policy to ensure 
equitable availability of 
respite care services 
according to need.  

 

 

250,000 Nil TBC A consultation process is currently underway on a revised 
policy (now referred to as short breaks).  The consultation 
process will conclude on the 13

th
 February 2015 and 

reported to the Council.  
 
An Equality Impact Assessment is being undertaken.  
 

 

P
age 148



 

 

Agreed Savings  – 
Outline details 

Savings for 2015/16 Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

   All Adult Social Care via 
Partnership with Trust 

within pages  
103, 104, 105, 106 & 107 

10. Service Redesign - St 
Kilda’s 

 
To review the proposals 
for the St Kilda’s site to 
ensure the 
recommended service 
solutions represents 
value for money. 

 
 

 

320,000 Nil Ongoing The outline business case has been approved by the Trust 
Board and a contractor has been appointed to work up the 
design and finalise the cost of building the new facility.  The 
contract is due to be agreed in April 2015 and the new 
service will come on line in October 2016.  Negotiations will 
soon commence with the current provider of the service to 
agree an exit strategy which will enable savings to be made 
in 2015/16.  
 
 

 

P
age 149



 

 

Agreed Savings  – 
Outline details 

Savings for 2015/16 Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

   All Adult Social Care via 
Partnership with Trust 

within pages  
103, 104, 105, 106 & 107 

11. Delivery Model 1 - 
Assessment Process 

 
This will involve changing 
the way that care needs 
are assessed and services 
are co-ordinated, 
including: 

 Moving to 
telephone and 
on-line 
assessments 
rather than face 
to face contacts. 

 Promoting the 
self-directed 
care and 
personal budgets 
to enable people 
to take control 
of their own 
circumstances 
and needs  
 
 

 

668,000 Covered by 
pooled 

arrangements 
with NHS 

April 
2015 to 
March 
2016 

The scheme will impact on how care needs assessments are 
undertaken but not the level of care provided.  Development 
and pilot work is currently underway, with full 
implementation scheduled for July 2015.  The expectation is 
that the part year effect savings (July 2015 to March 2016) 
will meet the 2015/16 target.  

 

P
age 150



 

 

Agreed Savings  – 
Outline details 

Savings for 2015/16 Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

   All Adult Social Care via 
Partnership with Trust 

within pages  
103, 104, 105, 106 & 107 

12. Delivery Model 2 - 
Emergency Duty 
Team 

 
Review of the way Out of 
Hours & Emergency Duty 
services are provided. 

 

 

274,000 nil TBC A range of options are being evaluated, including other 
providers or extending joint approach with Children’s 
Services and the MASH development. This involves 
negotiations with staff and trade unions, there is assurance 
that savings will be made but the final figure and full year 
effect is not guaranteed at this stage.    

 

13. Delivery Model - 
Quality Assurance  

 
To review the way the 
Trust works with 
providers of nursing, 
residential and 
domiciliary care services 
to promote and ensure 
the quality of services.  

 

 

127,000 nil April 
2016 

A saving of £91,000 has been delivered however this has 
reduced the size and capacity of the team providing this 
service to the smallest viable critical mass.  Further savings 
are not possible as this would result in the removal of all 
internal assurance processes which would compromise 
safeguarding procedures and result in reliance on CQC 
processes for all on going quality assurance.  There will 
therefore be a shortfall of £36,000 which will be met through 
management of in year pressures. 

  

 P
age 151



 

 

Agreed Savings  – 
Outline details 

Savings for 2015/16 Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

   All Adult Social Care via 
Partnership with Trust 

within pages  
103, 104, 105, 106 & 107 

14. Movement of clients 
from residential 
homes to Extra Care 
Housing 

 
The objective will be to 
support people to 
remain, or return to, 
living independently in 
their own 
accommodation. 

 

500,000 TBC TBC This is a high level proposal involving housing providers and 
is in line with the housing commissioning strategy which was 
agreed by the Health and Well Being Board.  As proposals are 
developed and there is a level of detail upon which there can 
be consultation with service users and their families this will 
be completed.  The results of the consultation, along with an 
Equality Impact Assessment, will then be considered in 
reaching decisions about the future of these services.  There 
is confidence that part year savings can be achieved but the 
full year effect remains high risk.  
 
 

 

15. Further Joint 
working, shared 
commissioning, new 
income and 
efficiencies to be 
explored with the 
NHS and others. 

 
 

1,566,000 TBC TBC This area is still under exploration. There are benefits to be 
realised in development of new income and further risk 
mitigation, through gain share or other mechanisms but 
requires more time. The delivery of the ICO understandably 
continues to be the priority for delivery in our local system. 
The Better Care Fund did not become a source of new 
monies and has been refocused by government on 
prioritising reductions in acute emergency admissions. 
 
The Mayor is proposing to defer these savings until 2016/17 
when they must be delivered and will ask the Director of 
Adult Social Care to bring forward proposals for the delivery 
of these savings as soon as practicable with the target of 
delivering some of these savings in 2015/16 once the ICO  
has been formed. 
 

 

  

P
age 152



 

 

 

Agreed Savings  – Outline 
details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Partnership Commissioned Services   
16. Integrated families 

service 
 

(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 
 

 43,700    102 

17. Reaching Out South 
West 

 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 
 

 450,000    102 

18. Review of staffing 
arrangements to 
match service 
demand  

 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 

 186,000    102 

 
 

 

P
age 153



Children's Services

2015/16 Budget Summary (*ATL)

ServiceTitleID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees. 

TBC

Adoption Allowances743 308 0 3080

Adoption Service719 533 -110 4230

Alternative Provision / Vulnerable Children744 2,143 -30 2,1130

Assessment Resource Centre728 530 0 5300

Business Support725 1,264 0 1,2640

Careers South West Contract703 339 0 3390

Children in Nedd / Child Protection730 1,936 0 1,9360

Children's Society Contract704 199 0 1990

Citizens Advice and Media Wave754 84 0 840

Commissioning Unit700 491 -90 4010

Connected Persons Fostering736 420 0 4200

Disabilities - Day Care Services709 234 -40 1940

Disabilities - Direct Payments715 297 -45 2520

P
age 154



ServiceTitleID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees. 

TBC

Disabilities - Domiciliary Care713 39 -10 290

Disabilities - Overnight Short Breaks714 341 -161 1800

Disabilities - Social Work Team712 281 -31 2500

Disabilities- Occupational Therapy710 158 -14 1440

Early Help Service717 380 -329 510

Early Years / Children's Centres Contract748 1,647 -311 1,3360

Family Group Conferencing727 92 0 920

Fostering - Recruitment, Assessment, Supervision & Su718 694 0 6940

Home to School Transport / Escorts751 1,941 -84 1,8570

In House Fostering734 1,839 0 1,8390

Independent Sector Fostering737 4,806 0 4,8060

Independent Special School Fees746 1,679 0 1,6790

Intensive Family Support Services729 476 0 4760

Intensive Youth Support Service722 410 0 4100

Intensive Youth Support Service - Southwark723 150 0 1500

P
age 155



ServiceTitleID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees. 

TBC

LAC Team716 569 0 5690

Lodgings / Personal Allowances735 466 0 4660

Mother & Baby Placements738 303 0 3030

Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH)726 212 0 2120

My Place - Parkfield701 291 -75 2160

Organisational Development / Quality Assurance711 483 0 4830

Other Safeguarding Activities732 267 -65 2020

Other School Support Services752 1,906 -366 1,5400

Private Finance Initiative753 1,594 -1,199 3950

PVI Nursery Funding - 2, 3 & 4 year olds747 4,181 0 4,1810

Residency Allowances740 218 0 2180

Residential Care739 6,267 -193 6,0740

Safeguarding Children Board708 140 -48 920

Safeguarding Unit707 301 0 3010

School Funding749 38,310 -49,012 -10,7020

P
age 156



ServiceTitleID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees. 

TBC

Section 17 - Assistance to Families741 174 0 1740

SEND Reform Grant706 36 0 360

Senior Management Team731 516 0 5160

Special Educational Needs745 740 -185 5550

Special Guardianship Allowances742 120 0 1200

Therapeutic Services724 188 0 1880

Troubled Families Grant756 302 -302 00

Young Person's Substance Misuse705 140 -68 720

Youth Justice721 301 -301 00

Youth Offending720 267 -56 2110

Youth Outreach702 145 0 1450

Total 82,148 -53,125 29,023

Note:   *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

0

P
age 157



 

 

 
 
Children’s Services            Director:  Richard Williams 
              Executive Lead: Cllr Ken Pritchard  

 
Schools Services 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

 School Improvement 

 Behaviour Support - EOTAS 

 Ethnic Minority Achievement Service – 

support to pupils with English as an 

additional language (EAL) 

 Early Years and Childcare Advisory 

Service 

 Special Education Needs Support 

Services 

 School Admissions 

 School Transport 

 Governor Services 

 

Local authorities are bound by 200+ 

statutory duties covering education and 

social care and have a duty to provide 

suitable education for all children and is 

accountable for the performance of all 

schools including academies. 

This includes pupils who have been 

excluded, have medical conditions, are in 

hospital, are being educated at home or 

need support as English is not their first 

language. 

As at May 2014 there are 18 maintained settings (13 
primary/2 secondary/2 special/1PRU), 24 academies (17 
primary, 6 secondary, 1 special) with over 19,000 pupils. 

Torbay has approximately 75 children educated at home, 320 
pupils in the virtual school, 150 receive hospital tuition 
annually, nearly 500 EAL pupils who receive support  and 
5500, 0-4 year olds who need appropriate provision. Over 
4000 school place applications are processed annually with 
approximately 1800 pupils needing school transport. 

Torbay has higher than national average SEN pupils at 3.1% 
(national 2.8%). 

706 

744 – 749 

751 - 753 

 
Commissioning Unit 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

This includes the redesigned commissioning 

unit including housing strategy, youth 

services, external contracts with Careers 

South West & Action for Children. 

To deliver services to meet statutory duties 

to provide sufficient educational provision 

for 0-4, Raising Participation Age and 

providing support to vulnerable young 

people 

Over 6600 young people are supported into Employment, 

Education of Training (EET) including over 2000 vulnerable 

young people. 

700 – 705 

754 & 756 

 

 

 

P
age 158



 

 

Safeguarding and Wellbeing 

What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

 Safeguarding Hub  

 Children In Need Service  

 Family Solutions  

 Safeguarding & Family Support – 
includes Child Protection & 
Proceedings, The ARC, 

 Intensive Family Support  

 Specialist Services – includes Fostering, 
Adoption , Permanence Team, Children 
with Disabilities  

 Quality Assurance – includes 
Safeguarding Unit , Torbay 
Safeguarding Children's Board , PARIS 
Team , Organisational Development , 
Family Group Conference  

 Integrated Youth Support  includes 
Parkfield & Youth Service 

The work is of a statutory nature, the 
legislation contained within the  Children Act  
1989 and subsequent amendments and 
updates, Children Act 2004, as well as the 
Children (Leaving Care) Act 2000 and the 
Care Planning, Placement and Review 
(England) Regulations 2010 , Fostering 
Regulations 2011, The Adoption and 
Children Act,  Carers and Disabled Children 
Act 2000 
To provide targeted interventions and crisis 
support to children, young people and their 
families, act as corporate parent to children 
looked after. 
 

In 2013/14 there were over 7700 contacts to the 
Safeguarding Hub. 
 
In the financial year 2012/2013 there were 785 children 
and young people referred to the Family Support . 

The demand for the service fluctuates depending on 
referrals by a variety of agencies and the general public. 

707 – 732 
 

734 – 743 

 

 
 
 

P
age 159



Service Title: Schools Services

Manager: D Hadleigh / J Inett / R Williams / T Harwood

Brief Description of Service:

This includes services funded by the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) of approx £41m and Council funding. 
The main services predominately funded by DSG are:- School Formula Allocations, Alternative Provision / Vulnerable Children, Independent Special School 
Fees, PVI and Early Years funding.
Services predominately funded by Council funding are:- Special Educational Needs, Home to School Transport / Escorts, other school support services 
including Educational Psychology & Advisory Teachers, Governing Body Support and Private Finance Initiative.

Business Unit: Children's Services

Director: Richard Williams

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)
 TBC

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Contribs
. From 
DSG

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

744 Alternative Provision / 
Vulnerable Children

6070 21 353 0 1,162 2,143 -30 0 0 0 -30 2,113

748 Early Years / 
Children's Centres 

3780 10 959 0 300 1,647 -11 0 0 -300 -311 1,336

751 Home to School 
Transport / Escorts

970 0 1,518 0 326 1,941 -84 0 0 0 -84 1,857

746 Independent Special 
School Fees

00 0 1,679 0 0 1,679 0 0 0 0 0 1,679

752 Other School Support 
Services

5530 1 1,273 0 79 1,906 -184 -72 -110 0 -366 1,540

753 Private Finance 
Initiative

00 0 1,082 472 40 1,594 -558 -503 -138 0 -1,199 395

P
age 160



Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)
 TBC

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Contribs
. From 
DSG

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

747 PVI Nursery Funding - 
2, 3 & 4 year olds

00 0 0 0 4,181 4,181 0 0 0 0 0 4,181

749 School Funding 00 0 1,500 1,014 35,796 38,310 0 -46,498 -2,514 0 -49,012 -10,702

706 SEND Reform Grant 360 0 0 0 0 36 0 0 0 0 0 36

745 Special Educational 
Needs

2160 0 524 0 0 740 -185 0 0 0 -185 555

1,887 32 8,888 1,486 41,884 54,177 -1,052 -47,073 -2,762 -300 -51,187 2,990TOTAL 0

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 161



Service Title: Commissioning Unit Inc Youth & External Contracts

Manager: Gail Rogers / Julie Sharland

Brief Description of Service:

This includes Commissioning Unit, Youth Services and external contracts with Careers South West, Children's Society and Citizens Advice. This also 
includes the Troubled Families Grant.

Business Unit: Children's Services

Director: Richard Williams

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)
 TBC

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Income 
from 
Health

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

703 Careers South West 
Contract

00 0 339 0 0 339 0 0 0 0 0 339

704 Children's Society 
Contract

00 0 199 0 0 199 0 0 0 0 0 199

754 Citizens Advice and 
Media Wave

00 0 84 0 0 84 0 0 0 0 0 84

700 Commissioning Unit 4620 0 29 0 0 491 -90 0 0 0 -90 401

701 My Place - Parkfield 1580 84 49 0 0 291 -75 0 0 0 -75 216

756 Troubled Families Grant 00 0 0 0 302 302 0 -302 0 0 -302 0

P
age 162



Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)
 TBC

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Income 
from 
Health

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

705 Young Person's 
Substance Misuse

00 0 140 0 0 140 0 0 0 -68 -68 72

702 Youth Outreach 00 0 0 0 145 145 0 0 0 0 0 145

620 84 840 0 447 1,991 -165 -302 0 -68 -535 1,456TOTAL 0

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 163



Service Title: Children's Safeguarding Service-Children in Need / Child Protection / Single Assessment / MAS

Manager: Giselle Jones / Vashti Wickers

Brief Description of Service:

This service includes all costs in relation to business support and social workers, plus staff travel, subsistence and mobile phone costs etc across CIN & 
CP, Single Assessment, MASH and the Senior Mgt Team (excluding the Director of Children's Services).
Also costs in relation to the Assessment Resource Centre, Family Group Conferencing and Intensive Family Support Service.
The recruitment and retention initiative for social workers is also included. The cost of court proceedings and other legal costs are included in other 
safeguarding activities.

Business Unit: Children's Services

Director: Richard Williams

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)
 TBC

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Parents 
Penalty 
Notices

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

728 Assessment Resource 
Centre

4840 26 20 0 0 530 0 0 0 0 0 530

725 Business Support 1,1540 2 108 0 0 1,264 0 0 0 0 0 1,264

730 Children in Nedd / 
Child Protection

1,8770 0 59 0 0 1,936 0 0 0 0 0 1,936

717 Early Help Service 3550 0 25 0 0 380 0 -321 0 -8 -329 51

727 Family Group 
Conferencing

860 0 6 0 0 92 0 0 0 0 0 92

729 Intensive Family 
Support Services

4590 0 17 0 0 476 0 0 0 0 0 476

P
age 164



Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)
 TBC

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Parents 
Penalty 
Notices

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

726 Multi Agency 
Safeguarding Hub 

2070 0 5 0 0 212 0 0 0 0 0 212

732 Other Safeguarding 
Activities

00 0 267 0 0 267 0 0 -65 0 -65 202

731 Senior Management 
Team

5130 0 3 0 0 516 0 0 0 0 0 516

5,135 28 510 0 0 5,673 0 -321 -65 -8 -394 5,279TOTAL 0

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support servicesP
age 165



Service Title: Children's Safeguarding Service - Placement Costs & Allowances

Manager: Jacqui Jenson

Brief Description of Service:

This only includes costs relating to the care of children in need or in care. It also includes health income to support packages of care and contributions from 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) for joint funded placements with an educational element.

Business Unit: Children's Services

Director: Richard Williams

Supplies 
& 

Services

Payments 
to Carers

Payment 
to 

Providers
 / 

Individual
s

No of 
Staff 

(**FTE)
 TBC

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Income 
from Health

Contribs
. From 
DSG

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

743 Adoption Allowances 00 0 0 308 0 308 0 0 0 0 0 308

736 Connected Persons 
Fostering

00 0 0 420 0 420 0 0 0 0 0 420

734 In House Fostering 100 0 48 1,764 17 1,839 0 0 0 0 0 1,839

737 Independent Sector 
Fostering

00 0 31 0 4,775 4,806 0 0 0 0 0 4,806

735 Lodgings / Personal 
Allowances

00 0 0 0 466 466 0 0 0 0 0 466

P
age 166



Supplies 
& 

Services

Payments 
to Carers

Payment 
to 

Providers
 / 

Individual
s

No of 
Staff 

(**FTE)
 TBC

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Income 
from Health

Contribs
. From 
DSG

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

738 Mother & Baby 
Placements

00 0 0 0 303 303 0 0 0 0 0 303

740 Residency Allowances 00 0 0 218 0 218 0 0 0 0 0 218

739 Residential Care 00 0 16 0 6,251 6,267 0 0 -80 -113 -193 6,074

741 Section 17 - Assistance 
to Families

130 0 161 0 0 174 0 0 0 0 0 174

742 Special Guardianship 
Allowances

00 0 0 120 0 120 0 0 0 0 0 120

23 0 256 2,830 11,812 14,921 0 0 -80 -113 -193 14,728TOTAL 0

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 167



Service Title: Children's Safeguarding Service - Disabilities / Quality Assurance

Manager: Dorothy Hadleigh / Graham Puckeri

Brief Description of Service:

This includes the staffing costs relating to the Safeguarding Unit and Board. All services relating to Disability Services including the cost of packages of 
care including direct payments and staffing costs.

Continuous Professional Training is also included here as is parenting training for families. The team who manage the PARIS system is also included.

Business Unit: Children's Services

Director: Richard Williams

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)
 TBC

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Income 
from Health

Income 
Police / 

Probation

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

709 Disabilities - Day Care 
Services

1870 7 40 0 0 234 0 0 -40 0 -40 194

715 Disabilities - Direct 
Payments

00 0 0 0 297 297 0 0 -45 0 -45 252

713 Disabilities - 
Domiciliary Care

00 0 39 0 0 39 0 0 -10 0 -10 29

714 Disabilities - Overnight 
Short Breaks

00 0 0 0 341 341 0 0 -161 0 -161 180

712 Disabilities - Social 
Work Team

2750 0 6 0 0 281 0 0 -31 0 -31 250

710 Disabilities- 
Occupational Therapy

1340 0 24 0 0 158 0 0 -14 0 -14 144

P
age 168



Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)
 TBC

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Income 
from Health

Income 
Police / 

Probation

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

711 Organisational 
Development / Quality 

2360 0 247 0 0 483 0 0 0 0 0 483

708 Safeguarding Children 
Board

800 3 57 0 0 140 0 0 -28 -20 -48 92

707 Safeguarding Unit 2990 0 2 0 0 301 0 0 0 0 0 301

1,211 10 415 0 638 2,274 0 0 -329 -20 -349 1,925TOTAL 0

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support servicesP
age 169



Service Title: Children's Safeguarding Service - Specialist Services / Intensive Youth

Manager: Andrenna Fuller / Amanda Douglas

Brief Description of Service:

This includes the staffing costs for the following service areas:-

LAC Team, Intensive Youth Support Service, Fostering Recruitment, Assessment, Supervision and Support, Adoption Team, Therapeutic Services 
(CAMHS) and Youth Offending.
This also includes costs in relation to additional costs and leaving care grants for non LAC 16-18 yr olds and over 18's, Southwark judgement lodgings 
costs and Therapuetic Services.

Business Unit: Children's Services

Director: Richard Williams

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)
 TBC

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Contribs. 
from 
other 
LA's

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Income 
from Health

Income 
from 

Police / 
Probatio

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

719 Adoption Service 4020 0 131 0 0 533 -110 0 0 0 -110 423

718 Fostering - 
Recruitment, 
Assessment, 
Supervision & Support

5970 0 97 0 0 694 0 0 0 0 0 694

722 Intensive Youth 
Support Service

3640 0 16 0 30 410 0 0 0 0 0 410

723 Intensive Youth 
Support Service - 
Southwark

00 0 150 0 0 150 0 0 0 0 0 150

P
age 170



Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)
 TBC

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Contribs. 
from 
other 
LA's

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Income 
from Health

Income 
from 

Police / 
Probatio

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

716 LAC Team 5430 0 26 0 0 569 0 0 0 0 0 569

724 Therapeutic Services 730 0 115 0 0 188 0 0 0 0 0 188

721 Youth Justice 2480 0 53 0 0 301 0 -301 0 0 -301 0

720 Youth Offending 2040 0 63 0 0 267 0 0 -18 -38 -56 211

2,431 0 651 0 30 3,112 -110 -301 -18 -38 -467 2,645TOTAL 0

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 171



 

 

 
Children’s Services            Director:  Richard Williams 
              Executive Lead: Cllr Ken Pritchard  
 

Agreed Savings – 
Outline details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implementation 
Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

School Services   
1.   Restructure of Early 

Years Services 
 

(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 
 

 360,000    746/748/747/752 

2.   Efficiencies within 
Transport – To 
introduce a charge for 
transport for post-16 
SEN students studying 
on SEN courses and 
students with medical 
needs requiring 
specialist transport 

 

 Year 1 
(15/16) 
10,000 

 
Year 2 

(16/17) 
21,000 

 
Year 3 

(17/18) 
27,000 

 01/04/15 
 Minor Impact 

This proposal may cause some financial hardship and/or limit the choice of 
schools available for some families to choose from; however, parents will have 
more time to find the additional resource and access to bursaries should offset 
the cost for students of families on low income 
 
An Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken in relation to this proposal. 
 
 

751 

3.  School Transport 
 
This proposal concerns 
a further review of 
School Transport. 

 40,000 Associated 
redundancy 

costs and 
pension strain if 

applicable  
 

01/04/15 Internal 
The Authority is currently investigating potential options for the future delivery 
arrangements for School Transport. 
There are no risks identified with this proposal and no potential impact of service 
users. 
 

751 

 

P
age 172



 

 

 
 
 
 

Agreed Savings – 
Outline details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implementation 
Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Commissioning Unit   
4.   Reduction in the 
Action for Children 
Contract by 10% in 
2014/15 and 2015/16 
 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 100,000    748 

5.   Children’s Centre 
Contract 
 
 

 50,000  01/04/15 Minor Impact 
This is a further cut to the current Action for Children Contract.  The Local 
Authority will be implementing the already agreed 10% cut stated within the 
contract for 2015/16.  This proposal may limit the ability of Action for Children to 
deliver some current services and achieve targets. 

An Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken in relation to this proposal. 

748 

6.   Careers South West 
 
This proposal concerns 
a reduction in the 
Careers South West 
Contract for 2015/16. 

 45,000  01/04/15 Minor Impact 
 
It is proposed this will be mitigated by reduction in accommodation cost with 
little impact on service users. 

703 

 

 

 

P
age 173



 

 

 

 

Agreed Savings – 
Outline details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implementation 
Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Safeguarding and Wellbeing   
7.  Review of Day Care 
and Domiciliary Care 
service - Review of Kool 
Club and Quids for 
Special Kids  

 
A review of specialist 
services which provides 
services for children 
with disabilities. 

 

 52,000  01/04/15 Minor Impact 
As part of the review of services, there is the potential that some families will no 
longer receive some services in their current form.  This proposal may also result 
in a reduction in grant for some service providers. 
 
The potential impact of this proposal has been explored through consultation.  
An Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken in relation to this proposal. 
 

709/712/713 

8. Changes to 
Management 
Arrangements and re-
focusing of Youth 
Provision Parkfield 
Youth Centre 
 
 (Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 
 

50,000    701 

P
age 174



 

 

Agreed Savings – 
Outline details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implementation 
Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

9.  Young Carers 
 
This proposal concerns 
a review of the Young 
Carers Service 
 
 

 20,000 Associated 
redundancy 

costs and 
pension strain if 

applicable  
 

01/04/15 Minor Impact 
This proposal concerns a review of the current Young Carers Service that meets 
the needs of the Young Carers population within Torbay.  
This is a high level proposal and once there is a level of detail upon which there 
can be detailed consultation with service users and their families this will be 
completed.  The results of the consultation, along with an Equalities Impact 
Assessment, will then be considered in reaching decisions about the future of 
these services. As such this level of saving is not guaranteed until this process has 
been completed. 

700 

10.  Portage Service 
 
This proposal concerns 
a review of the Portage 
Service.  This proposal 
will form part of the 
general review of 0-5 
services across Torbay. 

 36,000  01/04/15 Minor Impact 
This proposal concerns a review of the current portage service, the potential 
impact of this proposal will be explored through consultation with Partners and 
service users across Torbay.  The proposal will form part of the general review of 
0-5 services across Torbay. 
This is a high level proposal and once there is a level of detail upon which there 
can be detailed consultation with service users and their families this will be 
completed.  The results of the consultation, along with an Equalities Impact 
Assessment, will then be considered in reaching decisions about the future of 
these services. As such this level of saving is not guaranteed until this process has 
been completed. 

731 

11.   Organisational 
Development 
 
This proposal; concerns 
an increase to the 
training charges made 
to external partners in 
relation to Safeguarding 
Children (Child 
Protection) Training. 
 

25,000    Internal 
There are no risks identified with this proposal and no potential impact of service 
users. 

711 

P
age 175



 

 

Agreed Savings – 
Outline details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implementation 
Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

12.  Central Costs  
 
This proposal concerns 
a review of all 
management functions 
across the Service and a 
review of the Business 
Support Service. 

 100,000 Associated 
redundancy 

costs and 
pension strain if 

applicable  

01/04/15 Internal 
There are no risks identified with this proposal and no potential impact of service 
users. 
 

725/731 

 
 
 

P
age 176



 

 

Children’s Services – Draft Fees and Charges 2015/16 
 
 

 
 

Current 
2014/15 

Proposed 
2015/16 

Home to College/School Transport – Bus Pass £540.00 £540.00 plus 
inflationary 

increase from 
September 2015 

 

Parkfield – My Place assumed from April 2015 the service will form part 
of the proposed Youth Trust. 

  

 

Page 177



Public Health

2015/16 Budget Summary (*ATL)

ServiceTitleID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees

Management & Administration900 1,626 -7,647 -6,02115

Non Prescribed Functions901 3,813 -82 3,7310

Prescribed Functions902 2,666 -376 2,2900

Total 8,105 -8,105 0

Note:   *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

15

P
age 178



 

 

Public Health Commissioning           Director:  Caroline Dimond 
              Executive Lead: Cllr Chris Lewis 
 
 
Public Health Commissioning 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

Torbay Council’s Public Health Team 
commissions a broad range of services 
to improve the health of the population. 
This includes promoting and helping 
people to live healthier lifestyles and 
ultimately contributing to people living 
longer and healthier. 
 
Some of these services are familiar to 
people such those that tackle smoking, 
obesity, drug and alcohol misuse and 
promote nutrition and physical activity. 
Others such as NHS Health Checks or the 
National Child Measurement 
Programme are initiatives that are 
people are likely to be less acquainted 
with.  
 
The Government expects that certain 
public health responsibilities are 
mandatory, for example that there is 
appropriate access to sexual health 
services in the locality.  
 

It is a statutory function of public health 
within the local authority to provide 
population healthcare advice to the 
NHS. Public Health expertise must be 
made available to the Southern Devon & 
Torbay Clinical Commissioning Group to 
support improvement in the quality of 
healthcare services; reduce health 
inequalities and achieve positive health 
outcomes for Torbay. 

There are a range of demands for the 
Public Health Service - Full details are 
included within the Summary Service 
Review available at 
www.torbay.gov.uk/budget 
  

900 to 902 

 
 

  

P
age 179

http://www.torbay.gov.uk/budget


Service Title: Public Health

Manager: Caroline Dimond

Brief Description of Service:

From April 2013 the Council became responsible for elements of the public health function previously carried out by Primary Care Trusts. This includes:
Prescribed functions such as sexual health,  public health advice and health checks. Income includes payments from Devon County Council for the sexual 
health function for the Southern Devon area.
Non Prescribed functions such as substance misuse (drugs & alcohol), stop smoking, obesity & physical activity.
For 2015/16 the service will be funded by a ring fenced grant.  For future years the grant may form part of the Revenue Support Grant or be unringfenced.

Business Unit: Public Health

Executive Head: Caroline Dimond

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

900 Management & 
Administration

88315 1 742 0 0 1,626 -251 -7,396 0 0 -7,647 -6,021

901 Non Prescribed 
Functions

00 3 3,810 0 0 3,813 -82 0 0 0 -82 3,731

902 Prescribed Functions 00 0 2,666 0 0 2,666 -376 0 0 0 -376 2,290

883 4 7,218 0 0 8,105 -709 -7,396 0 0 -8,105 0TOTAL 15

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 180



Community Safety

2015/16 Budget Summary (*ATL)

ServiceTitleID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees

Bereavement Services300 0 -670 -6700

Community Development301 218 -100 1180

Community Protection302 610 -85 52515.5

Corporate Security552 345 -146 1997.43

Divisional Management & Operational Support303 340 -107 2339.7

Food Safety, Health & Safety, Licensing and Trading St304 799 -468 33118.3

Health & Safety and Resilience310 185 -18 1674

Healthwatch305 149 0 1490

Housing Options308 349 0 34914.8

Licensed Accommodation311 195 -165 300

Mediation & Housing Partnership314 21 0 210

Prevention Fund313 60 0 600

Private Sector Housing Standards306 441 -48 3937

Rent Deposit Guarantee & Bond Scheme312 39 0 390

P
age 181



ServiceTitleID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees

Road Safety  & School Crossing Patrols561 115 -20 956

Safer Communities (inc Community Safety Partnership)307 249 0 24920.3

Temporary Accommodation309 50 -15 350

Total 4,165 -1,842 2,323

Note:   *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

103.03

P
age 182



 

 

Community Safety            Director:  Steve Parrock 
              Executive Head: Fran Hughes 
              Executive Lead: Cllr Robert Excell 
 
Commercial Regulation, Food Safety, Health and Safety, Licensing & Trading Standards 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference 

The Council regulates commercial 
businesses to protect the public health, 
safety and welfare.  These include 
businesses where food is prepared and 
sold; workplaces; traders that operate 
from Torbay; leisure facilities, etc. 
Key services provided include: - 

 Food hygiene, food standards and 
Health & Safety enforcement. 

 Investigation of infectious disease. 

 Health and Safety in the workplace 

 Investigation of reportable 
accidents. 

 Petroleum Licensing. 

 Trading Standards  

 Licensing of premises and personal 
licences. 

 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Vehicle Licensing. 

 School Meals Client Monitoring. 

 Improving Road Safety including 
Road safety education, training and 
publicity 

 School Crossing Patrols  

The Council has a statutory duty to 
provide a full range of Environmental 
Health, Trading Standards and Licensing 
regulatory responsibilities and the way 
in which it delivers this requirement is 
governed by a large number of statutes.  
The mechanism by which it delivers is 
prescribed as are the qualifications of 
the officers who can be authorised to 
carry out the work. 
 

Demand is generally categorised into two main areas: 
proactive and reactive.  Our proactive work is planned 
work, prescribed by legislation.  Our reactive work is 
our response to demands from the population of 
Torbay where we have a statutory duty or power to 
intervene to protect public health, safety or welfare. 
Demand is largely driven by the duty on local 
authorities to comply with statutory legislation and 
activity levels are prescribed.   
 
25 School Crossing patrols are provided for local 
schools 
 

304, 561 

  

P
age 183



 

 

Community Protection 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference 

Community Protection includes core 
statutory services of Environmental 
Health, namely Pollution Control and 
Private Sector Housing Standards and 
Anti-Social behaviour  It also provides a 
wide range of other mandatory duties 
allied to these core themes. 
Community Protection key services are 
managed collectively to ensure 
neighbourhood issues are adequately 
addressed. 

The Community Protection Team has a range 
of mandatory regulatory responsibilities and 
the way in which it delivers services is 
governed by a large number of statutes.   

Demand is generally categorised into two main 
areas: proactive and reactive.  Our proactive 
work is planed work, prescribed by legislation.  
Our reactive work is our response to demands 
from the population of Torbay where we have a 
statutory duty or power to intervene to protect 
public health, safety or welfare. 
Demand is largely driven by the duty on local 
authorities to comply with statutory legislation.  

302, 306 

 
Corporate Security & CCTV  
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

 Providing CCTV surveillance and 
managing the Council’s 232 CCTV 
cameras and communication 
network  

 Supporting the Crime and Disorder 
partnership by assisting the Police 
with detection of crime and 
antisocial behaviour  

 Managing the Councils corporate 
security team providing static and 
mobile guarding  

 Managing buildings access and ID 
card control along with security risk 
assessments  

 Producing and maintaining the 
Councils security policy  

 Opening and closing Council 
buildings. 

 Security support for events 

The CCTV and Security service is provided for 
the security of members of the public and 
Council staff.  

Residents and visitors to Torbay, as well as 
Council staff.  

552 

P
age 184



 

 

Safer Communities 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

The Safer Communities team now forms 
part of the wider Community Protection 
Team and co-ordinates the Safer 
Communities Partnership as well as 
managing the front line service delivery 
of a number of partnership funded 
projects. Its main aim is to reduce the 
incidence and fear of crime, making 
Torbay a safe and healthy place to live in 
and visit. The Council has statutory 
duties as a Community Safety 
Partnership and also has duties to meet 
the requirements of Section 17 Crime 
and Disorder Act. Torbay Council works 
with other partners including the Police, 
Fire, Probation Service and Torbay Care 
Trust, who also contribute to the Safer 
Communities Partnership. The care staff 
are funded as the Council's contribution 
to the partnership. However, all other 
staff are funded through a variety of 
grant funding arrangements.  

The Council has a statutory duty to maintain 
a Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership 
(Crime and Disorder Act 1998).  This duty 
includes a number of specific elements 
including:  
Community Safety meetings held, formal 
multi-agency information exchange protocol, 
holding public meetings to consult with 
communities about priorities, rolling strategic 
assessment of crime and disorder, 
implementation of a strategy to reduce 
offending, delivery of the PREVENT agenda 
 

Demand comes from a range of activities and 
interventions identified in the Community Safety 
Strategic Assessment.  This document has 
identified the priorities for Torbay as being anti-
social behaviour; offending/reoffending; violence 
in the home and night time economy issues. 

307 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 185



 

 

Housing Options 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

The Housing Options Service provides a 
range of services to prevent 
homelessness and support individuals 
and families in crisis, through the 
provision of emergency and temporary 
accommodation.  Based at Tor Hill 
House, Housing Options is the main 
referral route into any temporary 
accommodation contracted by the 
Authority. 
There is a statutory duty to produce a 
Homelessness Strategy and maintain a 
housing register. This requires the 
provision of a Housing Options service 
for prevention advice and homeless 
applications. In addition the Council has 
to provide emergency and temporary 
accommodation and access to support 
and supported accommodation to the 
meet different needs. 

The Housing Options Team has a range of 
statutory duties to deliver emergency and 
temporary accommodation and prevent 
homelessness and manage the housing 
waiting list.  The way in which it delivers 
services is governed by a large number of 
statutes.   

The service is accessed by all client groups, 
families, young people, single people, and older 
people’s including vulnerable groups with 
complex needs. 
Internal: Referrals are received from a range of 
Torbay Council business areas, e.g., Children and 
Adults social care, Housing Benefit, Housing 
Standards, Connections Offices. 
External: Social and private landlords, partner 
agencies, e.g. Probation, YOT, Care Trust, Health, 
Checkpoint. 

Housing Options 308 311 
314 312 309 313 

 
Community Development 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

The Council works in partnership with 
the community to develop their capacity 
to influence services delivered and to 
increase their ability to commission 
services and improvements themselves.  
This is largely provided through an 
arrangement with the Torbay 
Community Development Trust. 
 

The council is committed to building capacity 
within our community and voluntary sector 
to ensure that wherever possible we 
maximise the skills and expertise of our 
communities. 

Demand is driven by the parameters of the 
agreement in place with the Community 
Development Trust and the agreed business plan 
for the next three years. 

301 

 

P
age 186



 

 

Health and Safety and Emergency Planning 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

This includes corporate health and 
safety, emergency planning and 
business continuity.   
 

Health & Safety & Emergency Planning 
Team 
This team fulfils the organisation’s statutory 
requirements in relation to emergency 
planning in relation to the council’s duty as a 
category one responder under the Civil 
Contingencies Act and corporate health and 
safety to ensure that our minimum statutory 
obligations are fulfilled (Health and Safety at 
Work Act 1974). 
In House Corporate Health and Safety 
Support  
There are currently two members of staff 
who are employed specifically to protect the 
interests in Torbay Council and schools with 
regard to health and safety.  They provide 
policy development and support, accident 
investigation, training to all council staff and 
schools.  They are the competent persons 
required for an organisation of Torbay 
Councils size to fulfil its duties under the 
Health and Safety at Work Act. 
Emergency Planning 
There are two members of staff who 
undertake a range of preparedness and 
response duties in relation to emergency 
planning and business continuity.  These 
functions  enable  the council to 
appropriately respond to civil emergencies 
and minimise the impact of these demand 
pressures on other areas of the councils 
business. 

Demand drivers include: 

 Number of accidents reported 

 Number of large public events in Torbay 

 Office rationalisation 

 Health and Safety training course 
required for staff including schools 

 Number of civil emergencies e.g. fires, 
flooding, landslips etc 

 Regional collaboration commitment 
through the Local Resilience Forum 

 Wide scale health protection incidents 

 Changes to the structure of the 
organisation in terms of amendments to 
business continuity and roles and 
responsibilities. 

310 

 
 

P
age 187



 

 

Divisional Management and Support 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

This service includes the Executive Head 
and the operational, financial & 
administrative support functions 
including analytical and intelligence 
functions.  It provides administrative 
support to all of the front line teams 
within the regulatory services elements 
of the unit.  It also provides specialist 
technical support to manage the 
databases and performance data as well 
as financial support to the teams.  The 
unit includes PA support to the 
Executive Head and has project 
management capability for front line 
work across the business unit.   
It also delivers the functions of the client 
for the cemeteries and crematoria 
contract; local Healthwatch; iNHS 
complaints advocacy; as well as  the 
coordination of a number of 
partnerships, including PREVENT, Public 
Safety Advisory Group, the Torquay 
United Safety Advisory Group, and 
analytical support to the Safer 
Communities Partners, some public 
health functions as well as the Business 
Unit itself. 

General telephone contact with all the teams 
is generally via the Council Contact Centre 
and the team was restructured to facilitate 
this change in July 2013.  The residual 
administrative and intelligence support is 
specialist in nature and has to deal with the 
full range and diversity of statutory 
responsibilities which the wider business unit 
is responsible for.  The team works across the 
Safer Communities Partnership agenda and is 
closely allied within the Public Health Team. 
The team, in its current configuration, was 
established on 1

st
 April 2013 as a result of the 

budget reductions imposed as a new way of 
managing demand and focusing work in a 
more evidence based approach which then 
drives the work of the front line teams. 
 

Demand drivers are dependent on the work 
flows of all the front line teams in the 
department, partnership working; agreed 
commissioning interventions and contract 
monitoring 

303, 305 & 300 

 

P
age 188



Service Title: Food Safety, Licensing, Trading Standards, Health & Safety and Resilience

Manager: S Cox, H Perkins & C DeJongh

Brief Description of Service:

These statutory services protect the publics health, safety and welfare across Torbay. They are managed as an integrated team to improve the service to the customer and 
to improve efficiency. Food hygiene, food standards and health & safety enforcement. Investigation of reportable accidents. Investigation of infectious disease. Trading 
Standards (fair trading, metrology, product safety). Petroleum Licensing and Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing.
HEALTH & SAFETY AND RESILIENCE - This includes corporate health & safety, emergency planning and business continuity which support all other business units of the 
Council and are an essential part of the Council's resilience and statutory responsibilities under the Health and Safety at Work Act and the Civil Contingencies Act.

Business Unit: Community Safety

Executive Head: Frances Hughes

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

552 Corporate Security 1967.43 1 148 0 0 345 -121 0 -25 0 -146 199

304 Food Safety, Health & 
Safety, Licensing and 
Trading Standards

70818.3 0 91 0 0 799 -468 0 0 0 -468 331

310 Health & Safety and 
Resilience

1724 0 13 0 0 185 -18 0 0 0 -18 167

561 Road Safety  & School 
Crossing Patrols

1106 0 5 0 0 115 -20 0 0 0 -20 95

P
age 189



Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

1,186 1 257 0 0 1,444 -627 0 -25 0 -652 792TOTAL 35.7

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 190



Service Title: Community Protection & Private Housing Standards

Manager: Tara Fowler

Brief Description of Service:

COMMUNITY PROTECTION - These key services are managed collectively to ensure neighbourhood and environmental risks are adequately addressed 
and the statutory responsibilities of the council are delivered.
PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING STANDARDS - The team deploys the statutory duties of the Council, intervenes and regulates the private sector housing 
market in Torbay to ensure the health, safety and welfare of owner occupiers and tenants. The Home Improvement Service is currently contracted out.

Business Unit: Community Safety

Executive Head: Frances Hughes

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

302 Community Protection 46515.5 11 134 0 0 610 -85 0 0 0 -85 525

306 Private Sector Housing 
Standards

3377 0 104 0 0 441 -48 0 0 0 -48 393

802 11 238 0 0 1,051 -133 0 0 0 -133 918TOTAL 22.5

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 191



Service Title: Safer Communities

Manager: Frances Hughes

Brief Description of Service:

The Safer Communities team co-ordinates the Safer Communities Partnership as well as managing the front line service delivery of a number of partnership funded 
projects. Its main aim is to reduce the incidence and fear of crime, making Torbay a safe and healthy place to live in and visit. The Council has statutory duties as a 
Community Safety Partnership and also has duties to meet the requirements of Section 17 Crime and Disorder Act. Torbay Council works with other partners including the 
Police, Fire, Probation Service and local NHS bodies, who also contribute to the Safer Communities Partnership. Services for high risk victims of domestic abuse are 
provided within this team.

Business Unit: Community Safety

Executive Head: Frances Hughes

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

307 Safer Communities (inc 
Community Safety 
Partnership)

23120.3 0 18 0 0 249 0 0 0 0 0 249

231 0 18 0 0 249 0 0 0 0 0 249TOTAL 20.3

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 192



Service Title: Housing Services

Manager: Sue Churchill

Brief Description of Service:

This includes the costs of temporary accommodation and the staffing costs of the Housing Options team

Business Unit: Community Safety

Executive Head: Frances Hughes

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

308 Housing Options 32914.8 0 20 0 0 349 0 0 0 0 0 349

311 Licensed 
Accommodation

00 195 0 0 0 195 -50 -115 0 0 -165 30

314 Mediation & Housing 
Partnership

00 0 21 0 0 21 0 0 0 0 0 21

313 Prevention Fund 00 60 0 0 0 60 0 0 0 0 0 60

312 Rent Deposit 
Guarantee & Bond 

00 39 0 0 0 39 0 0 0 0 0 39

309 Temporary 
Accommodation

00 50 0 0 0 50 0 -15 0 0 -15 35

P
age 193



Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

329 344 41 0 0 714 -50 -130 0 0 -180 534TOTAL 14.8

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 194



Service Title: Bereavement, Community Development & Safety, Healthwatch

Manager: F Hughes & P Vandenhove

Brief Description of Service:

BEREAVEMENT - This service was externalised Nov 2008 to Westerleigh Group who now manage the Cemeteries and Crematorium service under a 25 year lease and 
management agreement.
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT - The Council works in partnership with the Community to develop their capacity to influence services delivered and to increase their ability 
to commission services and improvements themselves.  Community centres are a key resource for the Community and require maintenance and support to make them 
sustainable. The council financially supports the Community Partnership network.
COMMUNITY SAFETY - Includes Executive Head and financial support plus the operational, administrative and analytical support to all the frontline services provided by 
the Community Safety Business Unit and the statutory Community Safety Partnership.
HEALTHWATCH - This service commissioned by the council is to establish 'routes' to enable clients to access the social care services they need. This is a grant aided 
arrangement for two years from 1st April 2013 and a statutory duty of the council.

Business Unit: Community Safety

Executive Head: Frances Hughes

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

300 Bereavement Services 00 0 0 0 0 0 -670 0 0 0 -670 -670

301 Community 
Development

00 1 217 0 0 218 0 0 -100 0 -100 118

303 Divisional Management 
& Operational Support

3139.7 0 27 0 0 340 -107 0 0 0 -107 233

305 Healthwatch 00 0 149 0 0 149 0 0 0 0 0 149

313 1 393 0 0 707 -777 0 -100 0 -877 -170TOTAL 9.7

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 195



 

 

 
Community Safety            Director:  Steve Parrock 
              Executive Head: Fran Hughes 
              Executive Lead: Cllr Robert Excel 
 

Agreed Savings  – 
Outline details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference 

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Commercial Regulation, Food Safety, Health and Safety, Licensing & Trading Standards  
1. Restructures across 

the service  
 

(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 
 

 85,000    304  1 

2. Additional income 
generated from 
new legislation and 
increase in fees.   
 

(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 
 

8,000     304  20 

3. Revenue reductions 
across a range of 
operational budget 
lines. 

 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 
 

 5,000    302  3 

P
age 196



 

 

Agreed Savings  – 
Outline details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference 

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

4. Road Safety 
 
Reduce the level of road 
safety education 
delivered 

 
 

 19,700 None April 
2015 

Minor Proposal  
 
Almost no road safety activity will be delivered in schools and within 
the community instead most road safety education will be delivered 
on-line or using national campaigns. 
 
Section 39 of the Road Traffic Act 1988 states that Local Authorities 
must in light of accidents in our area take such measures; including 
information, advice and training which appear to be appropriate to 
prevent such accidents. 
 
An Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken in relation to this 
proposal which includes consultation results.  

561 

 
  

P
age 197



 

 

 
Agreed Savings – 

Outline details 
Savings for 

2015/16 
Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Community Protection  
5. Reduce the funding 

available for the 
street warden 
service 
 

 22,000 Nil 01/04/15 Reduced capacity of the street warden scheme. An Equality Impact 
Assessment has been undertaken in relation to this proposal. 
 

302  1 

6. Ceasing to provide 
the Street Warden 
Service 

 

  

27,000 

 1/4/15 Major Impact 
There are currently 5 street wardens covering some of the most 
deprived areas of Torbay: Hele, Watcombe, Foxhole/Queen Elizabeth 
Drive and Tormohun. 4 Wardens are on permanent contracts and 1 is 
on a fixed term contract due to end on 31

st
 March 2015.  The total 

cost of the programme is £135k per annum, and is funded for 14/15 
by £50k from Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) funding (non-
recurrent) and £85k from Torbay Council.   
 
In the 15/16 budget proposals we had already identified cutting 1FTE 
Warden post at £22k. Following consultation it was agreed that 
£36,000 be added back into the service base budget. With funding 
available from other sources this means that the service will continue 
for 2015/16. Therefore the reduction is £27,000 

An Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken in relation to 
this proposal which includes consultation results.  

 

302  1 

 
  

P
age 198



 

 

 
Agreed Savings – 
Outline details 

Savings for 2015/16 Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 
£ 

    

Corporate Security & CCTV  
7. Corporate 

Security/CCTV 
 
Automated 
monitoring only 
 
(this would be added 
to the below 
estimated income as a 
full reduction in 
staffing) 
 
 

 74,000 Associated 
redundancy 
costs and 
pension 
strain if 
applicable 

April 
2015 

Major Proposal  
 
This reduction would change the operation of the CCTV unit – 
reducing it to an automated monitored service. 
 
This may reduce the range of targeted approaches to support 
police activity. 
 
Total saving would be £194,000 net of income which would be lost  
 
An Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken in relation to 
this proposal which includes consultation results.  
It is agreed that £25,000 transitional funding is to be applied whilst 
options are explored for future delivery  

552 

8. Corporate 
Security/CCTV 
Income 
development 

 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 
 
 

120,000     552 

 
 
 
 

P
age 199



 

 

Agreed Savings – 
Outline details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Housing Options   
9. Review of Housing 

Options Service 
 

(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 
 

 70,000    308  1 

 
  

P
age 200



 

 

 
Agreed Savings – 

Outline details 
Savings for 

2015/16 
Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Divisional Management and Support  
10. Additional 

crematorium 
income 
 

(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 
 

20,000     300  20 

11. Change of role for 
Executive Head to 
accommodate new 
public health 
responsibilities.   

 
The postholder will now 
work 0.4 FTE as Exec 
Head Community Safety 
and 0.6FTE Public 
Health.  A 
commensurate change 
to how PA support is 
funded will also occur.   

 

50,000   01/04/15 
(earlier) 

Internal 
This saving reduces the management capacity in Community Safety to 
the equivalent of 2 days per week.  This can be accommodated with 
some minor changes within budget to other members of the 
Community Safety Team.  This may have implications for other 
restructures. 

303  20 

 

P
age 201



 

Community Safety 
Discretionary Fees & Charges 2015/16 

 
Food, Health & Safety and Public Safety Discretionary Fees 

Type of Registration/Licence/Fee 2014/15 
£ 

2015/16 
£ 

Body alteration registrations   

Ear piercing/electrolysis/tattoo/acupuncture 183.34 189.00 
Amendment to skin piercing registration 98.88 102.00 

   
Fish Export Certificates   

Export Certificates (fish) – Basic  30.90 33.00 
Export Certificates (fish) – Advanced * 105.00 108.00 
* If two or more Advanced Certificates are issued on the same 
day then the second, third, etc, are charged at the basic rate. 

  

   
Factual reports to Solicitors following accidents   

Factual report 128.50+VAT 132.00+VAT 
Photocopying £1 per sheet £1 per sheet 

Photographs Actual costs Actual costs 
   
Sports grounds   
General or Special Safety Certificate (Sportsgrounds) - 
new 

530.00 545.00 

General or Special Safety Certificate (Sportsgrounds) – 
alteration requested by sportsgrounds 

265.00 275.00 

   

 
Licensing Discretionary Fees 

Type of Registration/Licence/Fee 2014/15 
£ 

2015/16 
£ 

Street Trading   
Annual 750.00 750.00 

Seasonal 592.00 592.00 
3 months 335.00 335.00 

1 month 144.00 144.00 
Daily 100.00 100.00 

Replacement or amendment 20.00 25.00 

 
Traders 
size/days * 

1-3 days 
£ 

4-6 days 
£ 

7-9 days 
£ 

10-12 
days       £ 

13-15 
days       £ 

16+ days 
£ 

Small 
0-15 
 

 
226.00 

 
329.00 

 
432.00 

 
535.00 

 
638.00 

 
741.00 

Medium 
16-30 
 

 
546.00 

 
803.00 

 
1060.00 

 
1318.00 

 
1576.00 

 
1833.00 

High  
31+  
 

 
875.00 

 
1287.00 

 
1699.00 

 
2111.00 

 
2523.00 

 
2935.00 

* If an applicant applying for an event/events, applies for a number of days within a given time 
period, even if those days are not consecutive or not at the same location then the charge will be 
based upon total number of days applied for. However this cannot be done in retrospect.  
Community Partnership Events applications can be co-ordinated using the same criteria, even if 
the events are run by different Community Partnerships. 
One Street Trading Consent can then be issued for all those events applied for and they will be 
listed within the Consent.  

Page 202



 

 

 
Charitable Street Trading Events supported by Torbay Council - Free (with agreement from Council) 

 
Type of Registration/Licence/Fee 2014/15 

£ 
2015/16 

£ 

Zoo Licensing    
First ever licence 525.00 540.00 

Statutory six yearly inspection 262.50 270.00 
Periodic three year inspection 262.50 270.00 

Transfer of Licence 150.00 155.00 
   
Animal Licensing    
Animal Boarding Establishments Act 1963 215.00**  220.00**  

Animal Boarding Establishments Act 1963 renewal 115.00**  118.00**  
**Plus costs of vets fees as required   

   
Pet Animals Act 1951 215.00** 220.00** 

Pet Animals Act 1951 – renewal  115.00** 118.00** 
**Plus costs of vets fees as required   

   
Riding Establishments Act 1964 and 1970 £330.00** min 

and £15.00 
per horse in 
excess of 5 

£340.00** 
min and 
£15.00 per 
horse in 
excess of 5 

**Plus costs of vets fees as required   

   
Dangerous Wild Animals Act 1976 453.00** 465.00** 

**Plus costs of vets fees as required   
   

Breeding of Dogs Act 1973 215.00** 220.00** 
Breeding of Dogs Act 1973 renewal 115.00** 118.00** 

**Plus costs of vets fees as required   
   

Performing Animals registration 108.00** 111.00** 
** Plus costs of vets fees as required   

   
Sex Entertainment Premises   

Sex Shop Establishment: New Application (non refundable) 6000.00 6000.00 
Sex Shop Establishment: Annual Licence Fee (non refundable) 3500.00 3500.00 

Sex Shop Establishment: Transfer of Licence (non refundable) 3500.00 3500.00 
Sexual Entertainment Venue: New Application (non refundable) 6000.00 6000.00 

Sexual Entertainment Venue: Annual Licence Fee (non 
refundable) 

3500.00 3500.00 

Sexual Entertainment Venue: Transfer of Licence (non 
refundable) 

3500.00 3500.00 

   
Distribution of printed matter   
Consent under CNEA to distribute free printed matter – one 
distributer 

95.00 100.00 

For each additional distributer up to a maximum of six  20.00 

   
Park Homes    

Annual Licence Fee (Lower band) NIL 100.00 
Annual Licence Fee (Higher band) NIL 300.00 

Application Fee for a Site Licence NIL 650.00 
Application to Transfer a Site Licence NIL 350.00 

Page 203



 

 

Application to vary conditions on a Site Licence NIL 350.00 
To post site conditions on Council website NIL 80.00 

Compliance Notice – Cost of Notice  NIL 80.00* 
 *The costs of enforcement will then be added to this figure   

 
Type of Registration/Licence/Fee 2014/15 

£ 
2015/16 

£ 
Hackney Carriage   

Annual 158.00 163.00 
Seasonal 100.00 100.00 

Horse drawn annual 115.00 115.00 
Seasonal ** 67.00 67.00 

Vehicle inspection 81.00 81.00 
Meter test 45.00 45.00 

Driver (New or renewal incl. Badge) 107.00 107.00 
Excl. Criminal Record Bureau check 79.00 79.00 

Drivers badge (replacement) 25.00 25.00 
Transfer (permanent or temporary)/change of vehicle 72.00 72.00 
Plate 58.50 58.50 

Replacement bracket 15.00 15.00 
Knowledge test 64.00 64.00 

Failure to attend renewal appointment for vehicle & driver 
licences (additional charges) *** 

36.00 36.00 

   
Private Hire   

Annual 140.00 145.00 
Vehicle inspection 81.00 81.00 

Driver (initial or renewal incl. Badge) 107.00 107.00 
Excl. Criminal Record Bureau check 79.00 79.00 

Drivers badge (replacement) 25.00 25.00 
Operator (per vehicle) 67.00 67.00 

Transfer (permanent or temporary)/change of vehicle 72.00 72.00 
Plate 58.50 58.50 

Replacement bracket 15.00 15.00 
Knowledge test 64.00 64.00 

Failure to attend renewal appointment for vehicle & driver 
licences (additional charge)*** 

36.00 36.00 

Door signs per pair 15.00 15.00 
   
New Drivers   
Handbook & replacements (incl VAT) 15.00 inc VAT 15.00 inc 

VAT 

 
** For a period of 7 months, commencing with the Easter School Holidays. 
 
***Failure to keep an appointment for a CRB check or for a renewal appointment (vehicle or driver) 
without 1 days prior notice will incur an administrative charge. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 204



 

 

 
Gambling Fees 
 

 Small 
Casinos 

(£) 

Casino 
(existing) 

(£) 

Bingo 
Premises 

(£) 
 

Betting 
Premises 
(Tracks) 

(£) 

Betting 
Premises 

(Other) 
(£) 

Adult 
Gaming 
Centres 

(£) 

Licensed 
FEC 
(£) 

Application for 
new premises 
licence 

 
8000 

 
- 

 
3500 

 
2500 

 
3000 

 
2000 

 
2000 

Application to 
vary premises 
licence 

 
4000 

 

 
2000 

 
1750 

 
1250 

 
1500 

 
1000 

 
1000 

 
1st Annual Fee 
 

 
5000 

 
3000 

 
1000 

 
1000 

 
600 

 
1000 

 
750 

Application to 
transfer the 
premises 
licence   

 
1800 

 
1350 

 
1200 

 
950 

 
1200 

 
1200 

 
950 

Application for 
re-instatement 
of premises 
licence 

 
1800 

 
1350 

 
1200 

 
950 

 
1200 

 
1200 

 
950 

Application for a 
provisional 
statement 

 
8000 

 
- 

 
3500 

 
2500 

 
3000 

 
2000 

 
2000 

Application for a 
premises 
licence for a 
premises which 
already has a 
provisional 
statement 

 
3000 

 
- 

 
1200 

 
950 

 
1200 

 
1200 

 
950 

 
 

Page 205



 

 

Trading Standards Discretionary Fees 
 
When a visit is made by a Trading Standards Officer to any premises for the purpose of carrying 
out any of the functions or activities listed below, each visit may be subject to a minimum charge of 
£72.00 per Officer per visit regardless of the nature or amount of work requested or completed. 
 
Visits carried out partly or entirely outside of normal office hours may incur a surcharge of 50% of 
the standard fee or of the standard hourly rate per Officer per hour. 
 
Previous discussions with HM Customs & Excise had concluded that fees with the exception of 
those put forward for the purposes of Section 74 of the Weights and Measures Act 1985, were 
NOT subject to VAT.  This is because the work of local authorities was classified as a ‘non-
business’ activity.  However, the situation has now changed.  Where applicable, VAT is included in 
the guidance provided.  See Customs & Excise Notice 749 – Local Authorities and Similar Bodies 
(April 2002) for further details.  NB – this may be subject to further review at any time, but is current 
at the time of writing (November 2007). 
 
This is written on the assumption that the proposed that the proposed Legislative Reform Order (to 
permit self-verification after adjustment) will come into effect on 1st April 2008.  If this were not to 
be the case, fees for such eventualities would continue to be VAT-exempt. 

 
 
Activity Cost Fee subject 

to additional 
VAT 

A. Measuring Instruments Directive   
In order to reflect additional costs associated with examination, 
testing and documentation, and maintenance of MID notified 
body status, certain classes of instrument covered by MID should 
be subject to additional charges as follows: 

  

 Automatic discontinuous totalisers, automatic rail 
weighbridges, automatic catchweighers, automatic 
gravimetric filling instruments and beltweighers 

 Cold water meters 

No extra 
charge 

Yes 

 Measuring instruments for liquid fuel and lubricants 

 Measuring instruments for liquid fuel delivered from road 
tankers 

10% 
surcharge 

Yes 

 Capacity serving measures 

 Material measures of length 

25% 
surcharge 

Yes 

Note: Fees increase for initial MID conformity assessment, but 
not subsequent reverification.  

  

  

Page 206



 

 

Type of Registration/Licence/Fee 2014/15 
£ 

2015/16 
£ 

B.    Special Weighing and Measuring Equipment   
For examining, testing, certifying, stamping, authorising or 
reporting on any type of weighing and measuring equipment not 
specifically described in Parts B to J below.  Time spent is at the 
place at which the service is provided. 

 
£75.00 per 

Officer / hour 

 
£80.00 per 

Officer/ hour 

   

Such types of equipment specifically excluded from parts B to J 
below include:- 

  

1. Automatic or totalising weighing machines.   

2. Equipment designed to weigh loads in motion.   
3. Bulk fuel measuring equipment tested following a stamp 

having been obliterated in the circumstances set out in 
Regulation 65 or 66 of SI 1983 No. 1390 (minor 
modifications affecting air separator or printer 
arrangements) 

  

4. Weighing or measuring equipment tested by means of 
statistical sampling. 

  

5. The establishment of calibration curves for templets for 
measuring container bottles. 

  

6. Templets graduated in millilitres.   

7. Testing or other services in pursuance of a European 
Community obligation other than EC initial or partial 
verification. 

  

   
C. Weights   
 At M2 level with UKAS certification. 40.00 40.00 

   
D. Measures   

1. Linear measures not exceeding 3m, for each scale. 40.00 40.00 
2. Capacity measures without divisions not exceeding 1 litre. 40.00 40.00 

3. Cubic ballast measures (other than brim measures)  155.00 155.00 
4. Capacity measures within divisions, not exceeding 1 litre, 

including those for making up and checking average 
quantity packages. 

65.00 65.00 

5. Templets graduated in millimetres 
a) per scale, first templet 

 
100.00 

 
100.00 

b) subsequent templets 50.00 50.00 

 
 

Page 207



 

 

Type of Registration/Licence/Fee 2014/15 
£ 

2015/16 
£ 

E.    Weighing Instruments   
a) Non-EC   
 Not exceeding 15kg 55.00 58.00 

 Exceeding 15kg to 100kg 55.00 58.00 
 Exceeding 100kg to 250kg 55.00 58.00 

 Exceeding 250kg to 1 tonne 95.00 98.00 
 Exceeding 1 tonne 155.00 160.00 
   
b) EC (NAWI)   
 Not exceeding 250kg 85.00 85.00 

 Exceeding 250kg to 1 tonne 150.00 150.00 
 Exceeding 1 tonne 250.00 250.00 

   
2. Weighing instruments as above but incorporating remote 

display or printing facilities. 
Basic fee + 

50% 
Basic fee + 

50% 
   

3. In addition to the fee shown the actual cost to the 
Authority of hiring and transporting the necessary test 
equipment. 

 This additional charge will not be made if the submitter 
provides test equipment to the inspectors satisfaction with 
a recent test certificate from a Local Authority metrology 
laboratory, or UKAS accredited metrology laboratory. 

  

   
F. Measuring Instruments for Intoxicating Liquor   

1. Not exceeding 150ml 38.00 38.00 
2. Other 52.00 52.00 

   
G. Measuring Instruments for Liquid Fuel and Lubricants   

1. Container type (unsubdivided) 65.00 65.00 
   

2. Single/multi-outlet (nozzles)   
a) first nozzle tested, per site 115.00 120.00 

b) each additional nozzle tested 55.00 58.00 
   

3. Instruments as above with ancillary equipment such as 
credit card acceptors or note/coin acceptors which require 
additional testing. 

72.00 75.00 

   
4. Testing of peripheral electronic equipment on a separate 

visit. 
£75.00 per 

officer / hour 
£80.00 per 
officer/hour 

 

Page 208



 

 

 
 
Type of Registration/Licence/Fee 2014/15 

 
£ 

2015/16 
£ 

H.    Road Tanker Fuel Measuring (above 100 litres)   

The fixed fee shown below and, in addition, the actual cost to the 
Authority of hiring and transporting the necessary test equipment.  
This additional charge will not be made if the submitter provides 
test equipment to the inspectors satisfaction with a recent test 
certificate from a Local Authority metrology laboratory, or UKAS 
accredited metrology laboratory. 

  

1. Meter measuring systems   

a) Wet hose type with two testing liquids 106.00 106.00 
b) Wet hose type with three testing liquids 122.00 122.00 

c) Dry hose type with two testing liquids 124.00 124.00 
d) Dry hose type with three testing liquids 147.00 147.00 

e) Wet/dry hose with two testing liquids 175.00 175.00 
f) Wet/dry hose with three testing liquids 195.00 195.00 

   
2. Replacement dipstick - including examination of 

compartment. 
  

   
I. Fees for EC Purposes   
Testing of weighing or measuring equipment (other than non-
automatic weighing instruments) with a view to EU initial or 
partial verification. 

  

The fee given above for same class of equipment plus 20%   
For other services or facilities provided, or authorisations, 
certificates or other documents issued in pursuance of any 
European Community obligation. 

  

Per officer/hour spent at the place where the service is provided. 75.00 75.00 

   
J. Fees for Section 74(4) of the Weights and Measures 

Act 1985 
  

Weighing or measuring equipment submitted for test at the 
submitter’s request. 

  

   

For the examination, testing and report on equipment of a type 
described in the sections above, the appropriate fee (with the 
addition of VAT) for the same class of equipment (or class of 
equipment to which the item submitted most closely relates) 

  

The service of testing weighing equipment calibrated in 
imperial units will no longer be provided. 

  

   

LPG equipment will, in addition to the above fees shown in 
Section F, attract the cost of the authority hiring the appropriate 
equipment. 

  

For the examination, testing and report on other equipment or the 
weighing or measuring of goods, per officer/hour at the place 
where the service is provided. 

75.00 + VAT  80.00 + 
VAT 

 
 
Type of Registration/Licence/Fee 2014/15 

£ 
2015/16 

£ 

K.    Miscellaneous   
Cancelled appointments (This fee, plus any costs incurred, may 75.00 75.00 

Page 209



 

 

be charged). 
Certificate of errors.  For supplying a certificate upon the request 
of the submitter when no other fee is payable. 

36.00 36.00 

   
L. Poisons Act   
 Initial Registration 52.00 54.00 

 Renewal of Registration 41.00 42.00 
 Changes in Details of Registration in relation to the 

premise, other than at renewal 
41.00 42.00 

   

 
Environmental Protection Discretionary Fees 
 
Type of Registration/Licence/Fee 2014/15 

£ 
2015/16 

£ 

   
Stray Dogs   

Carriage of Stray Dogs 62.00 64.00 
Carriage of Stray Dogs (Government Fine £25.00) plus dog 
warden transportation costs 

87.00 89.00 

Payment Plan Arrangement Fee 10.00 10.50 

   
Private Water Supply Charges   

Risk Assessment 200.00 206.00 
Sampling Visit 80.00 + 

analysis costs 
83.00 + 
analysis 

costs 
Investigation 105.00 108.00 

Granting Authorisation 105.00 108.00 
Missed Appointment 36.00 37.00 

   
Scrap Metal Act   

Site Licence Application Fee (3 years) 800.00 824.00 
Collectors Licence Application Fee 400.00 412.00 

Variation Cost 93.00 96.00 
Renewal Fee – Site Licence 600.00 618.00 

Renewal Fee - Collector 300.00 309.00 

 
Private Sector Housing – Discretionary Fees 
 
Type of 
Registration/Licence/Fee 

2014/15 
£ 

2015/16 
£ 

HMO Licensing 
HMO Licensing – assisted 
application 

800.00  
800.00 

824.00  
824.00 

Charges for Housing Act Notices  Variable from 100.00 to 300.00 
plus reasonable costs incurred 

by the Council 

Variable from 100.00 to 
300.00 plus reasonable 

costs incurred by the Council 
Immigration Inspection Fee 120.00 123.00 

Administrative Charge for 
landlords who fail to submit 
documentation when requested 

36.00 37.00 

Works in Default (minimum admin 
charge) 

£100 or 30% of total works 
(whichever is greater) 

£100 or 30% of total works 
(whichever is greater) 

 
  

Page 210



 

 

General Fees for all services 
 
Type of Registration/Licence/Fee 2014/15 

£ 
2015/16 

£ 

Personal Search/Solicitor Enquiries 64.00 66.00 

Contaminated Land Searches 72.00 per 
hour 

75.00 per hour 

Repayment of fee where error was the applicant  NIL 25.00 

Replacement licence certificates 20.00 + VAT 25.00 + VAT 

 
 
Note: Visits carried out partly or entirely outside normal office hours may incur a surcharge of 50% 
on the standard fee or on the standard hourly rate per Officer hour. 

 
 
 
  

Page 211



 

 

 

 

Torbay Council 
 

 

Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960 

(as amended) 

 

 

 

Fees Policy for Licensing of 

 

Residential Park Homes Sites 
 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Insert Date of Policy  

Page 212



 

 

Contents 

1. INTRODUCTION  

2. THE LICENCE FEE STRUCTURE  

3.  REVIEW OF THE LICENCE FEE STRUCTURE  

4.  PUBLISHING THE FEE POLICY  

5.  PAYMENT OF FEES  

6. OTHER CHARGES 

APPENDIX - FEES FOR LICENSING RESIDENTIAL PARK HOME SITES  

 

  

Page 213



 

 

1. INTRODUCTION  

1.1 The Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960, as amended by the Mobile 
Homes Act 2013, authorises local authorities to issue licences in respect of ‘relevant 
protected sites’ and to require applications for such licences to be accompanied by a fee 
fixed by the authority. Fees may also be charged for applications to transfer site licences 
or to change conditions in site licences. Furthermore local authorities may charge for the 
administration and monitoring of site licences by the levy of an annual fee. 

1.2 Torbay Council is the local authority for purposes of the act for the area of Torbay, and 
has agreed to make charges for the licensing of relevant protected sites in accordance 
with the powers granted under the act, as decided by Full Council on XXXXXXXXXXX. 

1.3 A relevant protected site is defined in the act as any land to be used as a caravan site 
other than one where the application for a licence is:  

• For holiday use only, or 

• Subject to restrictions or conditions which limit the times of the year when the 

site may be used for stationing caravans for human habitation (e.g. planning 

conditions) 

1.4 A relevant protected site does not however include sites that are owned by the local 
authority.  

1.5 Before a local authority can charge a fee, it must prepare and publish a fees policy. 
When fixing a fee the local authority:  

• Must act in accordance with its fees policy  

• May fix different fees in different cases  

• May determine that no fee is required in some cases 

1.6 Any fees charged must fairly cover the costs (or part of the costs) incurred by the local 
authority in performing its functions under Part 1 of the act, (excluding the costs of 
enforcement action or any functions relating to prohibiting caravans on commons or 
provision of sites by the local authority itself).  

1.7 In setting its fees policy and the fees to be charged the council has had regard to the 
Guide for Local Authorities On Setting Site Licensing Fees issued by the Department for 
Communities and Local Government.  

1.8  The council has consulted with the park home owners of existing sites in relation to 
the annual fee proposed. The results of the consultation were considered by the council in 
fixing the charges set out in this policy.  

2. THE LICENCE FEE STRUCTURE  

2.1 In calculating its fee structure, the council has calculated its fees in accordance with 
the provisions of the act, and the fees determined are set out in the appendix to this policy.  

Page 214



 

 

2.2 In determining those fees, the council has taken into account all administrative costs 
incurred in the licensing process, officer visits to sites, travel costs, consultations, 
meetings, monitoring of sites/investigation of complaints and the giving of informal advice.  

2.3 The council has decided not to exempt any sites from the annual fee, though it will 
keep this decision under review.  

2.4 The fee structure adopted by the council is based upon a fee based on or including a 
risk rating, taking into account the size of the site, level of compliance and confidence in 
management.  

This risk rating is based upon two classifications. Those sites that receive more than 5 
complaints a year, or have been subject to enforcement visits resulting in the service of or 
the monitoring of enforcement notices in the past 18 months, will be subject to a higher 
fee. Otherwise the site will be subject to a lower fee. 

3.  REVIEW OF THE LICENCE FEE STRUCTURE  

3.1 A review of the fee structure will be carried out annually and it will be revised if 
necessary. Any adjustments will take into account variations in officer and administration 
time to those used in calculating the fees set out in this policy document, along with any 
changes to other costs incurred in providing the licensing function.  

3.2 Any surpluses/deficits for the previous year will be taken into account when fixing the 
fees for the following year.  

3.3 In setting annual fees each year the council will inform the site owner of the extent to 
which they have had regard to any surpluses/ deficits from the previous year and will 
confirm to the site owner the annual fee for the forthcoming year.  

4. PUBLISHING THE FEE POLICY  

4.1 The fees policy for licensing of residential park home sites will be published on the 
council’s website 

insert link  

4.2 If the council revises its fees policy, it will replace the published policy with the revised 
policy. The policy will also be available to view during normal office hours at: 

Torquay Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR 

5. PAYMENT OF FEES.  

5.1 The council requires application fees for a new site licence, for amending a site licence 
or for transferring a site licence to accompany the application. The council will not 
commence the application process until such time as the fee is received. 

5.2 Application fees are not refundable if the application is not approved. 

5.3 Annual fees will become due on the 1st May each year. The request for payment will be 
accompanied by information detailing what matters the council took into account in fixing 
the annual fee and the extent to which it had regard to deficits and surpluses from the 
previous year. 

Page 215



 

 

5.4 Where a fee becomes overdue for payment, the council may apply to a residential 
property tribunal for an order requiring the licence holder to pay the council the amount 
due by the date specified in the order. If the licence holder has still not paid the fee within 
three months from the date specified in the order, the council may apply to the tribunal for 
an order revoking the site licence.  

 6. OTHER CHARGES 

6.1 Enforcement Expenses 

6.1.1 The council is entitled, and will seek, to recover expenses incurred in carrying out 
enforcement action involved in the service of a compliance notice. These expenses 
include costs incurred in deciding whether to serve a notice, site inspections, preparing the 
notice and obtaining expert advice.  

6.1.2 Where appropriate, the council will also seek to recover expenses incurred: 

 In taking action following conviction of the site owner for failure to carry out actions 

required by a compliance notice; or  

 In taking emergency action where there is an imminent risk of serious harm to any 

person on the site as a result of the site owner’s failure to comply with licence 

conditions 

6.1.3 Interest may be charged on any sums to be recovered as a result of enforcement 
action. 

6.1.4 The council will also be able to register any of the debts to be recovered for 
enforcement actions as a local land charge against the site. 

6.2 Deposit of Site Rules 

6.2.1 Fees payable for the deposit of site rules are: £80 

6.3 This statement about enforcement costs and deposit of site rules is not required by the 
act to be included in the council’s fees policy but is set out in this document in the interests 
of completeness and transparency.  

 

  

Page 216



 

 

 

APPENDIX 

FEES FOR LICENSING RESIDENTIAL PARK HOME SITES  

 

Application for a Site Licence     £650 

Application to Transfer a Site Licence   £350 

Application to vary conditions of a Site Licence  £350 

Annual Licence fee (lower rate)    £100* 

Annual Licence fee (higher rate)    £300* 

 

*See 2.4 

 

Page 217



Commercial & Business Services

2015/16 Budget Summary (*ATL)

ServiceTitleID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees

Business Services258 349 -70 2798.7

Communications Team254 171 -59 1124.6

Coroner250 221 0 2210

Corporate Apprentices265 349 0 34923

Corporate Recruitment268 17 0 170

Corporate Training267 62 -12 500

Democratic Representation259 277 0 2778.3

Directors255 514 0 5143.4

Elections260 349 -200 1490.6

Information Hub251 264 -276 -127.8

Insurance252 1,122 -248 8740

Legal Services253 810 -352 45817.7

Members Allowances261 554 -10 5440

Occupational Health266 96 -42 540

P
age 218



ServiceTitleID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees

Payroll263 173 -126 476

Personnel264 428 -156 2729.6

Procurement257 165 -74 914

Registrar - BDM262 261 -250 115

Total 6,182 -1,875 4,307

Note:   *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

98.7

P
age 219



 

     
 

Commercial & Business Services         Director:  Steve Parrock 
             Executive Head: Anne-Marie Bond 
             Executive Lead: Cllr Beryl McPhail 
Human Resources 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference 

Provision of a Human Resources service 
to the council, schools, and external 
organisations such as the Torbay 
Development Agency (TDA) and English 
Riviera Tourism Company (ERTC) and 
Academies. The service provides 
professional advice on a wide range of 
employment related issues such as 
Performance Management, Disciplinary 
and Grievance and a range of services 
such as Occupational Health, Learning 
and Development, Counselling, 
Coaching, Mediation, Policy 
development and Recruitment services.   

There are a range of statutory 
requirements around the provision of 
the Human Resources service.  Full 
details are included within the Summary 
Service Review available at 
www.torbay.gov.uk/budget 
 

 39 schools across Torbay  

 1142 core council employees 

 39  income generating clients 
 

264  to 268 

 

Payroll and Pensions 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference 

Provision of a payroll service to both 
internal and external customers. 
Ensuring payments are made on time 
and in accordance with conditions of 
service, regulations and legislation.  
Provision of the statutory and non-
statutory pensions administration of the 
Local Government Pension Scheme, 
Teachers Pension Scheme and NHS 
Pension Scheme ensuring compliance 
with the pension scheme regulations.  
 

Applies Statutory and voluntary 
deductions according to Legislation and 
Council policies.  Supports the 
development of new council policies by 
ensuring compliance with statutory 
legislation.  Ensures payments to 
external bodies are made on time and 
accurately.   
 

 50,000 payslips issued per year 

 21 external income generating clients  

 Approx £97 million paid in gross pay. 

 39 schools including academies  

 1142 core council employees 

 English Riviera Tourism Company and Torbay 
Development Agency.  

 

263 

P
age 220

http://www.torbay.gov.uk/budget


 

     
 

Coroner 
 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference 

Investigation of sudden or 
unexplained death, or death whilst 
in custody.  Torbay is currently the 
responsible authority for the 
Torbay and South Devon Coroner, 
whose geographical area includes 
(in addition to Torbay) large parts 
of the South Hams and Teignbridge 
Districts and the Isles of Scilly. 
The administrative arrangements 
for the Coroners service is in a 
transition phase, as the jurisdiction 
has merged with the Plymouth and 
West Devon area to form a greater 
Plymouth, Torbay and South Devon 
coroner area.  The lead authority 
for delivering the service will be 
Plymouth City Council. 
This also includes provisional 
income and expenditure figures for 
the Medical Examiner’s function 
which is expected to be adopted. 

The Coroner delivers a statutory 
judicial function delivering justice, 
answering inquiries into causes of 
death.  The service works with a 
wide number of partners (e.g. 
Police, Local Authority, Hospitals, 
Pathologists, Forensic Experts, 
Mortuaries, Funeral Directors and 
Registrars), in the delivery of its 
function.   
 
 The regulations governing Coronial 
appointments are set down in 
Primary Legislation 
 

 
Demand 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 

Reported 
Deaths 

1963 1655 1720 1779 

Post 
Mortems 

750 655 715 707 

Inquests 161 174 135 145 
 

250 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 221



 

     
 

Information Compliance and Land Charges 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference 

The Information Hub team deal with the 
Council’s statutory responsibilities in 
respect of the following :- 

 Corporate Complaints 

 Children Services Complaints 

 Freedom of Information Request 

 Environmental Information Request 

 Whistleblowing 

 Land Charges 

There are statutory requirements in 
relation to the work of the Information 
Hub team as well as contractual 
obligations in relation to insurance and 
the need to adhere to Civil Procedure 
Rules. 

Requests for various forms of information from external 
organisations and members of the public.  Complaints from 
customers and members of the public.  

251 
 

 
Legal Services (including Procurement) 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference 

The Legal services team is broken down 
into the following areas of activity: 

 Children’s & Adults’ Services  

 Property & Environment  

 Litigation & Licensing 

 Monitoring Officer Function works 
and services is undertaken in 
compliance with legislation 

The Procurement Service carries out a 
wide range of activities to ensure council 
spend on goods, and delivers best value 
for Torbay. 

The Legal Services team provide support 
to each of the service departments 
within the Local Authority. 
The Monitoring Officer function is a 
separate and statutory function that sits 
with the Senior Solicitor within this 
team. The Council Monitoring Officer 
advises the Council and Members on 
Governance and Constitutional Matters 
and performs a central role within the 
complaints process. 
Public Sector Procurement regulations 
within the EU relate to the purchasing, 
by public sector, of contracts for goods, 
works or services, where the contract 
value exceeds set spend thresholds.  In 
addition we must adhere to the 
Government’s Value for Money (VFM) 
policy.  

The entirety of work undertaken by Legal Services is dictated 
by the demand from the various client departments.  
Over the past year the Procurement Team has adopted a 
more proactive approach which involves earlier identification 
of procurement needs and the provision of training and 
support to enable Business Units to manage their own 
procurements, where they are deemed to be low value and 
low risk. 

253 & 257 

 

P
age 222



 

     
 

Registrars 

What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference 

 Registration of birth, deaths 
and marriages in accordance 
with the statutory 
requirements.  

 Statutory and non-statutory 
ceremonies. 

 Keeping records and archives 

 Providing Certificates 

 Licensing of all non CoE 
(Church of England) marriages 
etc 

 

There are a range of statutory 
requirements around the provision 
of the Registrars service.  Full 
details are included within the 
Summary Service Review available 
at www.torbay.gov.uk/budget 
 

 

 13/14 

Number of Births registered in Torbay 2,371 

Number of Deaths registered in Torbay 2,355 

Number of Marriages registered in Torbay - In 
Approved Premises 

274 

Number of Civil Partnerships registered in Torbay 10 

Number of Marriages registered in Torbay - in 
the Register Office 

184 

Number of Non Statutory Ceremonies conducted 
in Torbay  

11 

Number of new British Citizenship candidates 
attending a ceremony in Torbay 

101 
 

262 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 223

http://www.torbay.gov.uk/budget


 

     
 

Governance Support 

What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

The Governance Support team provide 
the following services:  

 Electoral services (includes running 
elections and referendums and 
maintaining the electoral register to 
ensure people’s right to vote) 

 Democratic services (includes co-
ordinating the Council’s decision-
making, constitutional/governance 
advice and public participation 
ensuring openness and 
transparency) 

 Member, Executive Director of 
Operations and Finance and 
Director support (includes 
dedicated secretarial support to the 
Mayor) 

 Member development and training 

 Chairman and civic/ceremonial 
support 

 Facilitating school admission and 
exclusion appeals and supporting 
the Torbay Independent Appeals 
Panel to ensure parents’ right to 
appeal for a place at their preferred 
school and against an exclusion of 
their child from school. 

Governance Support ensures the Council 
operates in an open and transparent 
way so that people’s right to access 
decisions and take part in meetings is 
maintained.  The team also establishes 
people’s right to vote and ensures well 
run elections and referendums to 
support healthy democracy based on 
fairness and participation.  A third area 
of the team’s service includes providing 
parents with their right to appeal for a 
school place or against their child’s 
exclusion from a school. 
 

The team support the elected Mayor and 36 councillors on a 
daily basis so that they can fulfil their responsibilities to the 
public. 
 
We also assist approx 107,000 electors within Torbay with 
their right to vote, including employing approximately 450 
staff for elections (e.g. at polling stations and for counting 
the votes).   
 

Governance 
Support: 259 &260 

Members 
Allowances: 261 

 
 
 

 

P
age 224



 

     
 

Communications 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

 Corporate documents and 
communication support. 

 Marketing campaigns. 

 Media management. 

 Member and officer training 
and development. 

 Communications support for 
events. 

 Internal communications. 

 Communications support for 
elections. 

 Emergency communications 
support. 

 Corporate branding and 
signage. 

 Design service. 
 

Although this service is not statutory the 
Communications Team delivers a 
communication service for the council to 
raise its reputation and ensure 
information is clearly communicated in 
the right way at the right time to 
residents, staff and stakeholders, using 
the full range of communications 
methods. 
This service also ensures that the council 
gives due regard to The Code of 
Recommended Practice On Local 
Authority Publicity as required in section 
4(1) of the Local Government Act 1986. 
This ensures that local authority 
publicity is effective, efficient, objective, 
cost effective and appropriate. It must 
also operate within certain legal 
constraints. 
 

 The new communications and design database shows 
that 425 written and designed projects were completed 
in 2013/14.  

 There were 743 media enquiries in 2013/14 There were 
389 press releases and statements in 2013/14  

 Support for events in 2013/14 include: Armed Forces 
Day, HiTech Forum, Cruise Ships exhibitions, The 
Mayor’s Forum. 

 A new internal communication strategy is currently 
being developed to update and make current channels 
of communications more relevant. 

 An updated social media strategy, which involves 
creating social media champions, is being developed in 
conjunction with the Public Access Channel and Systems 
Team. 

254 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 225



 

     
 

Business Services 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

 Support to development and 

delivery of the council’s key 

change projects focusing on HR 

/ organisational changes.   

 Delivery of effective support to 

the scrutiny of the Council’s 

decisions or actions. To support 

policy development and 

performance monitoring. 

 Consultation and Equality 

Impact Assessments 

 Performance and Policy 

Development 

 Statutory Data Returns and 

Statistics 

The service supports the development 

and delivery of the council’s key change 

projects/programmes. 

 

It also provides support to enable the 

local authority to discharge a number of 

statutory duties such as the provision of 

an overview and scrutiny committee, 

requirement to consult the community 

and service users, securing continuous 

improvement and submitting statutory 

returns. 

Service changes required by the local authority as a whole.  277 

 
Directors 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

This reflects the costs of the roles of the 
following posts:- 

 Council's Executive Director of 
Operations & Finance (0.8FTE) 
(who is the head of paid service 
for the Council) 

 Director of Adult Services 

(0.8FTE), 

 Director of Place (0.8FTE) 

 Director of Children's 

Services(1.0FTE) 

Senior management of Torbay Council. To support Torbay Council in delivering its services.  255 

 

P
age 226



Service Title: Human Resources

Manager: Susan Wiltshire

Brief Description of Service:

Human Resources provide a service to the Council, schools and external organisations such as Torbay Development Agency (TDA), English Riviera 
Tourism Company (ERTC) and Academies. The service provides professional advice on a wide range of employment related issues, disciplinary and 
grievance and a range of services such as Payroll, Pensions, Occupational Health, Learning and Development, Counselling, Coaching, Mediation, Policy 
Development and Recruitment Services.

This budget also includes the cost of the Council wide apprentice scheme.

Business Unit: Commercial & Business Services

Executive Head: Anne-Marie Bond

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

265 Corporate Apprentices 34923 0 0 0 0 349 0 0 0 0 0 349

268 Corporate Recruitment 00 0 17 0 0 17 0 0 0 0 0 17

267 Corporate Training 00 0 62 0 0 62 -12 0 0 0 -12 50

266 Occupational Health 00 0 96 0 0 96 -42 0 0 0 -42 54

263 Payroll 1526 0 21 0 0 173 -126 0 0 0 -126 47

264 Personnel 3749.6 0 54 0 0 428 -156 0 0 0 -156 272

P
age 227



Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

875 0 250 0 0 1,125 -336 0 0 0 -336 789TOTAL 38.6

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 228



Service Title: Legal Services

Manager: Anne-Marie Bond

Brief Description of Service:

Legal Services are provided to the Council, its Officers, Members and Committees.  The division consists of the following Legal teams:- Property, 
Procurement and Environment, Adult and Children's, Litigation and Licensing, Legal support including Records.

Legal Services also provide the following services to the Council:- Information Hub including Land Charges, Insurance and Coroner.

Business Unit: Commercial & Business Services

Executive Head: Anne-Marie Bond

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

Insurance
 Premium 
& Excess

No of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

250 Coroner 00 0 221 0 0 221 0 0 0 0 0 221

251 Information Hub 2507.8 0 12 2 0 264 -276 0 0 0 -276 -12

252 Insurance 00 0 0 0 1,122 1,122 -238 0 -10 0 -248 874

253 Legal Services 62917.7 0 181 0 0 810 -325 0 -27 0 -352 458

257 Procurement 1604 0 5 0 0 165 -74 0 0 0 -74 91

1,039 0 419 2 1,122 2,582 -913 0 -37 0 -950 1,632TOTAL 29.5

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 229



Service Title: Registration of Births, Deaths & Marriages

Manager: Stephen Lemming

Brief Description of Service:

The division is responsible for the registration of birth, deaths and marriages in accordance with the statutory requirements.  It is also responsible for a 
number of statutory and non statutory ceremonies.

Business Unit: Commercial & Business Services

Executive Head: Anne-Marie Bond

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

262 Registrar - BDM 2205 19 22 0 0 261 -250 0 0 0 -250 11

220 19 22 0 0 261 -250 0 0 0 -250 11TOTAL 5

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 230



Service Title: Governance Support

Manager: June Gurry

Brief Description of Service:

This budget reflects the expenditure incurred in relation to supporting the Council's decision making process and the political processes.

It is a multi-skilled team who undertake Election work and includes the Executive support to the Executive Director of Finance & Operations, Directors, 
Mayor and Members.

Full Council and Mayoral Election will be held in May 2015

Business Unit: Commercial & Business Services

Executive Head: Anne-Marie Bond

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

259 Democratic 
Representation

2498.3 5 23 0 0 277 0 0 0 0 0 277

260 Elections 610.6 2 244 42 0 349 -3 -42 -155 0 -200 149

261 Members Allowances 5240 1 29 0 0 554 0 0 -10 0 -10 544

834 8 296 42 0 1,180 -3 -42 -165 0 -210 970TOTAL 8.9

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 231



Service Title: Business Support, Communications & Directors

Manager: Anne-Marie Bond

Brief Description of Service:

Business Support Services combines a range of services which support the operation of the Council's Services and includes: 
Business Change which supports the development and delivery of the Council's Key Change Projects.
Overview & Scrutiny provide the delivery of effective support to the scrutiny of the Council's decisions.
Policy Performance & Review Team sets a framework for consultation and equalities. They also support the development of Corporate Policy and complete statutory data 
returns along with analysing of a wide range of local data.
Communications Team - Provide Marketing and Communciation support for corporate centre and individual services both internal and external  
Directors - This heading reflects the costs of the roles of the following post:- Councils Executive Director of Operations & Finance (0.8 FTE), who is the head of paid service 
for the Council and the Council's following Director's post:- Director of Adult Services ( 0.8 FTE), Director of Place ( 0.8 FTE) and the Director of Children's Services (1.0 
FTE). Note Director of Public Health funded from Public Health grant.

Business Unit: Commercial & Business Services

Executive Head: Anne-Marie Bond

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

258 Business Services 3018.7 0 48 0 0 349 -30 -10 -30 0 -70 279

254 Communications Team 1594.6 0 12 0 0 171 -59 0 0 0 -59 112

255 Directors 4933.4 0 21 0 0 514 0 0 0 0 0 514

953 0 81 0 0 1,034 -89 -10 -30 0 -129 905TOTAL 16.7

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 232



 

    
 

Commercial Services & Business Services         Director:  Steve Parrock 
             Executive Head: Anne-Marie Bond 
             Executive Lead: Cllr Beryl McPhail 
 

Agreed Savings  – 
Outline details 

Savings for 2015/16 Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Commercial Services   
1. Increased 

income 
targets 
 

(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 

60,000  None 01.04.15  253,262,251 

2. Income 
Generation 

 

£191,000  Utilise within 
14/15 

savings 
above for 
15/16 to 
recruit a 

fixed term 
Business 

Development 
Manager 

Through 
14/15 

Minor Impact  
The business areas within Commercial Services are at de 
minimus levels, and any further reduction will limit the ability 
of the teams to deliver the most basic of services for the 
Council, with absolutely no resilience for absences. 
It is therefore proposed that 2014/15 in year savings are used 
to fund a fixed term Business Development Manager position, 
with the aim of transforming the service delivery in respect of 
selling of our services to third parties. 
Should income generation to this level not be seen to be 
achievable by December 2014, then an internal re-structure 
will need to be undertaken to reduce the budget. 

253 

 

 

P
age 233



 

    
 

Agreed Savings  – 
Outline details 

Savings for 2015/16 Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Incom
e 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Coroner  
3. Merger of 

Coronial 
districts with 
Plymouth 
City Council 
 

(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 17,500    250 

 
Agreed Savings  – 

Outline details 
Savings for 2015/16 Implement-

ation Cost 
Delivery 

Date 
Possible Risks / impact of proposals 

 
Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Legal Services (including Procurement)  
1. Restructuring 

of teams  
 
Deletion of post -  
Solicitor (Litigation and 
Licensing team) 
 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 50,000    253 

 

P
age 234



 

    
 

Agreed Savings  – Outline 
details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Communications  
1. Restructuring of 

teams  
 
Deletion of post -  Head of 
Communications 
 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 52,000    254 

 
Agreed Savings – Outline 

details 
Savings for 2015/16 Impleme

nt-ation 
Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Business Services   
1. Restructures across 

the service 
 

(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 

 195,800    258 

2. New burdens 
funding Community 
Rights under-spend 
from previous years 

 

 30,000  01/04/15 Internal 
Funding from government to reflect costs if right is taken up. 
£16k remains to cover any future take-up 

258 

P
age 235



 

    
 

Agreed Savings – Outline 
details 

Savings for 2015/16 Impleme
nt-ation 

Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

3. Staffing Changes 
 

 52,000   Internal 
Reduced capacity 
 

258 

 

P
age 236



 

 

Local Land Charges Department – Draft Fees and Charges 
2015/16 
 

 £ 
Current 
2014/15 

£ 
Proposed2

015/16 

   

Official search in the whole or any one part of the Local Land Charges (LLC) 
Register  (including the issue of an Official Certificate of Search):  

  
 

in respect of one parcel of land 28.50 28.50 

in respect of each additional parcel of land (subject to agreement) 5.00 5.00 

   

Personal search in the whole or any one part of the LLC Register (regardless of 
the number of parcels of land) 

No Charge* 
No 

Charge* 

   

Replies to all Required Enquiries of Local Authorities (Form Con 29R):   

in respect of one parcel of land 60.50 60.50 

in respect of each additional parcel of land (subject to agreement) 12.00 12.00 

   

Replies to individual enquiries on Form Con 29R:   

Administration fee 10.00 10.00 

Question 1.1 (a) to (e) 6.00 6.00 

Question 1.1. (f) to (h) 2.00 2.00 

Question 2 (a) 4.00 4.00 

Question 2 (b) to (d) 2.50 2.50 

Question 3.1 1.00 1.00 

Question 3.2 1.00 1.00 

Question 3.4 (a) to (f) 1.50 1.50 

Question 3.5 1.00 1.00 

Question 3.6 (a) to (l) 5.00 5.00 

Question 3.7 (a) to (f) 7.00 7.00 

Question 3.8 2.00 2.00 

Question 3.9 6.00 6.00 

Question 3.10 (a) to (b) 1.50 1.50 

Question 3.11 1.00 1.00 

Question 3.12 1.00 1.00 

   

Replies to Optional Enquiries of Local Authority (Con 29O) – each enquiry  10.00 10.00 

   

Additional enquiry – each (subject to agreement)  15.00 15.00 

   

Office copy of any entry in the Local Land Charges Register: 
collected by hand  
sent via post/document exchange system 

 
2.00 
5.00 

 
2.00 
5.00 

   

 
*(Statutory fee) 
 
(Please note VAT will be applied where applicable) 

Page 237



 

 

Registration Service – Draft Fees and Charges 2015/16 
 

Registration Service Discretionary Fees and Charges Current 
2014/15 

Proposed 
2015/16 

Fee for attending a Marriage or Civil Partnership Ceremonies are as 
follows:-   

  

At Approved Premises in the Torbay district:-  
Monday to Friday  -  up to 6pm 
Monday to Friday  -  6pm to 8pm 
Monday to Friday  -  from 8pm 
Saturday                 -  up to 6pm 
Saturday    -   from 8pm, Sunday or Bank Holiday  

 
£404 
£429 
£479 
£429 
£479 

 
£404 
£429 
£479 
£429 
£479 

At Cockington Court in the Cary Room:- 
Monday to Saturday – up to 6pm 
Monday to Saturday – 6pm – 8pm 
Monday to Saturday – after 6pm, Sunday or Bank Holiday.  

 
£276 
£354 
£404 

 
£276 
£354 
£404 

Booking of Approved Premises Venue ceremony  
Non Refundable Deposit required ( to be deducted from final fee 
when paid ) 

 
£50 

 
£50 

   

License for Approved Premises to hold ceremonies  
- NEW (valid 3 years) 

£1,300 £1,300 

 License for Approved Premises to hold ceremonies                                                                             
- RENEW (valid 3years) 

£950 £950 

   

Non Statutory Ceremonies Fee:- ( inclusive of VAT) 
Naming ceremonies  
Renewal of Vows 
Commitment ceremonies  

 
£160 
£160 
£160 

 
£160 
£160 
£160 

Talk through of Ceremony Fee:- 
Face to Face 
Via E-mail  

 
£15 
Free 

 
£15 
Free 

 
Any changes to all bookings will be subject to an admin fee of:- 
( inclusive of VAT where applicable).                                           

 
 

£10 

 
 

£10 

 

 

Page 238



Financial Services

2015/16 Budget Summary (*ATL)

ServiceTitleID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees

Care Act Implementation419 0 -1,107 -1,1070

Corporate Issues400 4,334 -2,969 1,3650

Corporate Management401 168 -50 1180

Council Tax Freeze Grant416 0 -639 -6390

Debt - (Principal & Interest)402 11,988 -3,484 8,5040

Devon Audit Partnership408 254 -7 2470

Exchequer & Benefits403 1,725 -1,247 47860

External Audit Fees404 184 0 1840

Financial Services405 1,181 -153 1,02830.4

Green Travel Plan415 59 -59 00

Housing Benefits406 66,280 -66,379 -990

Interest & Treasury Charges407 180 -626 -4460

Local Tax Collection409 233 -489 -2560

New Homes Bonus Grant418 0 -2,557 -2,5570

P
age 239



ServiceTitleID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees

NNDR Related Grants417 0 -1,341 -1,3410

Non Distributed and Pension Costs410 3,442 -99 3,3430

Precepts & Levies411 86 0 860

Riviera International Centre412 524 0 5240

Social Fund413 400 0 4003

Total 91,038 -81,206 9,832

Note:   *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

93.4

P
age 240



 

    
 

Finance            Director:  Steve Parrock 
             Executive Head: Paul Looby 
             Executive Lead: Mayor Gordon Oliver 
 
Financial Services and Creditor Payments 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

Financial Services is split into three teams: 

 People’s Finance Team 

 Corporate Finance and 

Environment Finance Team 

 Systems Team 

The provision of the services is split into 

several areas: 

 Closure of the accounts 

 Budget and Resources Planning 

and Preparation 

 Budget Monitoring for Services 

 Treasury Management 

 Capital Planning 

 Technical Advice and Major 

Project Work 

 Submission of Statutory Returns 

and Grant Claims 

 Provision of bought back service to 

schools and academies 

 Financial systems 

The service also provides a centralised 

Creditor Payment function for the Council - 

responsible for the scrutiny and payment of 

invoices and clearing of credit notes for 

commercial suppliers. 

There are a range of statutory 
requirements around the provision of 
the Financial Services and Creditor 
Payments.  Full details are included 
within the Summary Service Review 
available at www.torbay.gov.uk/budget 

 

 Accounting for £80m Council Tax Collection 

Fund. 

 Accounting for £38m National Non-Domestic 

Rates (NNDR) Collection Fund. 

 Reconciliation of £80m (net) Benefit payments. 

 Monthly VAT returns - £12m reclaimed per 

annum 

 Reconciliation of Dedicated Schools Grant 

£88m. 
 Approximately 288,300 invoices / transactions 

are checked, processed, paid and dispatched by 

the Payments Team each year.   

408 and 405 

P
age 241

http://www.torbay.gov.uk/budget


 

    
 

 

Revenue and Benefits 

What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

The Revenue and Benefits Service can be 
split into five activities below: 
 

 Revenue and Benefits (1) 

 Corporate Debt (2) 

 Fraud, Visiting and Training (3) 

 Discretionary Awards (4) 

 Systems and Development (5) 
 
 
 
 

There are a range of statutory 
requirements around the provision of 
the Revenue and Benefits service.  Full 
details are included within the Summary 
Service Review available at 
www.torbay.gov.uk/budget 
 

 Processing 8,900 new claims for Housing and 
Council Tax Support. 

 Updating 54,000 Housing and Council Tax 
Support changes in circumstances. 

 Maintaining 13,900 Housing Benefit and 16,800 
Council Tax Support cases. 

 Maintaining 65,700 Council Tax liable properties 
totalling £65.9 million in 2013/14. 

 Maintaining 5,000 Non Domestic Rate liable 
properties totalling £36.9 million in 2013/14. 

 Produce 98,700 Council Tax and 6,900 NNDR 
bills in 2013/14. 

 Issue over 95,000 benefit notifications in 
2012013/14. 

 Pay £67.3 million in Housing Benefit in 2013/14. 

 Pay £12.9 million in Council Tax Support in 
2013/14. 

 Recover £1.3 million in overpaid Housing 
Benefit, £450,000 by invoice in Open Revenues 
Debtors system in 2013/14. 

 

403, 409, 413 & 406 

 

 

 

P
age 242

http://www.torbay.gov.uk/budget


Service Title: Financial Services & Devon Audit Partnership

Manager: Paul Looby

Brief Description of Service:

Financial Services is responsible for the co-ordination and planning of the council’s budget, financial statements and financial advice and creditor payments.
Services include - Closure of the Accounts including production of statement of accounts; Budget and Resource Planning and Preparation; Budget Monitoring for Services; 
Treasury Management; Capital Planning - resourcing and monitoring; Technical Advice and Major Project work; Submission of Statutory Returns and Grant Claims; 
Provision of bought back service to Schools and Academies; Financial Systems.

Devon Audit Partnership - The Council’s internal audit function is provided in partnership with Devon County and Plymouth Council and has been formed under a joint 
committee arrangement comprising each authority. The partnership works with the partners and provides a professional internal audit service that will assist them in meeting 
their challenges, managing their risks and achieving their goals.  The partnership is required to comply with the CIPFA code of practice for Internal Audit and other best 
practice and professional standards.

Business Unit: Financial Services

Executive Head: Paul Looby

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

408 Devon Audit Partnership 00 0 254 0 0 254 -7 0 0 0 -7 247

405 Financial Services 1,11230.4 0 69 0 0 1,181 -153 0 0 0 -153 1,028

1,112 0 323 0 0 1,435 -160 0 0 0 -160 1,275TOTAL 30.4

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 243



Service Title: Exchequer and Benefits

Manager: Linda Owen

Brief Description of Service:

The Service provides welfare support and advice as well as the provision of transactional activities related to benefits, council tax and NNDR collection, and 
a cashiers function. It provides a quality benefits service to Torbay residents and meets the challenges and demands arising from the introduction by 
government of a local council tax support scheme, localisation of business rates and the phased introduction of universal credit.

Business Unit: Financial Services

Executive Head: Paul Looby

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

Social 
Fund

No of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

403 Exchequer & Benefits 1,55360 0 172 0 0 1,725 -87 -1,160 0 0 -1,247 478

409 Local Tax Collection 00 0 233 0 0 233 -284 -205 0 0 -489 -256

413 Social Fund 883 0 0 0 312 400 0 0 0 0 0 400

1,641 0 405 0 312 2,358 -371 -1,365 0 0 -1,736 622TOTAL 63

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 244



Service Title: Housing Benefit

Manager: Linda Owen

Brief Description of Service:

This page reflects Housing Benefit payments offset by the subsidy from the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) and any recovered overpayments. 
The staffing costs of this function are held within the Exchequer and Benefit service.
Includes payments and subsidy for Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP).

Business Unit: Financial Services

Executive Head: Paul Looby

Housing 
Benefit 

Payments

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Housing 
Benefit 
Subsidy

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Overpay
ments

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

406 Housing Benefits 00 0 66,280 0 0 66,280 0 -65,779 0 -600 -66,379 -99

0 0 66,280 0 0 66,280 0 -65,779 0 -600 -66,379 -99TOTAL 0

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 245



Service Title: Budgets held Centrally

Manager: Paul Looby

Brief Description of Service:

Precepts & Levies are Environment Agency and the Inshore Fisheries Service.
Pension deficit is the annual cash payment Council is required to make to the Local Government Pension Scheme pension fund in relation to past 
employees. Pension enhancements are the ongoing costs of historic awards of discretionary pensions including the Council's contribution to Devon County 
Council's pre 1998 awards. 
Corporate Management includes subscriptions such as Local Government Association and the Office Rationalisation Project funded from reserves.

Business Unit: Financial Services

Executive Head: Paul Looby

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Pension 
Deficit

Pension 
Enhance

ments

401 Corporate Management 00 0 168 0 0 168 0 0 -50 0 -50 118

404 External Audit Fees 00 0 184 0 0 184 0 0 0 0 0 184

415 Green Travel Plan 00 0 59 0 0 59 -59 0 0 0 -59 0

410 Non Distributed and 
Pension Costs

1,8200 1,525 10 87 0 3,442 0 0 -17 -82 -99 3,343

411 Precepts & Levies 00 0 86 0 0 86 0 0 0 0 0 86

412 Riviera International 
Centre

00 0 524 0 0 524 0 0 0 0 0 524

P
age 246



Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Pension 
Deficit

Pension 
Enhance

ments

1,820 1,525 1,031 87 0 4,463 -59 0 -67 -82 -208 4,255TOTAL 0

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 247



Service Title: Grant Income and Contingencies

Manager: Paul Looby

Brief Description of Service:

This pages contains a number of cross Council budgets including:
- Contingencies for costs of exit packages and service pressures.
- A number of un ring fenced grants
- Contribution from Marine Services to general fund
- Use of Reserves to support Childrens Services Cost Reduction Plan

Business Unit: Financial Services

Executive Head: Paul Looby

Exit 
packages

T-Bid 
support

Empty 
Homes

No of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Childrens
 Serv. 

Reserves

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Cont.from 
Reserves

Cont 
from 

Marine

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Service 
Pressures 

& Pay

Social 
Care 

Contin.

419 Care Act 
Implementation

00 0 0 0 0 0 0 -1,107 0 0 -1,107 -1,107

400 Corporate Issues 4920 3,000 692 50 100 4,334 -2,300 -209 0 -460 -2,969 1,365

416 Council Tax Freeze 
Grant

00 0 0 0 0 0 0 -639 0 0 -639 -639

418 New Homes Bonus 
Grant

00 0 0 0 0 0 0 -2,557 0 0 -2,557 -2,557

417 NNDR Related Grants 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 -1,341 0 0 -1,341 -1,341

P
age 248



Exit 
packages

T-Bid 
support

Empty 
Homes

No of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Childrens
 Serv. 

Reserves

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Cont.from 
Reserves

Cont 
from 

Marine

Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Service 
Pressures 

& Pay

Social 
Care 

Contin.

492 3,000 692 50 100 4,334 -2,300 -5,853 0 -460 -8,613 -4,279TOTAL 0

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 249



Service Title: Treasury Management

Manager: Martin Phillips

Brief Description of Service:

Reflects costs of borrowing to support capital expenditure, both interest paid and repayment of principal (MRP).
Reflects interest earnt on cash balances.
Reflects principal and interest costs of PFI projects offset by PFI Credits from government.
Treasury Charges include bank charges.
Other income includes income from services for unsupported borrowing, depreciation and bank charges.

Business Unit: Financial Services

Executive Head: Paul Looby

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

Harbour
 

Subsidy

No of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Interest 
Received

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Interest 
Paid

MRP

402 Debt - (Principal & 
Interest)

6,7170 4,703 0 10 558 11,988 0 -922 -15 -2,547 -3,484 8,504

407 Interest & Treasury 
Charges

00 0 180 0 0 180 -615 0 0 -11 -626 -446

6,717 4,703 180 10 558 12,168 -615 -922 -15 -2,558 -4,110 8,058TOTAL 0

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 250



 

     

Finance            Director:  Steve Parrock 
             Executive Head: Paul Looby 
             Executive Lead: Mayor Gordon Oliver 
 

Agreed Savings – Outline 
details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget 
Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Financial Services and Creditor Payments  
1. Reduction to Devon 

Audit Partnership 
Budget 

 
(Proposal agreed by Council 
in Feb 2014) 

 27,000    408 

2. Staffing Reductions 
 

The majority of the Finance 
budget is used to fund 
staffing costs.  Therefore 
any reduction to the 
Finance budget will impact 
upon staff numbers. 

 
A restructure will be 
required to reduce costs 
which is in addition to the 
savings already identified as 
part of the 2014/15 budget 
proposals  

 
To date £60k has been 
identified 

 60,000 Associated 
redundancy 

costs and 
pension 
strain if 

applicable 

April 
2015 

Further reduction to staffing levels will have the potential to put the Finance 
section under significant pressure to deliver the minimum levels of 
performance to maintain an effective finance function. 

 Risk of inadequate staff cover and ongoing pressures with workloads 
arising from continuing welfare changes. 

 Key areas of risk include increased number of errors as part of the closure 
of accounts therefore a greater chance of qualification of accounts. 

 A reduction in the range and level of financial support and advice to all 
services including the budget process and an increase in response times.   

 A potential reduction in the frequency of core activities i.e. budget 
monitoring and capacity to support major projects. 

 Processing times for housing and council tax may increase with adverse 
impact upon customers, the collection of income and impact upon the 
collection of outstanding debt. 

 If performance declines and housing benefit service fails to meets their 
target for reducing errors in processing claims no additional subsidy will 
be achieved. 

405 

P
age 251



 

     

 

Draft Proposals – Outline 
details 

Savings for 2015/16 Implement
-ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget 
Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reductio

n 
£ 

    

Revenue and Benefits  

3. Review of working 
arrangements 
  

(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

 144,000    403/409 

4. Increase council tax 
base resulting in 
additional council tax 
income 

 
Finance team is 
undertaking a pilot project 
to assess how the amount 
of council tax income can 
be maximised from the 
existing council tax base by 
ensuring council tax payers 
are correctly claiming the 
appropriate discounts.  The 
pilot will focus on 
increasing the council tax 
base on an invest to save 
basis which will increase 
the amount of income 
collected by the council. 

£100,00
0 

(approx. 
but 

could be 
greater), 

 To be 
determined 

April 15  No adverse impact as the statutory income due to the council will be 
collected. 

 Invest to save case will not deliver expected additional income requiring 
further savings 

403 

P
age 252



 

     

Draft Proposals – Outline 
details 

Savings for 2015/16 Implement
-ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget 
Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reductio

n 
£ 

    

5. SEFAS printing 
 

Printing savings including 
introduction of SEFAS 
software from April 15 and 
ending of paper copy 
council tax leaflets 
replacing with an 
electronic copy. 

 £40,000 n/a  No risks – savings achieved through more efficient ways of working. 409 

 P
age 253



 

 

Financial Services – Draft Fees and Charges 2015/16 
 
 

 
 

Current 
2014/15 

Proposed 
2015/16 

   

Court Costs (Per liability order) £85.00 £85.00 
 

Credit Card Transaction charge (only charged on payments in respect of Council 
Tax and Business Rates) 

2% 2% 

Penalty Charge for failure to provide information requested for Council Tax 
purposes  

£70 £70 

Under the “Late Payment Of Commercial Debt (Interest) Act 1998” the Council is 
entitled to charge interest on Late Payments at a rate of 8% (simple) usually 30 
days from the date of the invoice.  In addition the Council is entitled to charge 
compensation at the rates identified in the Act. 

  

 

Page 254



Information Services

2015/16 Budget Summary (*ATL)

ServiceTitleID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees

Customer Services500 824 -21 80338.3

Information Technology502 2,380 -470 1,91034

Post Room501 135 -31 1046

Printing Services503 805 -805 08.4

Voice Network504 107 -2 1050

Total 4,251 -1,329 2,922

Note:   *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

86.7

P
age 255



 

     
 

Information Services            Director:  Steve Parrock 
              Executive Head: Bob Clark 
              Executive Lead: Cllr Beryl McPhail 
 

Information Technology (IT)  
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

A central support service providing: 

 Information communications technology 
(ICT) business systems and software 
support and development. 

 Desktop & network support, ICT 
improvements projects. 

 Network installation, server administration 
& fault rectification. 

 ICT training. 

 Information Governance and Data 
protection & Records management 
services. 

 
Services extend to the Council, Council members, 
Adult Care Trust, and other Joint Working agencies 
(i.e. Youth Justice); Coroners.  
 

This is a non statutory service but 
is providing business critical 
support to enable statutory 
services to function. If systems 
are not operational then the 
Councils ability to undertake its 
statutory duties will be 
compromised and public services 
will be affected. 
Responsible for delivering new IT 
solutions that are either required 
to meet new legislative 
requirements or to facilitate 
improvements in the operational 
efficiency of the Council’s service 
areas 
Information governance is a 
statutory framework to ensure 
we comply with legislation, data 
protection and other mandatory 
standards. 
 

 A 1400 user network including front line staff and 
critical systems at over 30 sites around Torbay 
 
Over 300 servers and 1400 telephones, 500 remote 
access connections 
 
Provision of new systems to meet statutory 
requirements and central government directives. 
 
Nearly 500 training courses run for 1400 delegates 
(13/14) 
 
12983 Service Desk support calls (13/14) 
 
800 annual staff IT moves  

502 & 504 

 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 256



 

     
 

 
Customer Services & Customer Access 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Digest  

Customer Services provides the primary access 
channels for the public contacting Torbay Council. 
Implementing Customer Access Improvement 
Project (CAIP) and eContact. 
Face to face services operate in Torquay 
Connections in Brixham Library and in Paignton 
Library Information Centre. 
The Contact Centre manages telephone contact for 
a wide range of council services 
The Public Access Channel and Systems Team (PACS) 
support and develop the back office systems that 
Customer Services use as well as customer facing 
systems. 
The team also provides website design & support, 
document digitisation, social media support 

Customer Services is not 
statutory but does offer the 
public’s main contact to Torbay 
Council either face to face, 
through the call centre or main 
switchboard. However, many of 
the functions supported by 
Customer Services are statutory, 
such as Elections, Registrars and 
Housing. 

Financial Year 2013/14 demand : 

 over 261,000 calls to call centre 

 over 71,000 visitors 

 over 122,000 calls to the switchboard 
 
Call centre demand has continued to increase 
 
Increasing demand for channel shift and digital by 
default to access services through the Corporate 
website and mobile devices. 
 
Office Rationalisation Project (ORP) 
 
Corporate initiatives such as Tell us Once (TUO)  

500 

 

Print & Post Room 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

Printing operates as a trading unit with all work 
charged on a job basis to clients. The majority of 
work is required by Torbay council with a diverse 
range of output from posters and outdoor banners 
through to offset/digital printing and regular 
complex mailing jobs obtaining the maximum postal 
discounts available.  
The Post Team deal with the receipt and despatch of 
all internal and external mail generated by and for 
Torbay, the General and Education courier service’s 
are run from within the post Team and they also 
operate the council’s corporate scanning service. 
 

This service is not statutory 
although it supports all other 
departments across the authority 
as well as external customers.  
 

Number of jobs produced: 1906 for the year  13/14 
 
Number of stationary orders produced: 1063 for 
year 13/14 
 
The Printing Service’s customer base is 64% 
internal (Torbay Council) and 36% external 
(Primarily NHS) and turnover is approximately in 
the region of £842K annually 
Number of items posted: 793949 (13/14 up to 
12/3/14) 
 
Scanned items: 74,456 (13/14 up to 12/3/14) 

501 and 503 

 

P
age 257



Service Title: Information Technology (ICT) & Information Governance

Manager: Bob Clark, Ian Harrison, Andy Margetts

Brief Description of Service:

Information Communication Technology (ICT) & Information Governance is a central support service providing Information Technology services, Information Governance 
and Data protection & Records management services to the Council, Council members, Adult Care Trust, and other Joint Working agencies (i.e. Youth Justice). 
The ICT Support and Information Governance services have a major strategic enabling role within the organisation and significantly underpin the majority of Service 
departments and commissioned services of the Council.
A wide range of technical ICT support services and Information Governance support are offered to provide an “Effective and cost efficient ICT support services” supporting 
the needs of our Council departments, enabling smarter working and cost effective services.
Services include: ICT Development and Software Support; ICT Network Support & Network Operations Support; ICT Desktop Team & Service Desk Team; ICT Training & 
ICT Services Admin; Information Governance/Data protection & Records management.

Business Unit: Information Services

Executive Head: Bob Clark

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

IT 
Licence

No of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

502 Information Technology 1,19834 0 486 0 696 2,380 -173 0 -297 0 -470 1,910

504 Voice Network 00 0 107 0 0 107 -2 0 0 0 -2 105

1,198 0 593 0 696 2,487 -175 0 -297 0 -472 2,015TOTAL 34

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 258



Service Title: Customer Services & Customer Access, Post Room and Printing

Manager: Alison Whittaker, Stuart Rickards

Brief Description of Service:

Customer Services provides the primary access channels for the public contacting Torbay Council.  Face to face services operate from central locations in each of the three 
towns in the Bay. One operates in Torquay Connections whilst the others are co-located services at Brixham Library and Paignton Library Information Centre.  In addition to 
providing information on Council services, Torquay and Paignton also offer self serve facilities via internet pods and drop in sessions and surgeries for partner 
organisations.  The Contact Centre manages telephone contact for a wide range of council services.  The Public Access Channel and Systems Team (PACS) support and 
develop the back office systems that Customer Services use as well as customer facing systems.
Printing operates as a trading unit with all work charged on a job basis to clients. The majority of work is required by Torbay council with a diverse range of output from 
posters and outdoor banners through to offset/digital printing and regular complex mailing jobs obtaining the maximum postal discounts available. The Post Team deal with 
the receipt and despatch of all internal and external mail generated by and for Torbay. The general and education courier services are run from within the post Team and 
they also operate the Council’s corporate scanning service.

Business Unit: Information Services

Executive Head: Bob Clark

Supplies 
& 

Services

Contribut'n 
to 

Reserves

OtherNo of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Fees, 
Charges 
& Sales

Govern't 
Grant 
Income

Contribut'n 
from 

Reserves

Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

Employee 
Direct Costs

Premises

500 Customer Services 79538.3 0 29 0 0 824 -21 0 0 0 -21 803

501 Post Room 1256 0 10 0 0 135 -31 0 0 0 -31 104

503 Printing Services 2218.4 21 563 0 0 805 -805 0 0 0 -805 0

1,141 21 602 0 0 1,764 -857 0 0 0 -857 907TOTAL 52.7

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 259



 

     
 

Information Services            Director:  Steve Parrock 
              Executive Head: Bob Clark 
              Executive Lead: Cllr Beryl McPhail 
 

Agreed Savings – 
Outline details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implementation 
Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Information Technology (IT)   
1. Further review of 
Information 
Services and 
infrastructure  

 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 
 

 
1,000 

 
125,000 

   502 

P
age 260



 

     
 

Agreed Savings – 
Outline details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implementation 
Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

2. Further review of 
Information 
Services and 
infrastructure  
 
 

 66,000 Associated 
redundancy 

costs and 
pension strain if 

applicable 

1/4/15 Internal 
There will be a high potential risk that ICT service delivery would be 
put at risk, indirectly affecting the delivery of Council Services to the 
public. 
The Devon Audit Partnership have highlighted concerns over further 
ICT staff reductions and the potential impact it could have on the 
Councils ability to deliver services, if Computer systems and data 
infrastructure are not adequately supported.  
Suggest an Impact Assessment needs to be commissioned to fully 
identify potential risks to the organisation.  
High risk to other council departments in delivering their own 
services due to ICT issues/requirements not being services in an 
acceptable time frame  
ICT operational support & ICT development capacity reduced to a 
level which is no longer sustainable  
May affect ability to adequately resource our Business Continuity 
Programme (BCP) in the case of a serious ICT problem/disaster  
 

502 

3. Review ICT 
Training provision. 
 
Increase IT Training 
income target to 
£40,000. 
 

40,000   01/04/15 
 

Internal 
The income generated in 2014/15 will be a good indicator as to 
whether it is possible to generate £40,000 income from IT Training 
during 2015/16. 
A potential issue is whether the £40k income per annum is 
sustainable. 
 

502 

 
 
 

P
age 261



 

     
 

Agreed Savings – 
Outline details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implementation 
Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Customer Services & Customer Access  
4. Continue to roll 
out the Customer 
Access Improvement 
Programme (CAIP) 
 
(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 
 

 60,000    500 

5. One centralised 
Connections Service. 
 
Close Brixham and 
Torquay Connections 
Offices and centralise 
the “Connections” 
service in Paignton 
Library And 
Information Centre 
(PLAIC) 
 

 £102,000 
 

There will be 
additional costs 
associated with 
this proposal (to 
be researched) 

 
2015/16 

Major Impact 
 The location within PLAIC needs to be able to accommodate a 

significant increase in footfall 
 Age UK would no longer be able to use the meeting room in 

Torquay Connections and would have to make alternative 
arrangements 

 There is a need to ensure that the Main Reception at Torquay 
Town Hall does not become a face to face enquiry point 

 Customers that currently use Brixham & Torquay Connections 
would either have to travel to Paignton or make use of the 
alternative facilities. 

 Appointments may have to continue to be facilitated in Torquay 
due to meeting room space & staff travel costs to PLAIC 
 

It has been agreed that £102,000 of transitional funding is applied in 
2015/16 to enable further work to be undertaken to review the 
Connections operating model and having a centralised office 
 
The Mayor is proposing to re-instate teh base budget of 102.000 for 
Connections. 
 

500 

P
age 262



 

     
 

Agreed Savings – 
Outline details 

Savings for 
2015/16 

Implementation 
Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

6. Staff Review 
 
 

  44,000  
 

Associated 
redundancy 

costs and 
pension strain if 

applicable 

By 
01/04/15 

 

Internal 

 Reduced SLA 

 Reduced cover for sickness/staff leave will further reduce 
SLA 

500 

7.Income generation  
 
Charging for Web 
site developments 
(not our corporate 
Torbay site). 

20,000   During 
2015/16 

Internal 
Income not guaranteed. 

500 

 

 
Agreed Savings  – 

Outline details 
Savings for 2015/16 Implement-

ation Cost 
Delivery 

Date 
Risks / impact of proposals 

 
Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Print & Post Room  
8.Corporate Office 
based Printing   
- Centralise the 
management of all 
Desktop print 
devices across the 
organisation in order 
to reduce print 
devices and print 
volumes. 

 18,000 
 

Invest to save 
project – 

needs to be 
researched 

During 
2014/16 

Internal 
All departmental spend on desktop printing to be merged into a 
Corporate print budget to enable the Centralised Management of all 
print devices. 
Consider an External managed service for office based printing. 
Currently working on Business case. 

501 

P
age 263



 

     
 

Agreed Savings  – 
Outline details 

Savings for 2015/16 Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

We spend approx. 
£180k p.a. On Office 
based printing. A 
10% reduction could 
generate an £18k 
Corporate savings 
 

9. Staff Review 
 

  
 20,000  

Associated 
redundancy 

costs and 
pension strain 
if applicable 

By 
01/04/15 

 

Internal 

 Possible delays in distribution of post 

 Reduced cover for sickness/staff leave will reduce SLA 

501 

 

P
age 264



 

    
 

Corporate Budgets (including Riviera International Conference Centre) 
              Director:  Steve Parrock 
              Executive Lead: Mayor Gordon Oliver 
 
 
Corporate Budgets 
 
What is provided? Why is it provided? What drives demands? Budget Reference  

Corporate budgets include treasury 
management, precepts, external audit 
fees, concessionary bus fares, IT licences 
and insurance. 

  Insurance 252 (Commercial) 
Corporate Issues 400 (Finance) 

Debt 402 (Finance) 
External Audit Fees 184 (Finance) 

Interest & Treasury Charges 407 (Finance) 
Pension Costs 410 (Finance) 

Precepts and Levies 411 (Finance) 
Riviera International Centre 412 (Finance) 

Information Technology 502 (IT) 
Concessionary Fares 651 (Spatial Planning) 

 

 

 

 

P
age 265



 

    
 

Corporate Budgets (including Riviera International Conference Centre) 
              Director:  Steve Parrock 
              Executive Lead: Mayor Gordon Oliver 
 
 
*This heading reflects a number of corporate/cross service issues and contingencies that will impact on the council budget. Issues include contingency to support any as yet 

unquantified budget issues including:  

 Future years provision for demographic growth  

 Future years provision for employers national insurance rate charges  

 Cross service grants such as the New Homes Bonus  
 
Source: Torbay Council Budget Digest 2014/15 

 
 
Agreed Savings – Outline 

details 
Savings for 

2015/16 
Implement-
ation Cost 

Delivery 
Date 

Possible Risks / impact of proposals 
 

Budget Reference  

Income 
£ 

Budget 
reduction 

£ 

    

Corporate Budgets  
1. Riviera 

International 
Conference 
Centre (RICC) 

 

(Proposal agreed by 
Council in Feb 2014) 

0 30,000 
 
 

None 2015/16 Proposal developed in partnership with the RICC to reduce the subsidy 
 
 

412 (Finance) 

2. Riviera 
International 
Conference 
Centre (RICC) 

 25,000   To increase the reduction to the RICC by an additional £25,000 (Total 
Reduction - £55,000)   

412 (Finance) 

 

P
age 266



Sources of Funding

2015/16 Budget Summary (*ATL)

ServiceTitleID Total 

Expenditure 

Total 

Income 

Net 

Expenditure

£`000 £`000 £`000

Number of 
full time 

equivalent 
employees

Sources of Finance600 223 -110,004 -109,7810

Total 223 -110,004 -109,781

Note:   *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

0

P
age 267



Service Title: Sources of Funding

Manager: Paul Looby

Brief Description of Service:

This heading is the Council's funding streams including Revenue Support Grant, NNDR income (both the local 49% share and top up) and Council Tax 
income. Other income includes Collection fund surplus or deficit, Education Support Grant and Local Services Support Grant.

Business Unit: Sources of Funding

Executive Head: Paul Looby

Parish 
Precept

No of 
Staff 

(**FTE)

Service  provides:- Total 
Expenditure 

(*ATL)

Council 
Tax

Revenue
 Support 

Grant

NNDR Other Total 
Income 
(*ATL)

Net 
Expenditure

 (*ATL)

£`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000 £`000

600 Sources of Finance 00 0 223 0 0 223 -53,660 -25,439 -29,132 -1,773 -110,004 -109,781

0 0 223 0 0 223 -53,660 -25,439 -29,132 -1,773 -110,004 -109,781TOTAL 0

**FTE = Full Time EquivalentNote: *ATL = 'Above the Line' budget is the net budget that an officer is responsible for, which excludes reallocated support services

P
age 268


	Agenda
	1 Introduction
	Glossary

	2 Residents and Visitor Services
	Service Information
	Engineering Services and Land Drainage
	Recreation, Landscapes and Public Toilets
	Highways
	Culture and Sport
	Museums and Theatres
	Management Support and Commissioning
	Library Services
	Agreed Savings
	Fees and Charges

	3 Spatial Planning
	Service Information
	Spatial Planning
	Concessionary Fares
	Agreed Savings
	Fees and Charges - Development Control
	Fees and Charges - Building Control

	4 Torbay Economic Development Company
	Service Information
	Torbay Development Agency and Innovation Centres
	Asset Management
	Regeneration Initiatives
	Agreed Savings
	Fees and Charges

	5 Tor Bay Harbour Authority
	Service Information
	Tor Bay Harbour Authority
	Car Parking
	Agreed Savings
	Fees and Charges - Harbours
	6 Tor Bay Harbour Authority Budget Setting and  Harbour Charges 2014/15
	Schedule of Harbour Charges 2015-16 App1


	Fees and Charges - Resort Services
	Fees and Charges - Car Parking

	6 Waste and Cleaning
	Service Information
	Waste and Cleaning
	Agreed Savings

	7 Adult Social Care
	Service Information
	Adult Social Care
	Agreed Savings

	8 Children's Services
	Service Information
	Schools Services
	Commissioning Unit inc Youth & External Contracts
	Safeguarding & Wellbeing - Children in Need, Child Proctection and Single Assessment
	Safeguarding & Wellbeing - Placement Costs and Allowances
	Safeguarding & Wellbeing - Disabilities and Quality Assurance
	Safeguarding & Wellbeing - Specialist Services and Intensive Youth
	Agreed Savings
	Fees and Charges

	9 Public Health
	Service Information
	Public Health

	10 Community Safety
	Service Information
	Food Safety, Licensing and Trading Standards
	Community Protection and Private Housing Standards
	Safer Communities
	Housing Services
	Bereavement, Community Development and Safety
	Agreed Savings
	Fees and Charges

	11 Commercial and Business Services
	Service Information
	Human Resources
	Legal Services
	Registration of Births, Deaths and Marriages
	Governance Support
	Business Support, Communications and Directors
	Agreed Savings
	Land Charges Fees and Charges
	Registration Service Fees and Charges

	12 Financial Services
	Service Information
	Financial Services and Devon Audit Partnership
	Exchequer and Benefits
	Housing Benefit
	Centrally Held Budgets
	Grant Income and Contingencies
	Treasury Management
	Agreed Savings
	Fees and Charges

	13 Information Services
	Service Information
	Information Technology and Information Governance
	Customer Services and Access, Post Room and Printing
	Agreed Savings

	14 Corporate Budgets
	Agreed Savings

	15 Sources of Funding
	Sources of Funding


